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Message to Shareholders 
 
1. 2007 Business report  

Looking back at the second half of 2007, the outbreak of sub prime mortgage in the U.S. did 
not only affect the global economy but also impacted the stock exchange in the emerging 
markets.  As the result of the sluggih economy in the U.S., the international financial 
markets remained weak.  Furthermore, due to the on-going increase of the international 
energy and raw material prices, the outlook of the global economic growth in 2008 is not 
expected to be optimistic. 
Despite of the poor overall economic performance in Taiwan in 2007, with all shareholders’ 
supports and employees’ efforts, the Bank still achieved  the goals of: improvements on 
financial structure by capital mitigation/increase and issuance of second priority financial 
bonds; significantly improved the capital adequacy rate; enhanced the ability to expand 
business; awarded with the honor for excellent bank for SMEs financing by the Financial 
Supervisor Committee; enhanced its credit rating prospective from stability; made the record 
for earnings before tax of NT$2.1 billion. 
The operating achievements of 2007 are stated in the aspects of: organization reform, capital 
utilization plan results of business strategies, performance of services, financial income and 
expenditure, and profitability and R&D, as follows: 
(1) Organization reform: 

A. Established in December 2006, the Risk Management Department is responsible 
for drafting and administering the policies and strategies of the risk management, 
supervising the departments to establish risk management mechanism, and 
monitoring the risks of each business item enhance the quality of credit granting. 

B. “Treasury Department” was established in May 2007 to integrate the financial 
trading and operation platforms for NTD and foreign currencies effectively; 
establishe the front-end (investment and trading), middle-end (risk control) and 
back-end (delivery and liquidation) mechanism to utilize funds flexibly and 
enhance the performance of fund utilization. 

C. Established in October 2007, the “Overseas task force” aims to control the risk of 
credit granting to overseas Taiwanese businessmen and enhance the understanding 
of their operations in order to provide appropriate financial services; enhance the 
quality of credit granting and profitability; prepare for the establishment of 
overseas branches in the future. 

D. Professional financial product marketing taskforces were established. The 
educational training and expertise of staff are reinforced to develop the marketing 
of financial products and increased the revenue from handling fees. 

E. “Processing Center” was established to centralize the processing of instruments 
and notes collected at the counters, domestic remittances and verification of 
collected financial instruments. Through professional division of duties and 
effective HR planning to enhance the operating efficiency and service quality in 
order to increase business performance. 

F. “SME Guidance Taskforce” and “Factoring Taskforce” were established to guide 
the branches to promote these businesses actively and expand the scale of 
factoring to enhance the Bank’s rate of return. 

G. The Bank proceeded with dissolution of Taichung Commercial Bank Life 
Insurance Agency Company Ltd. and Taichung Commercial Bank Property 
Insurance Agency Company Ltd. pursuant to the legal requirements, and 
incorporated Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance Agent to expand the scale of 
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business and enhance the business performance. 
(2) Capital utilization plan result of business strategies: 

The Bank’s constitution has changed thoroughly upon the financial structural 
improvement engineering in 2007.  Therefore its businesses grew drastically, and its 
business performance was highly recognized by customers and social investors and, 
therefore, was helpful to correct the Bank’s corporate identity and social impression. 
A. Improvement on financial structure: 

In Q1 of 2007, the Bank preceded with capital mitigation of $7.33 billion in order 
to improve the quality of assets and well-found the financial structure.  
Meanwhile, in order to strengthen the capital structure and enhance the capital 
adequacy rate, the Bank also proceeded with capital increasing through issuance 
of common stock in the amount of NT$5 billion concurrently to meet the Bank's 
need for expansion of the business scale and long-term business development to 
help enhance the business performance and create value for shareholders.  On 
December 21, 2007, the Bank also successfully issued subordinated debt of 
NT$2.4 billion.  The Bank’s capital adequacy rate improved to 10.30% at the 
end of 2007, making the Bank’s financial structure more solid. 

B. Process loans to SME in accordance with the government policies: 
At the end of June 2007, the accumulated balances of loans granted by the Bank 
to SME amounted to $64.68 billion, increasing by $18.7 billion over the loan 
balance at the end of June 2006, $46 billion, an increase of 40.65%, and ranking 
8th place of 41 financial organizations throughout the state (the market share 
2.19%).  The Bank’s rank of position made progress drastically, and the Bank 
also won the honor for the excellent bank financing SMEs throughout the nation 
as appraised by Financial Supervisor Committee. 

C. Enhance the quality of assets drastically: 
At the end of 2007, the Bank’s NPL rate was 1.72%, below the industry average, 
1.84%.  Meanwhile, the Bank’s loan loss reserves covered 71.99% of problem 
exposures, below the industry average, 64.82%. 

D. Credit rating: 
According to Taiwan Ratings Corporation, the Bank’s long-term and short-term 
credit ratings remained “twBBB” and “twA-3” on September 17, 2007, but its 
outlook was rated from “stable” to “positive”. 
In consideration of the Bank’s financial and business results in 2007, it is 
expected that the Bank will win better and more positive credit ratings in 2008. 

E. Adjust business locations: 
In order to lay out the entire branch service network and provide the nationals 
with more rapid financial services, the Bank completed the relocation of 
Shihjouchia Branch , Sin Min Branch, Min Hsiung Branch and Taoyuan Branch 
in 2007 to develop the financial domain in the various regions. 

(3) Analysis on performance of services, financial income and expenditure and 
profitability: 
A. The total deposit balance was NT$240.893 billion at the end of 2007, including 

demand deposit balance of NT$102.350 billion, accounting for 42.49% of the 
bank’s total deposit, fairly high when compared with local peers, 32.72%.  The 
Bank will be dedicated to increasing the structural rate of demand deposits in 
hopes of reducing the cost of capital and increasing income. 

B. The total credit exposure was NT$197.161 billion at the end of 2007, increasing 
by NT$7.052 billion over that at the end of 2006, NT$190.109 billion, an increase 
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of 3.71%. 
C. The foreign exchanges amounted to US$6.297 billion in 2007, increasing by 

US$2.240 billion over that of 2006, an increase of 55.20%. 
D. The balance of trust assets was NT$32.914 billion, increasing by NT$16.776 

billion at the end of 2006, an increase of 103.96%.  The fee was NT$0.531 
billion , increasing by NT$0.372 billion over that at the end of 2006, an increase 
of 233.02%. 

E. The Bank has been dedicated to clearing the NPL and strengthening the on-site 
visits to bad debt accounts, in hopes of enhancing the Bank’s performance for 
collection of bad debt.  The bad debt collected amounted to NT$0.503 billion in 
2007. 

F. Analysis on financial income and expenditure and profitability: 
(i) The bank posted pre-provision profit was NT$3.315 billion in 2007, up by 

21.56% yoy in 2006. The income before income tax was NT$2.104 billion, 
achieving 102.22% of the financial forecast. The net income was NT$1.777 
billion. 

(ii) The net income was NT$6.104 billion in 2007.  The ROE was 14.7%, 
ROA 0.68% and EPS NT$1.50. 

(4) R&D: 
In order to cope with the rapid transformation in local and foreign financial trends and 
meet the Bank’s need for business development, the Bank researched, analyzed and 
investigated the global economic movement and the overview of the various local 
industries, and posted the analysis report on the internet periodically for the relevant 
entities’ or all coworkers’ reference. 

 
2. Business plans for 2008 

Looking into 2008, the sluggish global economic growth is expected to reduce the strength of 
property, and the local economic performance is not likely to be promoted.  Meanwhile, 
foreign banks’ acquisitions and mergers of local banks have taken place frequently in the 
recent years.  Therefore, in order to fulfill the philosophy of going concern, the regional 
small and medium business banks shall be more alerted in operation and enact effective 
business strategies to cope with the strict challenge in the financial environment, and therefore, 
will have the ability to survive in the environment surrounded by foreign banks and 
large-scale holding companies. 
Given this, the operating policy proposed by the Bank this year will urge all colleagues to 
make good use of their teamwork strength, enhance the management ability, upgrade the 
employees’ competence and continue improving the service quality to enhance the Bank’s 
competitiveness and operating efficiency and help the Bank move toward the “going concern” 
objective. 
(1) Operating policy 

A. Enhance the competitiveness: 
(i) Adjust the channels and locations of branches: 

In order to rectify the excessively overlapping business locations of 
branches, the Bank accelerated relocation and merger of the business 
locations with poor business performance and geographic conditions, in 
hopes of dispersing the risk centralized in the business regions, and also 
established the business locations completely in the western region.  The 
Bank continued providing fine-quality services in order to develop the 
customers in the central region thoroughly, in hopes of expanding the 
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market share, enhancing the effect of channels of the branches and 
increasing the entire earnings.  The relocation of Yung Kang Branch has 
been completed in February 2008. 
Considering that the Bank specializes in SME financing services, the 
Bank’s new location strategies will be oriented towards industrial parks and 
districts where SMEs are gathered and commercial and industrial 
development is booming.  Now, the Bank is planning to relocate some 
branches to Hsinchu County and Taoyuan County. 

(ii) Reduce the cost of capital: 
Continue developing the corporate accounts, collection and payment of 
securities, schools, agencys and personal accounts to enhance solicitation 
for demand deposits of low cost, in hopes of increasing the weight of the 
demand deposits in the total deposits to 45% to continue reducing the cost 
of capital 

(iii) Enhance business performance: 
Continue improving and simplifying the operational procedure, and refer the 
collection of financial instruments and local inter-branch correspondences 
processed by the desks to the dedicated “Processing Center”, to eliminate 
unnecessary process and enhance the operating efficiency through 
professional breakdown. 
Establish and integrate branch locations, phone banking and internet 
banking channels to provide customers with real-time 24-hour service 
network for financial transactions and information services and satisfy the 
various customers’ needs for utilization of funds to enhance customers’ 
loyalty. 

B. Increase the sources of income and weight of fees income: 
(i) Given that the financial products sold in the same trade are identical in 

nature and the price competition is intense and the interest spread for 
deposits and loans is minor, local and foreign financial organizations all 
tend to promote the development of risk-free fees income.  Therefore, in 
addition to the fees income for deposits, foreign exchanges, consumer 
banking, mutual fund, credit cards and insurance agent’s commission, the 
Bank also continues reaching and developing the financial products related 
to fees to increase the sources of income.  It is expected that the weight of 
the Bank’s fees income in the main income will be increased to 10% above. 

(ii) The Bank has applied for the continuing operation of a securities broker 
upon relocation from 2nd F of Min Tze Building to 1F in May this year, in 
order to provide customers with a more rapid and safer trading environment.  
It is expected that the securities brokerage turnover will be increased 
effectively and thereby generate plentiful fees income for the Bank. 

C. Improve risk management mechanism to ensure the business objectives: 
(i) In support of the New Basel Capital Accord, the Bank has officially 

established the risk management framework and information platform under 
the New Basel Capital Accord to implement the various risk management 
mechanisms, in hopes of reducing the business risk. 

(ii) The Bank enacted the market risk, credit risk and operating risk 
management policies according to the “requirements to be complied with 
upon local banks’ enforcement of Basel Capital Accord from 2007” as 
referred to in Letter Jin-Guan Yin (I) No. 09610000250 dated February 14, 
2007 of the Banking Bureau, Executive Yuan Financial Supervisory 
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Committee, in order to establish and execute the sound risk management 
mechanisms and achieve the business management objectives. 

D. Enhance training programs and upgrade the Bank clerks’ competence: 
(i) Hold intensive on-the-job training programs and upgrade the clerks’ 

competence 
(ii) Hold supervisors’ examinations to promote the excellent clerks who possess 

leadership 
(iii) Hold reading tests about manuals and books related to the business 

periodically to enhance the compliance concept and the operation 
processing level 

(iv) Encourage colleagues to acquire the relevant financial licenses and list the 
licenses as a factor to be considered in the performance appraisal to increase 
the professional financial knowledge 

(v) Fulfill the concept about “excellent service accelerates profitability”, and 
require the Bank clerks: 
a. To be thoughtful for customers, in hopes of winning customers’ 

acknowledgment and recognition; 
b. To voluntarily care for customers’ needs and provide accurate 

information and rapid service. 
 

(2) Expected business objectives in 2008 
A. Deposits: NT$257.216 billion 
B. Loans: NT$206.961 billion 
C. Foreign exchange: US$7.267 billion 
D. Trust (Funds): NT$53.840 billion 

 
This year is 55th anniversary of the Bank's foundation.  With all shareholders’ continuous supports 
and concerns about the Bank, the Bank’s businesses grow stably in the intensively competitive 
financial environment.  In the future, the Bank will fully utilize the niche and specialties of 
regional finance and be exclusively dedicated to SME banking, consumer banking and wealth 
management to provide customers with fine-quality services to the customers’ satisfactory.  
Meanwhile, the Bank will cope with the environmental changes and adjust the organization flexibly 
and control the operating cost effectively, in order to upgrade the Bank’s profitability and create the 
maximum benefit for all shareholders. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Chairman:  Hsui-Nan Huang President:  Yuh-Eing Chung 
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II. Company profile 
 

Formerly a cooperative savings company in Taichung permitted to establish in April 1953, the 
predecessor of Taichung Bank started its operation in savings and loans in August 1 of the 
same year. The scope of business then covered Taichung City, Taichung County, Chang Hwa 
County and Nantou County. In 1995, the amended Banking Act of the ROC was promulgated 
whereby all cooperative savings companies were incorporated into the national banking 
system. In compliance with applicable legal rules and business development needs, the Bank 
has successfully transformed into “Taichung Small and Medium Business Bank” in 1978 after 
3 years of endeavor. On May 15, 1984, the Bank went public and expanded its scale of 
operation, and has successfully been listed on the centralized market. These steps have helped 
to lay down a solid foundation of the Bank in subsequent development. 
For more than 55 years, the Bank has incrementally laid down a solid foundation for 
operation under the hard work everyone in the Bank. Now, business has picked up its 
momentum quickly, and has expanded to an operation with 79 branch locations from 5 at the 
beginning of the operation. Its service network has been expanded from the central Taiwan to 
northern and southern Taiwan successively and thereby established the Bank’s entire business 
domain. On December 9, 1998, the Bank was reformed into “Taichung Commercial Bank” 
and became one of the national commercial banks formally. In order to establish its corporate 
identity and highlight the local culture, the Bank was renamed from “Taichung (in regular 
Chinese characters) Commercial Bank” to “Taichung (in simplified Chinese characters) 
Commercial Bank”, a.k.a "Taichung Bank”, and also replaced all signboards at its business 
entities with those depicting the new characters to build its brand new corporate identity. 
Currently, the Bank has a Trust Department, International Business Department and 
International Banking Department, and has 8 branches designated as foreign exchange 
locations for servicing the clients with a full basket of commercial banking services. 
 
 
� Massive transactions or changes in equity shares by Directors, Supervisors, or 

shareholders holding more than 1% of the total outstanding shares in the most recent 
year: None 

 
� Changes in the management in the most recent year: None 
 
� Major events affecting the rights and privileges of the investors and the effect on the 

Bank: 
The 19th Board of the Bank has resolved in its 13th Special Session dated December 26 
2006 to appoint Mr. Yuh-Eing Chung as the new President. The resolution has been 
approved by Executive Yuan Financial Supervisory Committee in Letter Jin-Guan Yin 
(IV) No. 09600008520 dated March 28 2007. Mr. Chung assumed office on April 3, 
2007. 
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III. Corporate Governance Report 
1. Organization 

(1) Organizational Chart (until April 30, 2008) 
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(2) Functions of major departments: 

A. Office of the Board of Directors: 
Call for sessions and elections of the Standing Committee of the Board, the Board 
of Directors and Supervisors, General Meeting of the Shareholders, shares 
registration and related matters, public relations, press release. 

B. Auditing Office of the Board: 
Administer the general auditing of the Bank, including operation audit, computer 
information audit, internal self-audit, internal audit, corrective actions as per the 
requests of competent authority, and related reporting 

C. Business Development Department: 
Administer the planning and development of banking operation, deposits and 
remittances, credit cards and securities trade 

D. Loan Administration Department: 
Administer credit information check and approval (including consumer banking), 
related review, control, confirmation, and provide supervision and consultation 
services for SME. 

E. International Banking Department: 
Administer the planning, promotion, management and operation of foreign 
exchanges. 

F. Trust Department: 
Administer the planning, development, management and operation of trust 
business. 

G. Electronic Banking Department: 
Administer the planning, installation and operation of IT system and banking 
information package software. 

H. Dept. of Debt Collection and Asset Recovery: 
Administer the collection of delinquent accounts, review and approval of writing 
off non-performing loans, management of collaterals, related legal proceedings 
and “Compliance Officer’s business”� 

I. Risk Management Department: 
Administer the decision-making of the risk management policies for the whole 
bank, supervise the departments to establish risk monitor mechanisms, control of 
the overall exposures of the Bank and other risk related management. 

J. Treasury Department: 
Administer the appropriation of funds and investments of the whole bank in local 
and foreign currencies, and other financial matters. 

K. General Affairs Department: 
Control important documents and corporate seals, cashier service, general 
purchase, custody of assets, procurement of real properties, improvement and 
repair of properties. 

L. Personal Department: 
Administer human resources management and review, employee welfare, 
employee training. 
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M. Accounting Department: 
Administer accounting affairs, annual budget settlement and inter-branch 
transactions. 

N. Regional Centers: 
Supervise the review, management, and development of loans and foreign 
exchanges of the branches under their respective jurisdiction. 

O. Business Department: 
Administer the operation of different types of deposits, loans, foreign exchange 
settlements and banking matters. 

P. Overseas Banking Branch: 
Administer the planning and promotion, management and operation of 
international banking. 
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2. Information on Directors, Supervisors and Managers 
 

(1) Directors and Supervisors: 
 

A. Directors and Supervisors Information: April 15, 2008 

Shares at Election Current shareholding Current Shares Held by 
Spouse & Dependents 

Shareholding Held Under the 
Name of Others 

Other Chief, Supervisors 
or Directors with a 
Spousal or Other 

Immediate Relative Title Name Election 
Date Duration Inauguration 

date 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding 

Prior Experience 
(Education) 

Current Bank & 
Other positions 

Title Name Relation 

Chairman 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation 

Delegate of Hsui-Nan 
Huang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - President, Taiwan 
Business Bank - - - - 

Vice 
Chairman 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation 

Delegate of 
Chao-Chang Wang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - Director, Cosmos 
Bills Finance Corp 

Chairman, Pan 
Asia Chemical 
Corporation 

- -  

Managing 
Director 

Yi-Te Chen 2005/05/20 3 yrs 2004/05/17 10,006,554 0.65% 9,641,703 0.74% 211,892 0.02% - - Chairman, Lehigh 
Technology 

Supervisor, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd., 

Supervisor, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Property 
Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd., 

Director, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent 

- - - 

Managing 
Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of 
Ching-Huang Tsai 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - 
Deputy Chief 
Auditor, Taiwan 
Business Bank 

Chairman, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd., 

Director, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent 

- - - 

Director 
Representative to Po 
Han Investment 
Corporation: Loss 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 3,000 - 2,348 0.00% - - - - - - - - - 

Director 

Yu-Feng Investment 
Corporation: 

Delegate of Wen-Pin 
Liao 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 2,536,720 0.16% 1,985,958 0.15% - - - - GlobaLink 
Securities, Inc. - - - - 
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Shares at Election Current shareholding Current Shares Held by 
Spouse & Dependents 

Shareholding Held Under the 
Name of Others 

Other Chief, Supervisors 
or Directors with a 
Spousal or Other 

Immediate Relative Title Name Election 
Date Duration Inauguration 

date 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding 

Prior Experience 
(Education) 

Current Bank & 
Other positions 

Title Name Relation 

Director 

Chiung Tung 
Investment 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Ching-Hsin 
Chang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 5,531,000 0.36% 6,170,134 0.47% - - - - 
Executive Vice 
President, Taichung 
Business Bank 

- - - - 

Director 

Hong- Ching 
Investment 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Ya-Chuan 
Tsai 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 1,033,000 0.07% 808,718 0.06% - - - - 
Manager, Concord 
Venture Capital 
Group 

- - - - 

Director Steve Chang 2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 - - - - - - - - Chairman, Trend 
Micro Incorporated - - - - 

Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Yuh-Eing 
Chung 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - 
Executive Vice 
President, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 

President, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank, 

Chairman, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Property 
Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. 

- - - 

Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Kuei-Fong 
Wang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - 

Executive vice 
president of 
Financing Dept., 
BNP Paribas 
Capital. 

Executive Vice 
President, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 

- - - 

Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Che-Nan 
Wang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - 

The Executive Yuan 
Overseas Chinese 
Affairs 
Commissioner 

- - - - 

Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Hsin-Ching 
Chang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - Chief Auditor, Land 
Bank of Taiwan 

Director, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd.,  

Chairman, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent 

- - - 

Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of 
Chuang-Shang Hong 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - 
Manager, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Yungchiung Branch 

- - - - 

Director 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Ming-Shan 
Chuang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2002/05/17 30,859,000 2.01% 91,927,702 7.05% - - - - 
Vice Chairman, Pan 
Asia Chemical 
Corporation 

- - - - 
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Shares at Election Current shareholding Current Shares Held by 
Spouse & Dependents 

Shareholding Held Under the 
Name of Others 

Other Chief, Supervisors 
or Directors with a 
Spousal or Other 

Immediate Relative Title Name Election 
Date Duration Inauguration 

date 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding 

Prior Experience 
(Education) 

Current Bank & 
Other positions 

Title Name Relation 

Resident 
Supervisor 

Chou Chang 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Su-Li 
Huang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 4,900,000 0.32% 6,534,789 0.50% - - - - Manager, Taiwan 
Cooperative Bank - 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Supervisor Chao-Hsiang Lee 2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 - - - - 5,228 - - - 
Public procurator of 
district court and  
lawyer 

- - - - 

Supervisor 

Chou Chang 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Chien-Hwa 
Lee Fu 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 4,900,000 0.32% 6,534,789 0.50% - - - - Manager, PConline 
Computer - - - - 

Supervisor 

Chou Chang 
Corporation:  

Delegate of 
Chorng-Bor Chen 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 4,900,000 0.32% 6,534,789 0.50% - - - - 

Deputy Executive 
Vice President, 
Grand Commercial 
Bank 

Independent 
director of Walsun 
Insurance Ltd. 

- - - 

Supervisor 

Chou Chang 
Corporation:  

Delegate of Jiann-Ell 
Huang 

2005/05/20 3 yrs 2005/05/20 4,900,000 0.32% 6,534,789 0.50% - - - - Manager, Chiao 
Tung Bank 

- - - - 
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B. Principle Corporate Shareholders 
April 15, 2008 

Corporate shareholder Name Principle corporate shareholder 

Pan Asia Chemical Corporation China Man-Made Fiber Co., Ltd. 

Chou Chang Corporation Chou Chin Industrial Co., Ltd., Pan Asia Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Po Han Investment Corporation Hwei-Ling Chou 

Yu-Feng Investment Corporation Ying-Yen Liao, Feng-Chu Wang, Wen-Pin Liao 

Chiung Tung Investment Corporation Yi-Jen Chen 

Hong- Ching Investment Corporation Yu-Fang Tsai, Tsui-Hsia Lin, Ya-Jung Tsai 

 
C. Principle Shareholders of Principle Corporate Shareholder: 

April 15, 2008 

Name of institutional shareholder Dominant shareholder of institutional shareholder 

China Man-Made Fiber Co., Ltd. Pan Asia Chemical Corporation 

Chou Chin Industrial Co., Ltd. Yung Ching Co., Ltd. 

Pan Asia Investment Co., Ltd. Tai Yi Investment Co., Ltd., Da Fa Investment Co., Ltd. 
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D. Information on Directors and Supervisors in professionalism and impartibility 
 

Have more than 5 years of experience and the 
following professional qualifications 

Status of independence (note) Conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name 

Lecturer or 
above in 
commerce, 
law, finance, 
accounting or 
subjects 
required by 
the business 
of the 
company in 
pubic or 
private 
colleges or 
universities 

Passed the 
qualification 
examination with 
proper licensing by 
the national 
government as court 
judge, prosecutor, 
lawyers, certified 
public accountant or 
other professional 
designations 
required by the 
business of the 
Company 

Required 
Work 
experience in 
commerce, 
law, finance, 
accounting or 
others 
required by 
the Company 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Number of 
public 
companies 
where the 
person holds 
the title as 
independent 
director 

Hsui-Nan Huang   V V V V V V V V V V   
Chao-Chang 

Wang 
  V V V V V  V V V V   

Yi-Te Chen   V V V V V V V V V V V  
Ching-Huang 

Tsai 
  V V V V V V V V V V   

Che-Nan Wang   V V V V V V V V V V   
Wen-Pin Liao   V V V V V V V V V V   
Ching-Hsin 

Chang   V V V V V V V V V V   

Ya-Chuan Tsai   V V V V V V V V V V   
Steve Chang   V V V V V V V V V V V  

Yuh-Eing 
Chung 

  V V V V V V V V V V   

Kuei-Fong 
Wang 

  V V V V V V V V V V   

Chuang-Shang 
Hong 

  V V V V V V V V V V   

Hsin-Ching 
Chang 

  V V V V V V V V V V   

Ming-Shan 
Chuang   V V V V V  V V V V   

Su-Li Huang   V V V V V V V V V V   
Chao-Hsiang 

Lee 
 V V V V V V V V V V V V  

Chien-Hwa Lee 
Fu 

  V V V V V V V V V V   

Chorng-Bor 
Chen   V V V V V V V V V V   

Jiann-Ell Huang   V V V V V V V V V V   

Note: The respective director and supervisor who meet the following qualifications 2 years before assumption of office or at the time of assumption 
office shall put a “ V ” in the appropriate space. 

(1) Not an employee of the Nnk or its affiliates. 

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Bank or its affiliates (excluding the capacity of independent director to a subsidiary directly or 
indirectly held by the Bank or the Bank and its parent with more than 50% of the stakes). 

(3) Not a natural person, spouse, underage children, or under the title of a third party who holds more than 1% of the outstanding shares 
issued by the Bank or among the top 10 natural person shareholders 

(4) Not a spouse, kin at the second pillar under the Civil Code, or the lineal blood relatives within the fifth pillar under the Civil Code as 
specified in (1) through (3). 

(5) Not a director, supervisor or employee of an institutional shareholder who holds more than 5% of the outstanding shares issued by 
the bank, or a director, supervisor or employee of an institutional shareholder who is among the top 5 shareholders. 

(6) Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding more than 5% of the outstanding shares of specific company or 
institution in business or financial relation with the Bank. 

(7) Not a professional, owner, partner, director, supervisor, manager of proprietorship, partnership, company or institution that provide 
business, legal, financial and accounting services to the Bank or its affiliates, and a spouse to the aforementioned persons. 

(8) Not a spouse to or kin at the second pillar under the Civil Code to any other director. 

(9) Not under any of the categories stated in Article 30 of the Company Act. 

(10) No government agency, juristic person or its representative is elected under Article 27 of the Company Act. 
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(2) President, Executive Vice Presidents, Deputy Executive Vice President and managers of the departments and branches 
Unit: Share; % 

April 15, 2008 

Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

President Yuh-Eing 
Chung 2007.4.3 64,300 0.0049% - - - - 

Executive Vice President, 
Taichung Commercial Bank, 
Assistant Vice President of 
Cosmos Bank, North 2nd Corporate 
Banking Center 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Catholic Fu Jen University) 

Chairman, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd. 

- - - - 

Executive 
Vice President 

Kuei-Fong 
Wang 2005.9.27 83,600 0.0064% - - - - 

VP, CMFC; Manager, Investment 
Banking Dept, Normura 
Securities; VP, Financing Dept, 
BNP Paribas Corporate & 
Investment Banking 

(School of Business 
Administration, Philosophy, NYU) 

- - - - - 

Executive 
Vice President An-Feng Lin 2002.10.29 177,266 0.0136% 261 - - - 

Deputy Executive Vice President, 
Manager, and Spokesman of 
Internet Banking Department 

(School of Business 
Administration, Feng Chia 
University) 

Director, Taiwan 
Incubator SME 
Development Co., 
Ltd. 

- - - - 

Chief Auditor 
Jen-Chung 

Ting 2006.5.8 100,400 0.0077% - - - - 

Deputy Executive Vice President, 
Sun Bank 

(Dept of International Trade, 
Tamkang University) 

- - - - - 

Special 
Commissioner 

Ming-hsiung 
Wei 2007.3.1 - - - - - - 

Director-General, 1st Regional 
Center, Land Bank of Taiwan 

(Administration, National 
Chengchi University on Air 
education program) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

Senior Vice 
President & 

Chief 
Secretary, 

Office of the 
Board 

Kai-Yu Lin 2007.11.19 5,000 - - - - - 

Senior Vice President & General 
Manager, General Affairs 
Department 

(Dept of Law, National Chengchi 
University) 

Director, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd., 

Director, Taichung 
Bank Property 
Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd.,  

Supervisor, 
Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent 

- - - - 

Vice President 
& Deputy 
General 

Manager, 
General 
Affairs 

Department 
(on behalf of 

Manager, 
General 
Affairs 

Department) 

Ching-hu 
Hsieh 2007.11.28 - - - - - - 

Factory Head, CMFC; Manager, 
General Affairs Department; 
Deputy Executive Vice President, 
Production Business Department; 
Executive Vice President, 
Production Business Department 

(Fiber Department, Mingchi 
College) 

- - - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, 
Business 

development 
Dept 

Ching-Kun 
Lin 2006.5.4 120,765 0.0093% - - - - 

Manager, Chungcheng Branch and 
Taichung Branch 

(International Trade, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial College) 

Director, Taichung 
Banking Life 
Insurance 
Underwriter Co., 
Ltd 

- - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, Loan 
Administration 

Department 

Hsueh-Hsien 
Liao 2005.8.3 200,000 0.0153% - - - - 

Senior Vice President & General 
Manager, Dept of Debt Collection 
and Asset Recovery 

(Finance, Graduate School of 
Management, National Chung 
Hsing University) 

Director, Taichung 
Bank Property 
Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. 

- - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, 
Personal 

Department 

Chi-Chuan 
Fang 2006.9.1 51,600 0.0040% - - - - 

Vice President & Deputy General 
Manager, Personal Department 

(Dept of Accounting, Catholic Fu 
Jen University) 

- - - -  

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, 

Accounting 
Department 

Shu-Chen 
Chen 2006.5.4 114,209 0.0088% 93,177 0.0071% - - 

Vice President & Deputy General 
Manager, Accounting Department 

(Dept of Accounting, National 
Chengkung University) 

Director, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd. 

General 
Manager Yu-Chao Ma Couple - 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, 
Electronic 
Banking 

Department 

Tzi-Kwang 
Chen 2003.8.1 96,511 0.0074% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Business development Dept 

(Dept of International Trade, Feng 
Chia University) 

- - - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, Dept 

of Debt 
Collection and 

Asset 
Recovery 

Yi-Yuan 
Tung 2006.12.29 124,567 0.0096% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Dept of 
Debt Collection and Asset 
Recovery 

(Banking and Insurance, Taichung 
Commercial School on Air 
education program) 

- - - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, 
Trust Dept 

Chen-Sheng 
Hong 2006.12.29 84,068 0.0064% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Trust 
Dept 

(Dept of Accounting, Tung Hai 
University) 

- - - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & 

General 
Manager, Risk 
Management 

Dept 

Hung-Tzer 
Tsai 2006.12.29 249,213 0.0191% - - - - 

General Manager, Sheng Kang 
Branch 

(School of Business 
Administration, Ta Yeh 
University) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Treasury Dept 

Kuei-Fong 
Wang 

(concurrent 
post) 

2007.8.13 83,600 0.0064% - - - - 

Executive Vice President, CMFC; 
General Manager, Investment 
Banking Dept, Normura 
Securities; Executive Vice 
President, Financing Dept, BNP 
Paribas Corporate & Investment 
Banking 

(School of Business 
Administration, Philosophy, 
NYU) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

International 
Banking 

Department 

Cheng-Yu 
Lai 2006.5.4 68,688 0.0053% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
International Business Dept 

(Dept of Accounting, Feng Chia 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Securities 
Brokerage 

Kun-Shin Hu 2007.4.3 - - - - - - 
Special Asst to the President 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Catholic Fu Jen University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Business Dept 
Chien-Fa Hsu 2007.4.3 153,238 0.0118% 15,657 0.0012% - - 

General Manager, Fongyuan 
Branch 

(Dept of Commerce, National Air 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Siangshang 
Branch 

Yung-Chang 
Lai 2005.12.2 6,216 0.0005% 781 0.0001% - - 

Deputy General Manager, W. 
Taichung Branch 

(Dept of Accounting, Feng Chia 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Daching 
Branch 

Hwei-Chin 
Lu 2006.1.24 56,417 0.0043% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Daching Branch 

(Business Administration, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, W. 

Taichung 
Branch 

Shih-Pin 
Chen 2006.5.4 70,700 0.0054% - - - - 

General Manager, Lungjing 
Branch 

(Business Administration, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 
Chungte 
Branch 

Jie-Li Jiang 2005.12.2 56,300 0.0043% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, S. 
Taichung Branch 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Ling Tung Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Chungcheng 
Branch 

Chi-Hsien 
Lee 2007.4.3 144,125 0.0111% 1,000 0.0001% - - 

General Manager, Teinchung 
Branch 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Ling Tung Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Hsitun Branch 

Cheng-Wen 
Ni 2007.4.3 54,880 0.0042% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Hsitun 
Branch 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Ling Tung Technology College) 

- 
General 
Manager 

Cheng-Hsien 
Ni Brother - 

General 
Manager, 

Nantun Branch 
Tai-Min Liao 2008.1.28 49,584 0.0038% - - - - 

General Manager, Puli Branch  

(Accounting and Statistics, Ling 
Tung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Neihsin 
Branch 

Chung-Fa 
Chou 2006.1.24 35,771 0.0027% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Neihsin 
Branch 

(International Trade, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Dadu Branch 

Rai-Cheng 
Yang 2006.7.31 113,172 0.0087% - - - - 

General Manager, Lukang Branch  

(Business Administration, Global 
Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager,  

N. Taiping 
Branch 

Chia-Wei 
Tsai 2006.12.29 55,211 0.0042% - - - - 

Deputy Regional General 
Manager, Regional Center, 
Taichung District II 

(Accounting and Statistics, 
Tamshui Industrial and Business 
School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Taichungkang 
Branch  

Deh-Wei 
Chia 2007.4.3 106,300 0.0082% 6,000 0.0005% - - 

General Manager, Changhua 
Branch 

(Dept of Statistics, National Cheng 
Kung University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Szumin 
Branch 

Hsin-Fu 
Liang 2006.12.29 55,744 0.0043% 27,024 0.0021% - - 

Auditor, Auditing Office of the 
Board 

(Business Administration, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

- - - - - 



20 

Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Chungkang 
Branch 

Chang-Chi 
Liu 2006.1.24 54,773 0.0042% 522 - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Chungkang Branch 

(Dept of Cooperative Economics, 
National Chung Hsing University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, S. 

Taichung 
Branch 

Liang-Tsai 
Hung 2005.12.2 96,270 0.0074% 715 0.0001% - - 

General Manager, Puhsin Branch 

(Business Information, Taichung 
Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, N. 

Taichung 
Branch 

Ming-Ta Lu 2005.12.2 62,391 0.0048% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, N. 
Taichung Branch 

(Banking and Insurance, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, Dali 

Branch 

Pi-Hwa 
Chang 2007.10.19 74,923 0.0057% 35,500 0.0027% - - 

General Manager, Feng Chia 
Branch 

(Dept of Applied Commerce, 
National Open College of 
Continuing Education Affiliated to 
National Taichung Institute of 
Technology) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Taiping 
Branch 

Tzer-Hsiu 
Lin 2006.5.4 60,464 0.0046% - - - - 

General Manager, W. Taichung 
Branch 

(Business Administration, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Houli Branch 

Rai-Fang 
Chen 2006.7.31 170,432 0.0131% - - - - 

General Manager, Dadu Branch 

(Banking Management, Tamshui 
Industrial and Commercial 
School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Daya Branch 

Ming-Ren 
Hsu 2006.7.31 87,608 0.0067% - - - - 

General Manager, Kuokuang 
Branch 

(Dept of Insurance Management, 
Chao Yang Univesity) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, Tan 
Tzu Branch 

Ming-Hai Lin 2005.10.5 66,312 0.0051% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Shangkong Branch 

(Dept of Textiles, Feng Chia 
University) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Sheng Kang 
Branch 

Chun-Yin 
Wang 2006.12.29 97,244 0.0075% - - - - 

General Manager, Nanyang 
Branch 

(Department of Technology 
Management, Chung Hua 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Fongyuan 

Branch 

Chung-Liang 
Ho 2007.4.3 60,000 0.0046% - - - - 

General Manager, Business Dept 

(Accounting, Taichung 
Commercial School) 

Director, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd. 

- - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Dachia Branch 

Hung-Mao 
Chang 2007.4.3 149,482 0.0115% - - - - 

General Manager, E. Fongyuan 
Branch 

(Business Administration, 
Taichung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Chingsui 
Branch 

Tung-Po 
Yang 2005.8.26 188,640 0.0145% 32,319 0.0025% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Shalu 
Branch 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Ling Tung Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Shalu Branch 

Chung-Hsien 
Lee 2005.12.2 116,232 0.0089% - - - - 

General Manager, Taipei Branch 

(Commerce, Hsin Min Industrial 
and Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Wufong 
Branch 

Chi-Hsien 
Chen 2005.12.2 815 - - - - - 

General Manager, S. Taichung 
Branch 

(Dept of Economics, Soochow 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Dongshih 

Branch 

Yue-Mei Liu 2005.10.5 90,202 0.0069% 7,828 0.0006% - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Dongshih Branch 

(Commerce, Feng Yuan Senior 
Commercial High School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, E. 
Fongyuan 

Branch 

Shu-Deh 
Chang 2007.4.3 48,190 0.0037% - - - - 

General Manager, Dachia Branch 

(Graduate School of Management, 
Providence University) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Wutze Branch 

Kuo-Chin 
Chi 2006.1.24 80,519 0.0062% 3,131 0.0002% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Wutze 
Branch 

(Business Administration, Ling 
Tung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, S. 
Fongyuan 

Branch 

Kuo-Chi Lin 2007.7.18 114,320 0.0088% 12,643 0.0010% - - 

General Manager, Regional 
Center, Taichung District I 

(Dept of International Trade, Feng 
Chia University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Nanyang 
Branch 

Ming-Tao 
Chang 2006.12.29 58,630 0.0045% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Dadu 
Branch 

(Electrical Engineering, Chin Yi 
Industrial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Nantou Branch 

Deng-Yueh 
Peng 2007.10.19 13,454 0.0010% - - - - 

General Manager, Shuili Branch 

(Commerce, Puli Senior High 
School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Chushan 
Branch 

Chien-rong 
Ge 2007.5.2 3,720 0.0003% 2,788 0.0002% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Puli 
Branch  

(Department of Textile, Van Nung 
School of Industrial Skills) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Shuili Branch 
Wei-yao Gu 2007.10.19 120,956 0.0093% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Nantou 
Regional Center 

(Ling Tung Commercial School) 
- - - - - 

General 
Manager, Puli 

Branch  

Chien-Min 
Chou 2008.1.28 63,438 0.0049% - - - - 

General Manager, Peitou Branch 

(School of Industrial Management, 
National Cheng Kung University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Tsaotun 
Branch 

Hsin-Chi Wu 2006.1.24 145,488 0.0112% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Tsaotun 
Branch 

(Business Administration, 
Tamshui Industrial and 
Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Mingchien 
Branch 

Kwei-Ching 
Ho 2007.7.18 80,284 0.0062% - - - - 

General Manager, Peitun Branch 

(School of Humanity Studies, 
National Sun Yat-Sen University) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Luku Branch 

Chung-Chang 
Hsieh 2006.1.24 57,200 0.0044% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Luku 
Branch 

(Business Administration, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Changhua 

Branch 

Chin-Feng 
Huang 2007.4.3 51,469 0.0039% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager of 
Business development Dept. and 
Planning Section Manager  

(School of Economics, Feng Chia 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Lukang 
Branch  

Lien-Cheng 
Wu 2006.7.31 191,762 0.0147% 10,506 0.0008% - - 

General Manager, Yungchiung 
Branch 

(Business Administration, 
Taichung Commercial School on 
air education program) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Shihu Branch 

Chien-Hao 
Chen 2006.12.29 97,206 0.0075% - - - - 

General Manager, Erlin Branch 

(School of Business 
Administration, Feng Chia 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, Erlin 

Branch 

Pao-Yuan 
Chen 2006.12.29 51,892 0.0040% - - - - 

General Manager, Peitou Branch 

(Dept. of Statistics, Tung Hai 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Peitou Branch 

Wei-huang 
Yu 2008.1.28 51,800 0.0040% - - - - 

General Manager, Huatan Branch 

(Dept of Accounting, National 
Chung Hsing University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Teinchung 

Branch 

Kuo-Liang 
Chen 2007.4.3 103,696 0.0080% - - - - 

General Manager, Siushui Branch 

(Business Information, Chung 
Chou Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Yuanlin 
Branch 

Cheng-Han 
Hsieh 2006.1.24 82,265 0.0063% 43,668 0.0033% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Yuanlin 
Branch 

(Dept of Business Administration, 
Feng Chia University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Homei Branch 

Wen-Tung 
You 2005.10.20 63,514 0.0049% - - - - 

Deputy Chief Auditor, Auditing 
Office of the Board 

(Dept. of Business Administration, 
Feng Chia University) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Shetou Branch 

Yu-Nien 
Kang 2007.4.3 57,805 0.0044% - - - - 

Vice President & Deputy General 
Manager of Loan Administration 
Department and Review Section 
Manager 

(Accounting and Statistics, 
Tamshui Industrial and Business 
School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Huatan Branch 

Chung-ho 
Chen 2008.1.28 39,576 0.0030% 42,789 0.0033% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Huatan 
Branch 

(Department of Tourism, Tamshui 
Industrial and Commercial 
School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Yungchiung 
Branch 

Wen-Chu 
Lee 2006.7.31 53,673 0.0041% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Chang 
Hwa Regional Center 

(International Trade, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Siushui 
Branch 

Pi-Wei Wang 2007.4.3 47,133 0.0036% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Dongshih Branch 

(Business Administration, Ling 
Tung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Shangkong 
Branch 

Hsin-Ru Kao 2006.1.24 79,892 0.0061% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Shangkong Branch 

(Business Administration, 
Taichung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Dachu Branch 

Ming-Cheng 
Wu 2006.5.30 65,711 0.0050% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Business Dept 

(Business Information, Chung 
Chou Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, N. 

Yuanlin 
Branch 

Shun-Deh 
Tsai 2005.12.2 73,770 0.0057% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, N. 
Yuanlin Branch 

(Dept. of Finance, Chao Yang 
Technology University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Peitou Branch 
Yu-Chao Ma 2006.12.29 93,177 0.0071% 114,209 0.0088% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Homei 
Branch 

(Banking Management, Tamshui 
Industrial and Commercial 
School) 

- 
General 
Manager 

Shu-Chen 
Chen Couple - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Peitun Branch 

Kwang-Chi 
Chen 2005.12.2 80,637 0.0062% 2 - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Neihsin 
Branch 

(Business Administration, Tatung 
Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Waipu Branch 

Chung-Teng 
Hung 2005.10.5 79,612 0.0061% - - - - 

Business Section Chief, Business 
development Dept. 

(Dept. of Cooperative Economics, 
Feng Chia University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Puhsin Branch 
Li-Deh Liu 2006.6.16 26,579 0.0020% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Puhsin 
Branch 

(Business Administration, Ling 
Tung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Taipei Branch 

Tai-Yuan 
Huang 2005.12.2 32,800 0.0025% - - - - 

General Manager, An Tie Bank 

(Dept. of Accounting, Catholic Fu 
Jen University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Shihjouchia 
Branch  

Han-ching 
Tsai 2007.7.18 21,972 0.0017% 16,887 0.0013% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Wutze 
Branch 

(Banking and Insurance, Taichung 
Commercial School on Air 
education program) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Lungjing 
Branch 

You-Fu 
Chang 2006.5.4 76,024 0.0058% - - - - 

Sales Staff, Chang Hwa Regional 
Center 

(Taichung 2nd Senior High School) 
- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Puyen Branch 

Tsung-chang 
Tseng 2008.1.28 836 - - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Siangshang Branch 

(Dept. of Cooperative Economics, 
Feng Chia University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, Sung 

Shan Branch 
Yao Chi Lin 2007.4.3 23,600 0.0018% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
BanChiao Branch 

(Dept. of Cooperative Economics, 
National Chung Hsing University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Sanchung 

Branch 

Yu-Yen Tsai 2006.12.29 31,700 0.0024% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Taipei 
Branch 

(Commerce, Tao Chiang 
Commercial Senior High School) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Kaohsiung 
Branch 

Lee-Ming Ou 2006.1.24 40,000 0.0031% - - - - 
Auditor, Auditing Office of the 
Board 

(Feng Shan Commercial School) 
- - - - - 

General 
Manager, W. 
Shihu Branch 

Chien-ting 
Lin 2007.6.29 7,109 0.0005% 551 - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Chungcheng Branch 

(Dept. of Business Administration, 
Ling Tung Technology College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Linko Branch 

Chun-Tzer 
Lee 2005.10.5 42,243 0.0032% - - - - 

General Manager, International 
Business Dept 

(School of Business 
Administration, Sulos State 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Huwei Branch 

Cheng-Hsien 
Ni 2006.9.1 17,012 0.0013% - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, 
Regional Center, Taichung 
District II 

(Dept. of Business Administration, 
Feng Chia University) 

- 
General 
Manager 

Cheng-Wen 
Ni Brother - 

General 
Manager, 

Wanli Branch 

Kuei-huang 
Hai 2007.11.1 - - - - - - 

General Manager, Hsinchu 
Commercial Bank 

(International Trading, Chungyu 
Junior College of Business 
Administration) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Chunan 
Branch  

Ting-feng Jan 2007.7.20 477 - - - - - 

General Manager, Hsinchu 
Commercial Bank 

(Feng Yuan Commercial High 
School, Senior Programs) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Dounan 
Branch 

Yi-Ren Teng 2005.4.29 57,385 0.0044% - - - - 

Auditor, Auditing Office of the 
Board 

(Accounting and Statistics, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial School) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 

Neihu Branch 

Ruei-tung 
Wu 2007.6.29 - - - - - - 

Deputy Executive Vice President, 
Fu Hwa Commercial Bank 

(Department of Banking 
Insurance, University of Chinese 
Culture) 

- - - - - 

Regional 
Deputy 
General 

Manager, 
Taipei 

Regional 
Center 

(On behalf of 
Manager, 
BanChiao 
Branch) 

Shi-fa Sung 2008.3.25 - - - - - - 

General Manager, BanChiao 
Branch 

(Dept. of Economics, University 
of Chinese Culture) 

- - - - - 

Deputy 
General 

Manager, 
Fongshan 

Branch 

(On behalf of 
Manager,  
Fongshan 
Branch) 

Ching-shun 
Wang 2008.3.25 13,173 0.0010% - - - - 

Assistant Manager, Fongshan 
Branch 

(Dept. of Business Administration, 
Catholic Fu Jen University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Xinzhuang 
Branch 

Ming-Hsiang 
Kuo 2007.9.29 - - - - - - 

General Manager, Taipei Regional 
Center 

(Dept. of Cooperative Economics, 
Tamkang University) 

- - - - - 



28 

Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 
Pingjhen 
Branch 

Ting-Kuang 
Huang 2006.5.30 700 - - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, Chunan 
Branch  

(Dept. of Cooperative Economics, 
Feng Chia University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, Min 
Hsiung Branch 

Chun-te Lin 2008.3.10 589 - 3,324 0.0003% - - 

Deputy General Manager, Lukang 
Branch  

(International Trade, Chiao 
Kwang Commercial College) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Taoyuan 
Branch 

Chun-wen 
Chen 2007.7.30 - - - - - - 

Deputy General Manager, BOWA 
Bank 

(Dept. of Public Finance and 
Taxation, National Chengchi 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Yung Kung 
Branch 

Ching-Hsiang 
Lin 2007.11.28 75,215 0.0058% - - - - 

Auditor, Auditing Office of the 
Board 

(Industrial Management, Chin Yi 
Industrial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Regional 
Center, 

Taichung 
District I 

Wen-Chun 
Jan 2007.7.18 39,000 0.0030% - - - - 

General Manager, Nantou 
Regional Center 

(Dept. of Taxation and Public 
Finance, National Chung Hsing 
University) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Chang Hwa  
Regional 
Center 

He-Chin 
Chang 2005.12.5 233,555 0.0179% 69,189 0.0053% - - 

General Manager, Dept of Debt 
Collection and Asset Recovery. 

(Dept. of Law, University of 
Chinese Culture) 

Director, Taichung 
Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance 
Agency Company 
Ltd. 

- - - - 

General 
Manager, 
Regional 
Center, 

Taichung 
District II 

Yueh-Chin 
Hsieh 2006.1.24 139,280 0.0107% - - - - 

General Manager, Feng Yuan 
Regional Center 

(Business Administration, 
Taichung Commercial School on 
Air education program) 

- - - - - 
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Status of shareholding 
Shareholding by 
spouse, underage 

children 

Shareholding under 
the title of a third 

party 

Spouse or kin within the second 
pillar under the Civil Code and 

who is a manager Title Name 
Date of 
office 

Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage Quantity Percentage 

Education and major experience 
Positions with 

other companies 

Title Name Relation 

Employee 
stock 
option 

acquired 
by 

managers 

General 
Manager, 
Nantou 

Regional 
Center 

Kuo-cheng 
Chou 2007.7.18 15,954 0.0012% - - - - 

Secretary General Office of the 
Board 

(Business Administration, 
Taichung Commercial School) 

- - - - - 

General 
Manager, 

Taipei 
Regional 
Center 

Ming-hsiung 
Wei 

(concurrent 
post) 

2007.9.29 - - - - - - 

Director-General, 1st Regional 
Center, Land Bank of Taiwan 

(Administration, National 
Chengchi University on Air 
education program) 

- - - - - 
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(3) Remunerations to Directors, Supervisors, President and Executive Vice Presidents in the Recent Year: 
A. Remuneration to Directors (including independent directors) 

Currency: in NTD thousand;% 

Remuneration to Directors Remuneration in the capacity as employees 

Director fees 

(A) 

From retained 
earnings 

(B) 

For services 

(C) 

The sum of A, B, and 
C in proportion to 

earnings 
Salary, bonus and 
special subsidies 

(D) 

Employee bonus from earnings 

(E) 

Quantity of shares 
entitled under 

employee stock 
option  

(F) 

The sum of A, B, C, 
D, and E to earnings 

The Bank 

All companies 
included in the 
consolidated 

financial statements 

Title Name 

The Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

Cash 
dividends 

Stock 
dividends 

Cash 
dividends 

Stock 
dividends 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

Remuneration 
from 

investees 
beyond 

subsidiaries 

Chairman Hsui-Nan 
Huang 

4,302,500 4,302,500 - - 195,000 195,000 0.253% 0.253% - - - - - - - - 0.253% 0.253% None 

Managing 
Director 

Chao-Chang 
Wang 

- - - - 125,000 125,000 0.007% 0.007% - - - - - - - - 0.007% 0.007% None 

Managing 
Director 

Yi-Te Chen 240,000 396,667 - - 145,000 166,000 0.032% 0.032% - - - - - - - - 0.032% 0.032% None 

Managing 
Director 

Ching-Huang 
Tsai 

- 276,667 - - 195,000 242,000 0.029% 0.029% - - - - - - - - 0.029% 0.029% None 

Managing 
Director 

Pan Asia 
Chemical 

Corporation 
1,560,000 1,560,000 - - - - 0.088% 0.088% - - - - - - - - 0.088% 0.088% None 

Director Hsin-Ching 
Chang 

- 353,334 - - 70,000 108,000 0.026% 0.026% - - - - - - - - 0.026% 0.026% None 

Director Chuang-Shang 
Hong 

- - - - 60,000 60,000 0.003% 0.003% - - - - - - - - 0.003% 0.003% None 

Director Steve Chang 180,000 180,000 - - - - 0.010% 0.010% - - - - - - - - 0.010% 0.010% None 

Director Ya-Chuan 
Tsai 

- - - - 45,000 45,000 0.003% 0.003% - - - - - - - - 0.003% 0.003% None 

Director 
Hong- Ching 
Investment 
Corporation 

180,000 180,000 - - - - 0.010% 0.010% - - - - - - - - 0.010% 0.010% None 

Director Kuei-Fong 
Wang 

- - - - 70,000 70,000 0.004% 0.004% 2,840,934 2,840,934 - - - - - - 0.164% 0.164% None 

Director Che-Nan 
Wang 

- - - - 5,000 5,000 0.000% 0.000% - - - - - - - - 0.000% 0.000% None 

Director Ching-Hsin 
Chang 

180,000 180,000 - - 70,000 70,000 0.014% 0.014% - - - - - - - - 0.014% 0.014% None 
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Remuneration to Directors Remuneration in the capacity as employees 

Director fees 

(A) 

From retained 
earnings 

(B) 

For services 

(C) 

The sum of A, B, and 
C in proportion to 

earnings 
Salary, bonus and 
special subsidies 

(D) 

Employee bonus from earnings 

(E) 

Quantity of shares 
entitled under 

employee stock 
option  

(F) 

The sum of A, B, C, 
D, and E to earnings 

The Bank 

All companies 
included in the 
consolidated 

financial statements 

Title Name 

The Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

Cash 
dividends 

Stock 
dividends 

Cash 
dividends 

Stock 
dividends 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

Remuneration 
from 

investees 
beyond 

subsidiaries 

Director Ming-Shan 
Chuang 

- - - - 70,000 70,000 0.004% 0.004% - - - - - - - - 0.004% 0.004% None 

Director Wen-Pin Liao 180,000 180,000 - - 75,000 75,000 0.014% 0.014% - - - - - - - - 0.014% 0.014% None 

Director Yuh-Eing 
Chung 

- 180,000 - - 70,000 109,000 0.016% 0.016% 3,301,972 3,301,972 - - - - - - 0.202% 0.202% None 

Director 
Po Han 

Investment 
Corporation 

180,000 180,000 - - - - 0.010% 0.010% - - - - - - - - 0.010% 0.010% None 
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Breakdown of remuneration 
 

Name 
Total (A+B+C) Total (A+B+C+D+E) Breakdown of remuneration 

paid to directors 
The Bank 

All companies included in 
the consolidated financial 

statements G 
The Bank 

All companies included in 
the consolidated financial 

statements H 

Less than 2,000,000 

Chao-Chang Wang, Yi-Te 
Chen, Ching-Huang Tsai, 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation, Hsin-Ching 
Chang, Chuang-Shang 
Hong, Steve Chang, 

Ya-Chuan Tsai, Hong- 
Ching Investment 

Corporation, Kuei-Fong 
Wang, Che-Nan Wang, 

Ching-Hsin Chang, 
Ming-Shan Chuang, 

Wen-Pin Liao, Yuh-Eing 
Chung and Po Han 

Investment Corporation 

Chao-Chang Wang, Yi-Te 
Chen, Ching-Huang Tsai, 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation, Hsin-Ching 
Chang, Chuang-Shang 
Hong, Steve Chang, 

Ya-Chuan Tsai, Hong- 
Ching Investment 

Corporation, Kuei-Fong 
Wang, Che-Nan Wang, 

Ching-Hsin Chang, 
Ming-Shan Chuang, 

Wen-Pin Liao, Yuh-Eing 
Chung and Po Han 

Investment Corporation 

Chao-Chang Wang, Yi-Te 
Chen, Ching-Huang Tsai, 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation, Hsin-Ching 
Chang, Chuang-Shang 
Hong, Steve Chang, 

Ya-Chuan Tsai, Hong- 
Ching Investment 

Corporation, Che-Nan 
Wang, Ching-Hsin Chang, 

Ming-Shan Chuang, 
Wen-Pin Liao, Yuh-Eing 

Chung and Po Han 
Investment Corporation 

Chao-Chang Wang, Yi-Te 
Chen, Ching-Huang Tsai, 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation, Hsin-Ching 
Chang, Chuang-Shang 
Hong, Steve Chang, 

Ya-Chuan Tsai, Hong- 
Ching Investment 

Corporation, Che-Nan 
Wang, Ching-Hsin Chang, 

Ming-Shan Chuang, 
Wen-Pin Liao, Yuh-Eing 

Chung and Po Han 
Investment Corporation 

2,000,000~5,000,000 Hsui-Nan Huang Hsui-Nan Huang Hsui-Nan Huang, Yuh-Eing 
Chung, Kuei-Fong Wang 

Hsui-Nan Huang, Yuh-Eing 
Chung, Kuei-Fong Wang 

5,000,000~10,000,000 - - - - 
10,000,000~15,000,000 - - - - 
15,000,000~30,000,000 - - - - 
30,000,000~50,000,000 - - - - 

50,000,000~100,000,000 - - - - 
100,000,000 above - - - - 

Total - - - - 
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B. Remunerations to Supervisors: Unit: NTD; % 

Remuneration to Supervisors 

Director fees (A) From retained earnings (B) For services (C) 

The sum of A, B, and C in proportion 
to earnings 

Title Name 

The Bank 

All companies 
included in the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The Bank 

All companies 
included in the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The Bank 

All companies 
included in the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The Bank 

All companies 
included in the 
consolidated 

financial statements 

Remuneration from 
investees beyond 

subsidiaries 

Resident Supervisor Su-Li Huang - - - - 200,000 200,000 0.011% 0.011% None 

Supervisor Chao-Hsiang Lee 180,000 180,000 - - 80,000 80,000 0.015% 0.015% None 

Supervisor Chien-Hwa Lee Fu - - - - 45,000 45,000 0.003% 0.003% None 

Supervisor Chorng-Bor Chen - - - - 85,000 85,000 0.005% 0.005% None 

Supervisor Jiann-Ell Huang - - - - 85,000 85,000 0.005% 0.005% None 

Supervisor Chou Chang 
Corporation. 780,000 780,000 - - - - 0.044% 0.044% None 

 
Breakdown of remuneration 

Name 

Total (A+B+C) Breakdown of remuneration paid to supervisors 

The Bank All companies included in the consolidated financial statements D 

Less than 2,000,000 Su-Li Huang, Chao-Hsiang Lee, Chien-Hwa Lee Fu, Chorng-Bor Chen, 
Jiann-Ell Huang, Chou Chang Corporation. 

Su-Li Huang, Chao-Hsiang Lee, Chien-Hwa Lee Fu, Chorng-Bor Chen, 
Jiann-Ell Huang, Chou Chang Corporation. 

2,000,000~5,000,000 - - 

5,000,000~10,000,000 - - 

10,000,000~15,000,000 - - 

15,000,000~30,000,000 - - 

30,000,000~50,000,000 - - 

50,000,000~100,000,000 - - 

100,000,000 above - - 

Total - - 
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C. Remuneration to President and Executive Vice Presidents: Unit: NTD; % 

Salaries Bonus and special 
subsidies Employee bonus from earnings The sum of the left three 

columns 
Proportion to earnings 

(%) 

Quantity of shares 
entitled under 

employee stock 
options 

The Bank All companies included in the 
consolidated financial statements 

Stock dividends Stock dividends 

Title Name 

The Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

Cash 
dividend Quantity Market 

price Amount 

Cash 
dividend Quantity Market 

price Amount 

The Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

The 
Bank 

All 
companies 
included in 

the 
consolidated 

financial 
statements 

Remuneration 
from investees 

beyond 
subsidiaries 

President Yuh-Eing 
Chung 2,739,333 2,739,333 562,639 562,639 - - - - - - - - 3,301,972 3,301,972 0.186% 0.186% - - None 

Executive 
Vice 

President 

Kuei-Fong 
Wang 

2,244,000 2,244,000 596,934 596,934 - - - - - - - - 2,840,934 2,840,934 0.160% 0.160% - - None 

Executive 
Vice 

President 

An-Feng 
Lin 

1,980,000 1,980,000 479,639 479,639 - - - - - - - - 2,459,639 2,459,639 0.138% 0.138% - - Yes 

Special 
Commissioner 

Ming-hsiung 
Wei 1,400,000 1,400,000 109,000 109,000 - - - - - - - - 1,509,000 1,509,000 0.085% 0.085% - - None 

Chief Auditor Jen-Chung 
Ting 1,980,000 1,980,000 477,639 477,639 - - - - - - - - 2,457,639 2,457,639 0.138% 0.138% - - None 

 
Breakdown of remuneration 

Name 
Breakdown of Remuneration paid to presidents and Executive Vice Presidents 

The Bank All companies included in the consolidated financial 
statements D 

Less than 2,000,000 Ming-hsiung Wei Ming-hsiung Wei 

2,000,000~5,000,000 Yuh-Eing Chung, Kuei-Fong Wang, An-Feng Lin, Jen-Chung 
Ting  

Yuh-Eing Chung, Kuei-Fong Wang, An-Feng Lin, Jen-Chung 
Ting  

5,000,000~10,000,000 - - 
10,000,000~15,000,000 - - 
15,000,000~30,000,000 - - 
30,000,000~50,000,000 - - 
50,000,000~100,000,000 - - 

100,000,000 above - - 
Total - - 

Remark: It is impossible to estimate the proposed allocation of employees’ bonus to be approved by the Board of Directors before the shareholders’ meeting, and no employees’ bonus was allocated in last year.  Therefore, it is 
impossible to calculate the bonus to be allocated this year according to the allocations in last year. 
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Note 1: Vehicles and monthly rent provided to Chairman and President 
Unit: NTD;  

Title Name Monthly rent Remuneration paid to 
driver in 2007 Remarks 

Chairman Hsui-Nan Huang The driver is the Bank’s 
employee. 

President Yuh-Eing Chung 
120,650 1,176,190 

The driver is retained 
externally. 

 
Note 2: Imputed house rent provided to Chairman, President and Executive Vice Presidents 
 

Unit: NTD; 

Title Name House and the land 
value 

Imputed monthly 
rent Remarks 

Chairman Hsui-Nan 
Huang 

President Yuh-Eing 
Chung 

Executive 
Vice 

President 

Kuei-Fong 
Wang 

Chief 
Auditor 

Jen-Chung 
Ting 

14,790,227 71,000 

The dormitory as provided was owned by the 
Bank itself.  The house cost was based on the 
information about the land cost and the price of 
acquisition minus allowance for depreciation of 
the buildings thereon (exclusive of the 
accessory equipments, additions and renovation 
of the buildings) specified in the catalogue of 
property at the end of 2007. 

 
(4) Specify and compare the remunerations to the Directors, Supervisors, President and 

Executive Vice Presidents of the Company in proportion to the earnings from the 
Company and companies stated in the consolidated financial statements in the last 2 
years, and specify the policies, standards, combinations, procedure of decision-making 
of remunerations and their relation to operation performance. 

 
A. Analysis on proportion to earnings Unit: NTD;  

2007 2006 

 
The Bank 

All companies included 
in the consolidated 
financial statements 

The Bank 
All companies included 

in the consolidated 
financial statements 

Director 14,340,406 15,452,074 12,079,434 12,706,434 

Supervisor 1,455,000 1,455,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 

President/Executive 
Vice Presidents 12,569,184 12,569,184 10,173,563 10,173,563 

Total 28,364,590 29,476,258 23,692,997 24,319,997 

Proportion to 
earnings 1.597% 1.658% Loss after 

taxation Loss after taxation 

 
B. The policies, standards, combinations, procedure of decision-making of 

remuneration and their relation to business performance: The Bank defined the 
policy of remuneration paid to directors, supervisors, President and Executive 
Vice Presidents in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation. 
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3. Status of Corporate Governance: 
 

(1) The function of the Board: 
The Board has held 15 sessions in 2007, and the attendance of directors and supervisors 
is specified as following: 

Title Name 
Attendance 
(attend as 

observer) B 

Attend 
through 
proxy 

Attendance rate 
(%) (note) Remarks 

Chairman Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Hsui-Nan Huang 15 - 100.00%  

Vice Chairman Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Chao-Chang Wang 8 5 53.33%  

Managing 
Director Yi-Te Chen 10 - 66.67%  

Managing 
Director 

Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Ching-Huang Tsai 15 - 100.00%  

Director Representative to Po Han Investment 
Corporation: Vacant, and to be filled - - -  

Director Representative to Yu-Feng Investment 
Corporation: Wen-Pin Liao 15 - 100.00%  

Director Representative to Chiung Tung Investment 
Corporation: Ching-Hsin Chang 14 - 93.33%  

Director Representative to Hong- Ching Investment 
Corporation: Ya-Chuan Tsai 9 - 60.00%  

Director Steve Chang - - -  

Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Yuh-Eing Chung 14 - 93.33%  

Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Kuei-Fong Wang 14 1 93.33%  

Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Che-Nan Wang 1 2 6.67%  

Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Hsin-Ching Chang 14 1 93.33%  

Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Chuang-Shang Hong 12 2 80.00%  

Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation: Ming-Shan Chuang 14 1 93.33%  

Resident 
Supervisor 

Representative to Chou Chang Corporation: 
Su-Li Huang 12 - 80.00%  

Supervisor Chao-Hsiang Lee 13 - 86.67%  

Supervisor Representative to Chou Chang Corporation: 
Chien-Hwa Lee Fu 8 - 53.33%  

Supervisor Representative to Chou Chang Corporation: 
Chorng-Bor Chen 14 - 93.33%  

Supervisor Representative to Chou Chang Corporation: 
Jiann-Ell Huang 14 - 93.33%  

Note: 
(1) Where a specific director or supervisor may be relieved from duties before the end of the fiscal year, 

specify their date of discharge. Their attendance (%) to Board session shall be calculated on the basis of 
the actual number of sessions held and the number of sessions they attended. 

(2) Where an election may be held for filling the vacancies of director or supervisor before the end of the 
fiscal year, list out both the new and the discharged directors and supervisors, and specify if they are the 
former director or supervisor, or newly elected, re-elected and the date of the election. Their attendance 
(%) to Board session shall be calculated on the basis of the actual number of sessions held and the number 
of sessions they attended. 
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(2) The function of Audit Review Board: none. 
 

(3) Items to be disclosed according to the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for the Banking Industry: Please refer to the Bank’s 
website (www.tcbbank.com.tw) About Taichung Bank→Disclosure of Information→Infomration to be Disclosed under Laws 

 
(4) Status of Corporate Governance as required for companies listed in TSE/GreTai, the variations and reasons 

 

Item Status 

Nonconformity to the 
Corporate Governance 
Best-Practice Principles 
for TSE/GTSM Listed 
Companies, the reasons 

and remedies 

1. Equity structure and shareholders equity 
(1) Handling suggestions from shareholders and 

disputes. 
(2) Control of the name list of dominant shareholders 

and the dominant parties behind such shareholders. 
(3) Establishment of the risk monitor mechanism and 

firewall between the Bank and affiliates. 

(1) The Bank has assigned a complaint hotline and an e-mail 
box for processing complaints and has posted the 
channels for filing complaints on the homepage. 

(2) The Bank has assigned a complaint hotline and an e-mail 
box for processing complaints and has posted the 
channels for filing complaints on the homepage. 

(3) The 19th Board of the Bank has resolved in its 21th 
Special Session dated September 27, 2007 the passing of 
“Regulations for Inter-Branch Financial Business 
Operation of Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. And 
its Affiliates” to upgrade its corporate governance 
mechanism and establish the system to maintain the 
going concern. 

None 

2. The organization of the Board and their duties: 
(1) The position of independent directors. 
(2) Regular review and assessment on the impartiality 

and independence of the external auditor. 

(1) None 
(2) The Bank has not retained the same public auditors to 

conduct financial auditing for the consecutive years. 

The Bank has not yet 
established the seats for 
independent directors. 
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Item Status 

Nonconformity to the 
Corporate Governance 
Best-Practice Principles 
for TSE/GTSM Listed 
Companies, the reasons 

and remedies 

3. The organization of supervisors and their duties: 
(1) The position of independent supervisors. 
(2) Communications between the supervisors and the 

employees and shareholders of the company. 

(1) The Bank has not yet established the seats for 
independent supervisors. 

(2) Communication between the Supervisors and the 
employees and shareholders of the Bank may be made 
via the complaint hotline and e-mail. 

The Bank has not yet 
established the seats for 
independent supervisors 

4. Communication channels with stakeholders. The Bank is listed on the TSEC and is required to make 
disclosures on the MOPS site. At the same time, disclosure 
is also required to be posted on the main page of the Bank’s 
website to assist the investors’ inquiry. 

None 

5. Disclosures 
(1) The company has established a website for the 

disclosure of its financial position and status of 
corporate governance. 

(2) The company also adopts other means for disclosure 
(establish a website in the English language, with 
specific personnel to gather and disclose relevant 
information, properly implement the system of 
spokesman, and meetings with institutional investors 
for offering will also be posted on the company 
website). 

(1) The Company has installed its website for disclosures of 
financial positions and status of operation as well as the 
status of corporate governance. 

(2) None. 

Disclose through website 
only. 

6. The establishment of functional committees such as the 
Nomination Committee or Salary Review Committee, 
and the status of their operations 

None. The Company has not yet 
established such 
committees. 
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Item Status 

Nonconformity to the 
Corporate Governance 
Best-Practice Principles 
for TSE/GTSM Listed 
Companies, the reasons 

and remedies 

7. If the company has instituted internal rules for corporate governance in accordance with the “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for the 
Banking Industry”, specify the status of enforcement and nonconformity: 
The Bank has not yet established “independent directors” or “Audit Review Board”, but scheduled to establish the “independent directors” in the 
reelection of directors and supervisors at next term (2008).  Except that, the Bank’s corporate governance is considered complying with the 
“Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for the Banking Industry”. 

8. Specify the social responsibility of the company (examples are: human rights, employee rights and privileges, environmental protection, 
community participation, supplier relations and the rights of stakeholders), the system and policy adopted and the performance of its social 
obligations: 
(1) The Bank is always dedicated to taking part in social welfare activities, and sponsoring the following activities: 

A. The school buses of Fan Yuan Hsiang Day Center in Changhua have expired past their useful years and should be replaced. 
Unfortunately, the Center failed to purchase the new school buses due to a budget shortage.  In consideration of the school children’s 
safety and to fulfill the social responsibility, the Bank donated a brand new school bus to the Day Center. 

B. In order to respond to the joint promotion of Moon Festival gifts provided by physically and mentally disordered welfare organizations as 
held by the Ministry of Interior, the Bank purchased cookies from Maria Social Welfare Foundation in Taichung City and gave them to five 
social welfare organizations, including Hsiang Shang Children Welfare Foundation (Kuan Yin Children's Home), Shih Fan Special 
Education Center, Tsung Hsin Orphanage, Jen An Social Welfare Foundation and Taiwan Fund for Children and Families in Taichung City. 

C. Sponsor National Chung Hsing University in their research on network technology and reengineering in management.  
D. Sponsor Ta Deh Commercial and Business School and schools at different levels 
E. The Bank has allocated a fraction of the amount consumed via the Ma Tsu Safety Card as contribution to Ta Chia Chen Nan Temple for 

worshiping the Ma Tsu to help the religious development and for social charity. 
F. Work with “Child Welfare League Foundation and Children’s Bureau, Ministry of Interior” to establish missing children and juveniles 

information management center to look for missing children 
G. Work with “Eden Social Welfare Foundation” in the charity petty cash donation activity and install the petty cash donation drafts in the 

Bank’s business locations 
H. Broadcast the public welfare commercials for “Children Are Us Farmer Planned by Children Are Us Foundation” and “Quit Smoking 
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Item Status 

Nonconformity to the 
Corporate Governance 
Best-Practice Principles 
for TSE/GTSM Listed 
Companies, the reasons 

and remedies 
Promoted by John Tung Foundation” in the multi-media channels at the Bank’s business locations 

I. Assist a number of social charity organizations, including “Children Are Us Foundation” and “Changhua County Private Christian Hsi Le 
Orphanage” to publish the donation activity information about the foods sold by the Foundation and Orphanage in the Bank’s credit card 
debit notes 

(2) The Bank has offered scholarships for schools from the senior high level for helping misfortunate students. Students of low income families 
are proved to be in poverty and who are outstanding in academic performance are entitled to such scholarship. 

(3) The Bank has employed 17 persons who are physically or mentally disordered as of the end of December 2007. 

9. Other information essential for the understanding of corporate governance (e.g., the continuing education of directors and supervisors, risk 
management policy and the enforcement of the standards for risk assessment, the protection of consumers and the capital utilization plan of 
customer policy, the enforcement by the Board on the avoidance of the conflict of interest, insurance coverage for the directors and the supervisors 
on liabilities and social responsibility of the company): 
� Continuing education for the Directors and Supervisors: 
(1) March 12, 2007: Resident Supervisor, Su-Li Huang, has taken a 3-hour course on “Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 37 on 

Effect of Intangible Assets on Enterprises” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 
(2) March 12, 2007: Resident Supervisor, Chien-Hwa Lee Fu, has taken a 3-hour course on “Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 37 

on Effect of Intangible Assets on Enterprises” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 
(3) March 12, 2007: Resident Supervisor, Chorng-Bor Chen, has taken a 3-hour course on “Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 37 

on Effect of Intangible Assets on Enterprises” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 
(4) March 22, 2007: Resident Supervisor, Su-Li Huang, has taken a 3-hour course on “Discussion About Effect of Private Placement Fund to 

Enterprises and Corporate Governance” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 
(5) March 22, 2007: Resident Supervisor, Jiann-Ell Huang, has taken a 3-hour course on “Discussion About Effect of Private Placement Fund to 

Enterprises and Corporate Governance” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 
(6) March 22, 2007: Supervisor, Chorng-Bor Chen, has taken a 3-hour course on “Discussion About Effect of Private Placement Fund to 

Enterprises and Corporate Governance” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 
(7) March 27, 2007: Supervisor, Chorng-Bor Chen, has taken a 3-hour course on “Insider Trading and Code of Ethics” held by the Securities and 
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Item Status 

Nonconformity to the 
Corporate Governance 
Best-Practice Principles 
for TSE/GTSM Listed 
Companies, the reasons 

and remedies 
Futures Development Foundation. 

(8) April 17, 2007: Director, Ya-Chuan Tsai, has taken a 3-hour course on “Corporate Governance of Holding Companies and Case Study in 
Taiwan” held by the Securities and Futures Development Foundation. 

(9) June 7, 2007: Supervisor, Chorng-Bor Chen, has taken a 8-hour course on “4th-term Taipei Corporate Governance Forum”held by Executive 
Yuan Financial Supervisory Committee. 

(10) June 29, 2007: Supervisor, Chorng-Bor Chen, has taken a 3-hour course on “Impact of Corporate Governance to Development and 
Management of Enterprises in Taiwan” as held by Corporate Governance Association in Taiwan. 

� The Bank’s directors would avoid any motions in which they had conflict of interest, and would never participate in voting. 
� Customers’ or consumers’ complaints or disputes shall be handled pursuant to the complaining procedure defined by the Bank, and followed up 

thereafter. 
� The pursuit of risk management policies and the standards for risk assessment: The Bank has instituted relevant risk management policies and 

standards for risk assessments, and calls for regular meetings on the management of risk assets. 
 
10. If there is any internal self-audit on corporate governance or audit conducted by external professional auditors, specify the result (or evaluation by 

external professional auditors), the major shortcomings (or recommendations) given, and the status of corrective action: None. 
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(5) Corporate Governance Practices and the relevant regulations: please refer to http: 
//newmops.tse.com.tw/corporate governance. 

(6) Other important information: please refer to http: //newmops.tse.com.tw/important 
information. 

(7) Status of Internal Control: 
A. Statement of Declaration of Internal Control: 

 
 

Declaration of Internal Control System 
Taichung Commercial Bank 

 
Date: March 6, 2008 

 
To:  Financial Supervisory Committee 
 

The Undersigned hereby duly declared that Taichung Commercial Bank has complied with 
the Regulation for the Implementation of Internal Control and Internal Audit Systems by Banks 
establishing its internal control system and exercising risk management. An independent and 
impartial Audit Department of the Bank has conducted an audit covering the period from January 1 
to Dec. 31, 2007, in accordance with applicable legal rules, and has reported to the Board and the 
Supervisors on a regular basis. The audit of securities dealing operation has been conducted in 
accordance with the Standards for Service Industries Securities and Futures Markets in the 
Establishment of Internal Control System promulgated by Securities and Futures Bureau of the 
Financial Supervisory Committee under the Executive Yuan for identifying the effectiveness of the 
internal control system, and determines if the design and enforcement of internal control are 
effective. Caution has been taken in the assessment of audits. Other than the circumstances referred 
to in the attached schedules, all functional units of the Bank have effectively enforced the internal 
control system of the bank and acted in compliance with applicable legal rules. This statement 
constitutes the summary content of Taichung Commercial Bank annual Report of current year and 
the Offering Prospectus, and shall be disclosed to the public. Any misrepresentation or concealment 
of the aforementioned disclosures shall be liable to violation of Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the 
Securities and Exchanges Act and the legal consequences thereof. 
 
 
 

Declarants: 
 

Chairman:              Hsui-Nan Huang (Authorized signature) 
 

President:              Yuh-Eing Chung (Authorized signature) 
 

Chief Auditor:           Jen-Tsung Ting (Authorized signature) 
 

Chief Compliance Officer:    An-Feng Lin (Authorized signature) 
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Improvement and Corrective Action of Internal Control System of Taichung Commercial Bank 
 

(Record date: December 31, 2007) 

Improvement Corrective Action Scheduled to Complete 
Corrective Action on 

Office of the Board of 
Directors: 
The Stock Registration 
Division’s office is located at 
11F, No. 50, Hsin Sheng S. 
Road, Sec. 1, Taipei City.  It is 
necessary to file the application 
with Financial Supervisory 
Committee for approval 
pursuant to “Regulations 
Governing Non-Business Place 
of Financial Organization”. 
 

The Bank has filed the application 
with the competent authority on 
February 4, 2008 for establishment of 
the non-business place for stock 
registration business. 

File the application with 
the competent authority on 
February 4, 2008. 

Electronic Banking Dept:   

The Bank failed to agree in the 
Bank’s “Application Form For 
Internet Banking 
Service/Update” that the period 
of review should be more than 
five days, and also failed to 
agree the delivery of the 
agreement.  

The Bank has amended the 
“Application Form for e-Baking 
Service/Update” and “Terms and 
Conditions for Internet Banking 
Service” on December 25, 2007 by 
adding the provisions requiring that 
the period of review should be more 
than five days and the delivery of the 
agreement, and also notified the 
various business entities in writing 
that the new agreement version 
should be applied as of March 1, 
2008. 

March 1,2008 

Treasury Department:   

Short-term stock investment 
positions appeared to be overly 
concentrated on one single 
stock or the same industry and, 
therefore, the risk was 
concentrated overly. 

The Bank’s short-term stock 
investment amount in one single stock 
and the same industry has been 
reduced.  The short-term stock 
investment positions have been 
dispersed to the stock in the 
categories of plastics, electronics, 
finance, transportation and 
construction to meet the principle of 
risk dispersion. 

In consideration of the 
risk, the corrective action 
has been taken until 
February 2008. 
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B. Disclose the audit report by independent accountants with a special audit on 
internal control system, if there is any: None. 

 
(8) Punishment of the company and its employees in violation of law, in major 

shortcomings and in status of correction in the last 2 years are required to be disclosed 
as follows: 
A. Processing officer or staff charged by public prosecutors on professional 

misconducts 
(i) The Bank clerk, Chen Wen-Ke, was a sales officer when he worked at 

Lungjing Branch of the Bank in the period of 2004 and 2005. He made use 
of his job position to embezzle the money collected from Clients Taichung 
Supermarket and Lin Ching-Tsai, and he further used a forged passbook and 
personal seal of Client Lai Ming-Ho to withdraw funds from the account of 
this client and collected funds cashed in from checks payable to this client. 
These are acts of embezzlement and larceny.He was therefore charged by 
the Taichung District Prosecutors Office under Cheng-Zi (94) No. 18983 
and (95) No. 169, 1971, 3005, 4705, 9205, 11630, and 14332. The case was 
closed and he was charged in violation of Articles 216 and 210 of the 
Criminal Code of forgery, Article 336-2 of the same law on conversion of 
property, Article 339-1 of the same law on fraud and Article 71-1 of the 
Commercial Accounting Law on willful presentation of phony accounting 
documents.  Taichung District Court judged on March 16, 2007 that he 
should be sentenced to imprisonment of 8 months; in lieu thereof, the 
imprisonment may be commuted to a fine, for violation of Commercial 
Accounting Law, and the Criminal Code for forgery of private instruments 
and misappropriation. 
The Bank has taken a number of assessments to improve its service quality, 
broaden its clientele base and enhance its internal control, including the 
institution of “Regulation for Delivery of Important Items and Designated 
Collection of Funds” for proper management of assignment orders issued to 
the external service staff and the collection of funds for daily settlement. In 
addition, the Bank has also properly regulated the pick up of “Cash Payment 
Registration Book”, “Collection of Financial Instruments Registration 
Book” and the money being collected by the external staff. 

(ii) Banking officer Chun-Tao Liu at the Securities Dealing section of the Bank 
and Hsuen-Chi Liu, the daughter of client Yang-Kwei Liu  were allegedly 
involved in larceny of the stock certificates and conversion of the passbook 
of the client in July 2004. They were charged by the District Attorney 
Office of the District Court of Taichung under (95)Cheng-Zi No. 7264. The 
case was closed. They were charged in violation of Article 210 of the 
Criminal Code on forgery, Article 216 of the same law for using forged or 
phony documents and Article 216 of the same law on conversion of 
property. Liu Chun-Tao was found guilty of forgery under a court ruling 
dated October 20 2006 by District Court of Taichung and was sentenced to a 
prison term of six months with 2 years probation. 
The Bank has revised the section of “procedure for withdrawal and 
deposits” in its “Handbook of Passbooks and Deposits Management” for 
enhancing internal control and avoiding disputes derived from transactions 
with clients. In practice, all banking units shall require  client to specify the 
PIN for “inter-branch transactions” in the withdrawal vouchers with 
passbook accounts when presenting the passbooks of “inter-branch 
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transaction” account for withdrawal (including cash withdrawal and account 
transfers). 

(iii) Banking staff Liang - Wen  Chen at Luku Branch made use of his position 
at the branch to prepare  and apply a forged personal seal bearing the titles 
of clients Chung-Chiang Cheng and Lee-Ching Wu to request for loans 
from the Bank under the titles of the aforementioned clients to repay his 
own debts without the authorization and acknowledgement of the clients. He 
further used the same means to falsely use the title of client Tsai-Yan Liu to 
pick up blank checks for his personal use, which caused damage to the 
client. He was charged by the District Attorney Office of District Court of 
Nantou under (95) Cheng-Zi No. 2051, 2591, and 2870. The case was 
closed. He was charged in violation of Article 216 of the Criminal Code for 
using forged or phony documents, Article 210 of the same law on forgery, 
Article 339 of the same law on fraud, and Article 201 of the same law on 
forgery and use of marketable securities. The case is in legal proceedings. 
The Bank has revised its regulation governing “The Custody and Pick Up of 
Blank Check Books” for enhancing internal control and the management of 
custody and picking up of blank check books. The Auditing Office of the 
Bank has set up a task force consisting of different teams to devise means  
to tighten control over the banking staff in processing transactions ordered 
by clients. They have proposed a number of corrective action plans for the 
requirements of internal control, and have designated responsible units to 
enforce corrective actions. They presented their resolutions in the “Report 
on the Strengthening and Improvement of Internal Control over Banking 
and Client Transactions of The Bank” whereby all responsible functional 
units shall establish respective operation handbooks and regulations in 
compliance with  with internal control. 

 
B. Monetary punishment by Financial Supervisory Committee in violation of the 

Banking Act.: None. 
 

C. Serious shortcomings demanded by FSC for correction: None. 
 

D. Punishment by FSC pursuant to Article 61-1 of the Banking Act: 
(i) According to FSC’s general examination on the Bank’s business in 2007, 

the Bank’s Stock Registration Division office was located at 11F, No. 50, 
Hsin Sheng S. Road, Sec. 1, Taipei City, and two employees were assigned 
to the premises to engage in the stock registration affairs.  However, the 
Bank failed to file the application with FSC for approval on the 
establishment of the office on January 1, 2006 pursuant to Article 3 of the
�Regulations Governing Non-Business Place of Financial Organization�
enacted under Paragraph 3, Article 57 of the Banking Act and, therefore, 
violated Paragraph 3, Article 57 of the Banking Act.  The Bank was 
corrected by FSC pursuant to Paragraph 1.5, Article 61-1 of the same Act. 
The Bank has filed the application with the competent authority on February 
4, 2008 for establishment of the non-business place for stock registration 
business, and also enhanced the compliance training programs.  The Bank 
will strictly comply with the relevant requirements thereafter. 

(ii) According to FSC’s general examination on the Bank’s business in 2007, 
19th term of the Board at its 5th session resolved on April 27, 2006 that the 
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deputy manager of International Business Department, Cheng-Yu Lai, was 
transferred to assume the responsible person of International Banking 
Branch; however, the resolution was not reported to FSC for approval 
before the effective date of the update, May 4, 2006.  The application for 
update was not filed with FSC until February 13, 2007 and, therefore, the 
Bank violated Article 21-1 of the International Banking Regulations and 
Article 9 of the Enforcement Rules of International Banking 
Regulations.Considering that the Bank had some misunderstanding and 
would make corrections in accordance with the financial laws and 
regulations as amended from time to time, revise its internal regulations and 
enhance the compliance system, FSC corrected the Bank pursuant to 
Paragraph 1.5, Article 61 of the Banking Act. 
The Bank has filed the application with the competent authority on February 
13, 2007 for change of the responsible person of International Banking 
Branch.  The competent authority also approved the application on March 
20, 2007.  The Bank has enhanced the compliance training prorams, and 
will strictly comply with the relevant requirements thereafter. 

 
E. Casualty or accident due to corruption, major incident or failure to comply with 

the safety assessments, which caused damage exceeding NT$50 million in 
particular incident or in particular fiscal year: None. 

 
F. Other disclosures as demanded by FSC: None. 

 
(9) Important resolutions of shareholders’ meetings and directors’ meetings: 

 

Date Meeting Important resolution Discussion about execution of 
resolution 

Dec. 7, 2006 Special 
shareholders’ 

meeting 

1. The Bank resolved to 
reduce its shares  by 
NT$7,339,264,000 to 
improve asset quality and 
vitalize its financial 
structure thereby 
eliminating its 733,926,400  
outstanding shares. 

2. The Bank resolved to raise 
capital by issuing new 
shares amounting to NT$5 
billion in order to fortify its 
capital structure and to 
upgrade its capital 
adequacy ratio. 

The General Meeting of the 
Shareholders resolved in interim 
session dated December 7 2006 to 
reduce the shares  of the Bank 
amounted to NT$7,339,264,000 by 
eliminating 733,926,400 outstanding 
shares. At the same time the meeting 
also resolved to raise capital by 
issuing new shares of common stock 
amounting to 500 million shares at 
NT$10/share. The resolutions were 
reported to FSC on January 22 2007 
under the Financial Supervisory 
Committee  No. 0950158669 
confirmation letter. The Bank has 
successfully raised NT$5.75 billion 
(including the issue stock 
premiums), which have been fully 
collected by the end of March 2007. 
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Date Meeting Important resolution Discussion about execution of 
resolution 

Jan. 23, 
2007 

Board of 
Directors 

Determine the “Shares and 
dividends mitigation date”, 
“Price of new shares for 
issuance”, “Subscription date”, 
“investments due date” and 
“new share issuing date” for 
2006 

Same as above 

Feb. 2, 2007 Special 
directors’ 
meeting 

1. Interpleaded the mitigation 
of shares and dividends and 
the elimination of 
outstanding shares and 
related process for releasing 
new shares. 

2. Determined the “Shares and 
dividends mitigation date”, 
“Issuance price of new 
shares”, “Subscription 
date”, “Collection due date” 
and “New shares issuing 
date”. 

Same as above 

March 29, 
2007 

Special 
directors’ 
meeting 

1. The Bank’s Capital 
Allocation Table for 2006 

2. Date, location and cause of 
the general shareholders’ 
meeting for 2006 

The general shareholders’ meeting 
was called on June 15, 2007, and the 
Bank’s capital allocation table for 
2006 was passed upon resolution. 

April 25, 
2007 

Board of 
Directors 

The Board of Directors 
resolved to reinvest in 
incorporation of “Taichung 
Bank Insurance Brokerage 
Co., Ltd.”. 

1. Approved by FSC’s Letter under 
Ching-Kuan-3-Tze No. 
09602115910 dated August 30, 
2007 

2. Complete the registration for 
incorporation of company with 
the Ministry of Economic Affairs 
on September 26, 2007 

July 13, 
2007 

Board of 
Directors 

Publish the financial forecast 
2007 passing 19th term Board 
at 10th session, which has been 
audited by CPA 

Complete the publication of the 
financial forecast 2007 before July 
13, 2007 as required 

August 13, 
2007 

Special 
directors’ 
meeting 

Publish that the manager of 
Treasury Department would be 
assumed by Executive Vice 
President Kuei-Fong Wang 
concurrently 

Appointed pursuant to the Bank’s 
letter under Chung-Jen-Shih-Tze No. 
09607010431 dated August 13, 2007 
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Date Meeting Important resolution Discussion about execution of 
resolution 

Oct. 16, 
2007 

Board of 
Directors 

Scheduled to apply with FSC 
for issuance of the financial 
bonds under the limit of NT$4 
billion 

1. The Board resolved to issue 
subordinated bonds in the amount 
of NT$3.5 billion for the duration 
of 5.5 years and in installments. 

2. Approved by FSC’s Letter under 
Ching-Kuan-(4)-Tze No. 
09600481190 dated Nov. 14, 
2007. 

3. Conduct the public offering in the 
amount of NT$2.4 billion on 
December 21, 2007 and thereby 
upgrade the Bank’s capital 
adequacy rate to more than 10% 

March 24, 
2008 

Special 
directors’ 
meeting 

1. Date, location and cause of 
the general shareholders’ 
meeting for 2008 

2. Draft the proposal for 
allocation of earnings for 
2007 

The Bank’s general shareholdres’ 
meeting for 2008 is scheduled to be 
held on June 13, 2008, and will 
review the motion for allocation of 
earnings for 2007. 

 
(10) Any different opinions from directors or supervisors over important resolution of the 

Board of the Directors in the most recent year to date this report  printed with records 
and written declaration, and the content of such opinions: None. 

 
(11) Information on discharge and resignation of parties relating to the financial report 

(including Chairman, President, chief accountants and internal auid officers, etc.) in the 
most recent year until the date the Annual Reprot was printed: None. 
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4. CPA Information 
(1) Non-auditing fees paid for the CPA, CPA firm and their affiliates exceeded the auditing 

fees over twenty-five percent: None. 
 

(2) Change of CPA firm and the auditing fees of the year changing the CPA firm less than 
that of the previous year: None. 

 
(3) Auditing fees were 15% less than that of the previous year; disclose the amount, 

proportion and the reason: None. 
 
5. Information on change of accountants 

None. 
 
6. Disclose the names, and titles of the chairman, president, financial or accounting manager of 

the company who has worked with the CPA firms who conducted the audit of the company or 
the affiliates to such firms in the most recent year, and their affiliation with the CPA firms and 
its affiliates 
None. 
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7. Changes in shareholdings by directors, supervisors, and managers through transfer or pledged 
under lien and that are required to be declared pursuit to Article 25-3 of Banking law 

 
(1) Shares Ownership Change Status: 

For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Managing Director Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation (27,493,298) - 500,000 - 

Managing Director Yi-Te Chen (2,172,578) - 9,641,703 - 

Director Po Han Investment 
Corporation (652) - - - 

Director Yu-Feng Investment 
Corporation (550,762) - - - 

Director Chiung Tung Investment 
Corporation (1,200,866) - 1,840,000 - 

Director Hong- Ching Investment 
Corporation (224,282) - - - 

Director Steve Chang - - - - 

Supervisor Chou Chang Corporation. (1,365,211) - - - 

Supervisor Chao-Hsiang Lee - - - - 

President Yuh-Eing Chung 64,300 - - - 

Executive Vice 
President Kuei-Fong Wang 83,600 - - - 

Executive Vice 
President An-Feng Lin 65,542 - - - 

Chief Auditor Jen-Chung Ting 100,400 - - - 

Special 
Commissioner Ming-hsiung Wei - - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & Chief 

Secretary, Office of 
the Board 

Kai-Yu Lin 5,000 - - - 

Vice President & 
Deputy General 

Manager, General 
Affairs Department 
(on behalf of Senior 

Vice President & 
General Manager, 
General Affairs 

Department) 

Ching-hu Hsieh - - - - 

General Manager, 
Business 

development Dept 
Ching-Kun Lin 96,480 - - - 
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For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

General Manager, 
Loan 

Administration Dept 
Hsueh-Hsien Liao 140,135 - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & General 
Manager, Personal 

Department 

Chi-Chuan Fang 51,600 - - - 

Senior Vice 
President & General 

Manager, 
Accounting 
Department 

Shu-Chen Chen 87,023 - - - 

General Manager, 
Electronic Banking 

Dept 
Tzi-Kwang Chen 101,697 - - - 

General Manager, 
Dept of Debt 

Collection and 
Asset Recovery. 

Yi-Yuan Tung 124,567 - - - 

General Manager, 
Trust Dept Chen-Sheng Hong 78,798 - (9,000) - 

General Manager, 
Risk Management 

Dept 
Hung-Tzer Tsai 136,747 - - - 

General Manager, 
Treasury Dept Kuei-Fong Wang 83,600 - - - 

General Manager, 
International 

Business Dept 
Cheng-Yu Lai 68,295 - - - 

General Manager, 
Securities 
Brokerage 

Kun-Shin Hu - - - - 

General Manager, 
Business Dept Chien-Fa Hsu 90,306 - - - 

General Manager, 
Siangshang Branch Yung-Chang Lai 5,938 - - - 

General Manager, 
Daching Branch Hwei-Chin Lu 54,535 - - - 

General Manager, 
W. Taichung 

Branch 
Shih-Pin Chen 61,150 - - - 

General Manager, 
Chungte Branch Jie-Li Jiang 56,300 - - - 

General Manager, 
Chungcheng Branch Chi-Hsien Lee 116,461 - - - 
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For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

General Manager, 
Hsitun Branch Cheng-Wen Ni 47,948 - - - 

General Manager, 
Nantun Branch Tai-Min Liao 47,457 - - - 

General Manager, 
Neihsin Branch Chung-Fa Chou 37,107 - (11,000) - 

General Manager, 
Dadu Branch Rai-Cheng Yang 112,790 - - - 

General Manager, 
Taiping Branch Chia-Wei Tsai 54,736 - - - 

General Manager, 
Taichungkang 

Branch  
Deh-Wei Chia 106,300 - - - 

General Manager, 
Szumin Branch Hsin-Fu Liang 55,81 - - - 

General Manager, 
Chungkang Branch Chang-Chi Liu 51,800 - - - 

General Manager, 
S. Taichung Branch Liang-Tsai Hung 70,179 - - - 

General Manager, 
N. Taichung Branch Ming-Ta Lu 60,794 - - - 

General Manager, 
Dali Branch Pi-Hwa Chang 59,481 - - - 

General Manager, 
Taiping Branch Tzer-Hsiu Lin 60,087 - - - 

General Manager, 
Houli Branch Rai-Fang Chen 100,826 - - - 

General Manager, 
Daya Branch Ming-Ren Hsu 86,868 - - - 

General Manager, 
Tan Tzu Branch Ming-Hai Lin 60,828 - - - 

General Manager, 
Sheng Kang Branch Chun-Yin Wang 70,502 - - - 

General Manager, 
Fongyuan Branch Chung-Liang Ho 60,000 - - - 

General Manager, 
Dachia Branch Hung-Mao Chang 94,467 - - - 

General Manager, 
Chingsui Branch Tung-Po Yang 129,713 - - - 

General Manager, 
Shalu Branch Chung-Hsien Lee 81,017 - - - 

General Manager, 
Wufong Branch Chi-Hsien Chen (13,300) - - - 
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For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

General Manager, 
Dongshih Branch Yue-Mei Liu 69,365 - - - 

General Manager, 
E. Fongyuan Branch Shu-Deh Chang 58,383 - (18,000) - 

General Manager, 
Wutze Branch Kuo-Chin Chi 61,741 - - - 

General Manager, 
S. Fongyuan Branch Kuo-Chi Lin 80,983 - - - 

General Manager, 
Nanyang Branch Ming-Tao Chang 58,276 - - - 

General Manager, 
Nantou Branch Deng-Yueh Peng 42,217 - (29,000) - 

General Manager, 
Chushan Branch Chien-rong Ge 49,990 - - - 

General Manager, 
Shuili Branch Wei-yao Gu (13,236) - - - 

General Manager, 
Puli Branch  Chien-Min Chou 52,992 - - - 

General Manager, 
Tsaotun Branch Hsin-Chi Wu 86,596 - - - 

General Manager, 
Mingchien Branch Kwei-Ching Ho 59,392 - - - 

General Manager, 
Luku Branch Chung-Chang Hsieh 57,200 - - - 

General Manager, 
Changhua Branch Chin-Feng Huang 50,955 - - - 

General Manager, 
Lukang Branch  Lien-Cheng Wu 104,973 - - - 

General Manager, 
Shihu Branch Chien-Hao Chen 71,091 - - - 

General Manager, 
Erlin Branch Pao-Yuan Chen 51,830 - - - 

General Manager, 
Peitou Branch Wei-huang Yu 51,800 - - - 

General Manager, 
Teinchung Branch Kuo-Liang Chen 75,050 - - - 

General Manager, 
Yuanlin Branch Cheng-Han Hsieh 81,954 - - - 

General Manager, 
Homei Branch Wen-Tung You 58,095 - - - 

General Manager, 
Shetou Branch Yu-Nien Kang 51,324 - - - 
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For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

General Manager, 
Huatan Branch Chung-ho Chen 35,519 - - - 

General Manager, 
Yungchiung Branch Wen-Chu Lee 53,624 - - - 

General Manager, 
Siushui Branch Pi-Wei Wang 46,710 - - - 

General Manager, 
Shangkong Branch Hsin-Ru Kao 62,334 - - - 

General Manager, 
Dachu Branch Ming-Cheng Wu 60,628 - - - 

General Manager, 
N. Yuanlin Branch Shun-Deh Tsai 59,098 - - - 

General Manager, 
Peitou Branch Yu-Chao Ma 66,747 - - - 

General Manager, 
Sungchu Branch Kwang-Chi Chen 62,648 - - - 

General Manager, 
Waipu Branch Chung-Teng Hung 62,241 - - - 

General Manager, 
Puhsin Branch Li-Deh Liu 26,459 - - - 

General Manager, 
Taipei Branch Tai-Yuan Huang 32,800 - - - 

General Manager, 
Shihjouchia Branch  Han-ching Tsai 46,113 - - - 

General Manager, 
Lungjing Branch You-Fu Chang 64,000 - - - 

General Manager, 
Puyen Branch Tsung-chang Tseng 100,151 - - - 

General Manager, 
Sung Shan Branch Yao Chi Lin - - - - 

General Manager, 
Sanchung Branch Yu-Yen Tsai 31,700 - - - 

General Manager, 
Kaohsiung Branch Lee-Ming Ou 40,000 - - - 

General Manager, 
W. Shihu Branch Chien-ting Lin 46,252 - - - 

General Manager, 
Linko Branch Chun-Tzer Lee 31,000 - - - 

General Manager, 
Huwei Branch Cheng-Hsien Ni 16,803 - - - 

General Manager, 
Wanli Branch Kuei-huang Hai - - - - 
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For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

General Manager, 
Chunan Branch  Ting-feng Jan (135) - - - 

General Manager, 
Dounan Branch Yi-Ren Teng 57,261 - - - 

General Manager, 
Neihu Branch Ruei-tung Wu - - - - 

Deputy General 
Manager, Taipei 
Regional Center 

(On behalf of 
General Manager, 
BanChiao Branch) 

Shi-fa Sung (30,000) - - - 

Deputy General 
Manager, Fongshan 

Branch 
(On behalf of 

General Manager, 
Fongshan Branch) 

Ching-shun Wang 30,900 - (20,581) - 

General Manager, 
Xinzhuang Branch Ming-Hsiang Kuo - - - - 

General Manager, 
Pingjhen Branch Ting-Kuang Huang - - (148,000) - 

General Manager, 
Min Hsiung Branch Chun-te Lin (380,171) - (199,000) - 

General Manager, 
Taoyuan Branch Chun-wen Chen - - - - 

General Manager, 
Yung Kung Branch Ching-Hsiang Lin 64,453 - - - 

General Manager, 
Regional Center, 

Taichung District I 
Wen-Chun Jan 39,000 - - - 

General Manager, 
Chang Hwa 

Regional Center 
He-Chin Chang 201,664 - - - 

General Manager, 
Regional Center, 

Taichung District II 
Yueh-Chin Hsieh 94,309 - (24,000) - 

General Manager, 
Nantou Regional 

Center 
Kuo-cheng Chou 87,450 - (72,000) - 

General Manager, 
Taipei Regional 

Center 

Ming-hsiung Wei 
(concurrent post) - - - - 

Major Shareholder China Man-Made Fiber 
Co., Ltd. (17,778,924) - - - 
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For the Year Ended December 
31, 2007 

For the Year Ended April 15, 
2008  

Title Name Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
No. of Shares 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

No. of 
Pledged 
Shares 

Principle 
shareholder 

Lin Yuan Investment Co., 
Ltd. (21,364,143) - - - 

Principle 
shareholder Wan Bau Co., Ltd. (10,141,238) - - - 

Principle 
shareholder 

Far Glory Life Insurance 
Corporation 25,105,000 - - - 

Principle 
shareholder 

I Joung Investment Co., 
Ltd. (5,396,339) - (2,765,000)  

Principle 
shareholder 

Wise Target Investment 
Co., Ltd. (6,051,211) - (400,000) - 

 
(2) Information of shares ownership transfer: None. 

 
(3) Information of shares ownership change: None. 
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8. Information on Top 10 shareholders who are related parties as defined in the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.6 
April 15, 2008 

Own shareholdings Shares Held by Spouse 
& Dependents 

Shareholding Held 
Under the Name of 

Others 

Information on Top 10 shareholders who are related parties as defined in the 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.6 Remarks 

Name 

No. of Shares Ratio of 
Shareholding   

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding  

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding  Name Relation  

China Man-Made Fiber Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Kuei-Hsien Wang 
195,605,076 14.9994% - - - - Pan Asia Chemical Corporation 

Kin to the chairman within the 
second pillar under the Civil 
Code 

 

Pan Asia Chemical Corporation 

Chairman: Chao-Chang Wang 
91,927,702 7.0492% - - - - China Man-Made Fiber Co., Ltd. 

Kin to the chairman within the 
second pillar under the Civil 
Code 

 

Lin Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Cheng-Ta Tsai 
77,035,857 5.9073% - - - - Wan Bau Co., Ltd. the same as chairman  

Wan Bau Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Cheng-Ta Tsai 
36,567,762 2.8041% - - - - Lin Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. the same as chairman  

Far Glory Life Insurance Corporation 

Chairman: Teng-Hsiung Chao 
25,105,000 1.9251% - - - - - -  

I Joung Investment Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Yi-Te Chen 
16,693,369 1.2801% - - - - - -  

Wise Target Investment Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Yu-Fang Tsai 
13,549,356 1.0390% - - - - - -  

Da Fa Investment Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Lee Chao-Ching 
10,273,000 0.7878% - - - - - -  

JC Culture & Publishing Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Chiang Feng-Nien 
9,707,770 0.7444% - - - - - -  

Yi-Te Chen 9,641,703 0.7393% - - - - - -  
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9. Quantity of shareholdings of the same investee by the company, directors, supervisors, 
manager of the company, direct or indirect subsidiaries in proportion to the combined 
holdings of all 

 
Unit: Share; % 

Investment made by the 
Bank 

Investment made by 
directors, supervisors, 

managers, and/or direct or 
indirect subsidiaries 

Combined investment 
Investee 

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding  

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding  

No. of 
Shares 

Ratio of 
Shareholding  

Taichung 
Commercial 
Bank Life 
Insurance 
Agency 
Company Ltd. 
 

594,000 99 - - 594,000 99 

Taichung 
Commercial 
Bank Property 
Insurance 
Agency 
Company Ltd. 
 

297,000 99 - - 297,000 99 

Taichung 
Commercial 
Bank Insurance 
Agent Co., Ltd. 

600,000 100 - - 600,000 100 
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IV. Status of Capital Planning 
 
1. Shares and Dividends 
 

(1) Capital Source 
 

Authorized shares capital Paid-in sharescapital Remarks 
Year 
and 

month 
Issuing price No. of Shares 

(Stock) Amount (NTD) No. of Shares 
(Stock) Amount (NTD) 

Sources 
of shares 

and 
dividends 

Investment 
in kind 

2006  1,538,014,400 15,380,144,000 1,538,014,400 15,380,144,000 - - 

March 
2007 

11.5 
(NT$/share) 

2,000,000,000 20,000,000,000 1,304,088,000 13,040,880,000 
Capital 

from new 
shares 

- 

Note: The Bank has resolved to reduce its shares by NT$7,339,264,000 under a resolution of a special session of the 
General Meeting of the Shareholders dated December 7 2006 whereby 733,926,400 outstanding shares were 
reduced. The same resolution also granted the issuance of 500 million shares of common stocks by the Bank at 
NT$10/share. The petition for issuance of these new shares has been approved by Executive Yuan Financial 
Supervisory Committee under Letter Jin-Guan-Zheng (I) No. 0950158699 dated January 22 2007. The Bank has 
successfully raised NT$5.75 billion from issuance of new shares (at premium) in 2006 and has collected the 
investments in full amount by March 31 2007. 

 

Authorized capital 
Type of shares 

Outstanding shares Unissued Shares Total 
Remarks 

Registered common shares 1,304,088,000 695,912,000 2,000,000,000 Listed 

 
(2) Composition of shareholders: 

April 15, 2008 

Composition of 
Shareholders 

 

Number 

Government 
Apparatus 

Financial 
Institution 

Other 
Juridical 
Person 

Individual 
Foreign 

Institution and 
Foreigner 

Total 

No. of Person 7 2 169 67,807 28 68,013 

Shares 6,771,997 26,715,000 521,787,390 721,781,655 27,031,958 1,304,088,000 

% Owned 0.52% 2.05% 40.01% 55.34% 2.08% 100% 
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(3) Distribution of Shares: 
Unit: share; person; % 

April 15, 2008 

Range of Shares No. of Shareholders Shares % Owned 

1 to 999 27,018 9,541,549 0.73% 

1,000 to 5,000 23,720 56,818,027 4.36% 

5,001 to 10,000 7,820 57,240,667 4.39% 

10,001 to 15,000 2,430 29,872,079 2.29% 

15,001 to 20,000 1,907 34,112,401 2.62% 

20,001 to 30,000 1,572 39,523,959 3.03% 

30,001 to 50,000 1,436 57,737,456 4.43% 

50,001 to 100,000 1,092 79,835,007 6.12% 

100,001 to 200,000 517 73,391,331 5.63% 

200,001 to 400,000 241 67,085,926 5.14% 

400,001 to 600,000 91 44,810,696 3.44% 

600,001 to 800,000 37 25,890,589 1.98% 

800,001 to 1,000,000 26 23,208,565 1.78% 

1,000,001 to 1,200,000 22 24,588,189 1.89% 

1,200,001 to 1,400,000 20 25,450,344 1.95% 

1,400,001 to 1,600,000 6 8,995,626 0.69% 

1,600,001 to 1,800,000 7 11,859,628 0.91% 

1,800,001 to 2,000,000 7 13,512,535 1.04% 

2,000,001 and above 44 620,613,426 47.58% 

Total 68,013 1,304,088,000 100% 
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(4) Name of Principle Shareholders: 
April 15, 2008 

Stock 
Name of Principle shareholders 

Shares % Owned 

China Man-Made Fiber Co., Ltd. 195,605,076 14.9994% 

Pan Asia Chemical Corporation 91,927,702 7.0492% 

Lin Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. 77,035,857 5.9073% 

Wan Bau Co., Ltd. 36,567,762 2.8041% 

Far Glory Life Insurance Corporation 25,105,000 1.9251% 

I Joung Investment Co., Ltd. 16,693,369 1.2801% 

WISE TARGET INVESTMENT LIMITED. 13,549,356 1.0390% 

 
(5) Information on market price per share, net values, earning and dividend per share in the 

last two years: 
Currency: in NTD 

Year 
Item 

2006 2007 Up to March 
31, 2008 

The Highest 8.84 16.60 16.15 

The Lowest 5.59 7.50 12.70 Market Price 
Per Share 

Average 6.58 12.55 13.93 

Before Distribution 5.41 12.16 12.47 Net Value 
Per Share After Distribution 5.41 - - 

Average Weighted  
Number. of Shares (1,000 shares) 

804,088 1,187,650  
(Note 1) 1,304,088 Earnings Per 

Share 
Earnings Per Share ($) (5.85) 1.50 0.31 

Cash Dividends - - - 

Retained Shares Distribution - - - Free-Gratis 
Dividends Capital Reserve Shares 

Distribution - - - 

Dividend Per 
Share 

(Note 5) 

Retained Dividends - - - 

Price-Earnings Ratio (note 2) (1.12) 8.37 44.94 

Dividend Yield (note 3) - - - 
Return on 
investment 
Analysis 

Cash Dividend Yield (note 4) - - - 

Note 1: A special shareholders’ meeting held on December 7, 2006 resolved to reduce the shares of the Bank by 
NT$7,339,264 thousand whereby 733,926,000 outstanding common shares were eliminated. The Board 
resolved to make February 8, 2007 the record date of capital mitigation.  As such, the weighed average 
quantity of outstanding shares was 804,088 thousand shares in 2006 upon retroactive adjustment.March 7, 
2007 was set as the “new shares issuing and subscription date”.  A total of 500,000 thousand shares were 
issued, amounting to NT$5.75 billion.  The offering has been completed on March 26, 2007.  The 
weighted average quantity of outstanding shares upon capital mitigation in 2007 was 1,187,650 thousand 
shares. 

Note 2: Price-Earnings Ratio = Average close price of the year/earnings per share 
Note 3: Dividend Yield = Average close price of the year/cash dividend per share 
Note 4: Cash Dividend Yield = cash dividend per share/ Average closing price of the year 
Note 5: The motion for dividend allocation for 2007 has not been resolved by the shareholders’ meeting and, 

therefore, is not disclosed for the time being. 
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(6) Dividend Policies and Capital Utilization Plan Status: 

A. Dividend policy in the Bank’s Articles of Incorporation: 
Article 7: The Bank’s dividend stock is calculated at the annual interest rate of 8%, 
provided that no interest should accrue from the principal where the Bank has 
retained no earnings. 
Article 35: Any profit from settlement of the year shall be subject to applicable 
taxes as the top priority, followed by the offsetting of losses carried backward 
from previous years. Thirty percent of the remainder of such profit shall be 
allocated as statutory reserve, and, if necessary, a pool of special reserve. Profit 
net of the aforementioned allocations shall be paid out as dividend stated in the 
Corporate Charter, and 8% of the net of which shall be paid out as employee 
bonus, followed by remunerations to Directors and Supervisors and bonus to 
shareholders at the proposal of the Board and at the approval of the General 
Meeting of Shareholders. 
The Board shall consider the financial environment, market trend, the profit status 
and the development plan of the Bank and capital adequacy rate before proposing 
the aforementioned payout of income and determine the proportion between cash 
and stock dividends for the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

 
B. The dividends proposed to be allocated in the shareholders’ meeting: cash 

dividend NT$0.40 per share and stock dividend NT$0.52 per share. 
 

(7) Effect of the free-gratis dividends proposed by the shareholder’s meeting on bank 
operating results and earnings per share:  
The dividends proposed to be allocated have been resolved by the Board at its special 
session.  Cash dividend will be allocated at NT$0.40 per share and stock dividend at 
NT$0.52 per share, namely 52 shares to be allocated per 1,000 shares. 

 
(8) Employees’ Bonuses and Remunerations to Directors and Supervisors: 

A. Percentage and scope of employee bonus and remunerations to directors and 
supervisors as stated in the Corporate Charter: 
Any profit from settlement of the year shall be subject to applicable taxes as the 
top priority, followed by the offsetting of losses carried forward from the previous 
years. Thirty percent of the remainder of such profit shall be allocated as statutory 
reserve, and, if necessary, a pool of special reserve. Profit net of the 
aforementioned allocations shall be paid out as dividend stated in the Corporate 
Charter, and 8% of the net of which shall be paid out as employee bonus, 
followed by remunerations to Directors and Supervisors and bonus to 
shareholders at the proposal of the Board and at the approval of the General 
Meeting of Shareholders. 
The Board shall consider the financial environment, market trend, the profit status 
and the development plan of the Bank and capital adequacy rate before proposing 
the aforementioned payout of income and determine the proportion between cash 
and stock dividends for the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

 
B. The data on distribution of employee bonuses drawn up and passed by the board 

of directors: 
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(i) The amount of employees’ cash dividends, stock dividends and 
remuneration of directors and supervisors rewards: 
Cash dividend to be allocated to employees: NT$15,272,597 
Stock dividend to be allocated to employees: NT0 
Remuneration to directors and supervisors: NT$15,272,597 

(ii) The distributed shares of employees’ stock dividends and the proportion the 
shares against increased capital earnings: None. 

(iii) Planned the earnings per share after to allocate the employees’ dividends, 
and the remuneration of directors and supervisors: NT$1.47 

 
C. The status that prior year’s earnings used to distribute among employees’ bonuses 

and remuneration of directors and supervisors: None. 
 

(9) Repossession of the Bank Shares: None. 
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2. Issuance of Financial Debentures 
 

Type 1st term of 2007 Subordinate Financial Bonds 

Date & Approval No. Ching-Kuan-Ying (4) Tze No. 09600481190 dated 
November 14, 2007 

Issue Date Dec. 21, 2007 
Face Value NT$10,000,000 

Place of Issue Taiwan R.O.C 
Currency NTD 

Issued Price At Par Value 
Total amount NT$2.4 billion 

Interest rate 
Annual interest rate is index interest rate plus 1.02%. Index 
interest rate is the displayed floating rates for one-year term 
deposites of Taiwan Post Co., Ltd. 

Maturity 5.5 years    Matured on June 21, 2013 
Seniority Subordinated 

Guarantee Institution None 
Trustee None 

Consignee None 
Certified Lawyer None 

Certified CPA None 
Certified financial institution None 

Repayment Methods Repayment in lump sum upon maturity 
Unredeemed balance NT$2.4 billion 

Paid-in capital in last Fiscal Year 15,380,144 thousand 
After-tax Net Worth in last Fiscal 

Year 8,324,959 thousand 

Performance Normal 
Redemption or earlier redemption None 

Conversion and exchange conditions None 
Limitation Article Subordinated bond 

Fund utilization plan Mid-term and long-term loans 
Balance of Bonds as a Percentage of 

After-tax net worth (%) 28.83% 

Whether it is accounted for equity 
capital and type Second Pillar Capital 

Name of credit rating agency, date of 
rating and ratings 

Credit rating of issuing bank: Taiwan Ratings Corporation 
on September 17, 2007 
Long-term: twBBB; Short-term: twA-3 Outlook:Positive 
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3. Issuance of Preferred Stocks 
None. 

 
4. Issuance of Overseas Depository Receipts 

None. 
 
5. Employee Stock Options 

None. 
 
6. Acquisition or as Disposition of Outside Financial Institutions 

None. 
 
7. Capital Utilization Plan 
 

(1) The content of plan: 
In order to upgrade the capital adequacy ratio and strengthen the structure of capital to 
the needs for business expansion and business development. In the long run, the Bank 
has proceeded as follows: 
A. Cash capital increase 

The General Meeting of the Shareholders resolved in a special session dated 
December 7, 2006 to reduce the shares and dividends of the Bank by 
NT$7,339,264,000 with the elimination of 733,926,400 outstanding shares. At the 
same time the meeting also resolved to increase capital by issuing 500 million 
new shares at NT$10 per share. The plan for issuing new shares has approved by 
the Executive Yuan Financial Supervisory commission. Under Letter 
Jin-Guan-Zheng (I) No. 0950158699 dated January 22 2007. In 2006, the Bank 
has successfully raised NT$5.75 billion (including the issue at premium) and the 
investments have been fully collected by the end of March 2007. 

B. Issuance of Subordinated bons: 
The Bank applied to FSC for issuance of subordinated bonds in 2006, and the 
FSC approved the issuance via its Letter under Ching-Kuan-Ying (4) Tze N. 
09600481190 dated Nov. 14, 2007.The Bank also issued the “subordinated bonds” 
(Bond No. G13001).  The total issued amount was NT$2.4 billion with the 
duration of 5.5 years.  The bond was traded on TSEC and GreTai markets on Dec. 
24, 2007. 
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(2) Capital Utilization Plan: 
The primary purpose of raising capital through issuing new shares is to gather a solid 
pool of working capital and to improve the financial structure of the Bank.  It is 
expected that the profitability of the Bank will grow at a stable pace, given the 
anticipation of an economic recovery. Generally speaking, the said plans had 
contribution to the Bank’s financial structure and financial ratios. The Bank’s important 
financial ratios for 2006 and 2007 are summarized as following: 

 

Year 
Financial ratio 

2007 2006 

ROA (%) 0.68 (1.81) 
ROE (%) 14.70 (44.05) 
Capital adequacy ratio 10.30 5.35 
Earnings (Thousand NTD) 1,776,645 (4,702,547) 
EPS ($) 1.50 (5.85) 
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V. Operation Profile 
1. Business Contents 

(1) Principal business of the Bank by business type, assets under respective business units 
and/or their proportion to total assets and/or revenue, and the status of growth: 
A. Principal business of the Bank by business type: 

(i) Deposits Operations: passbooks, check deposits, certificates of deposit, 
negotiable certificates of deposit 

(ii) Loan Operations: personal loans, corporate loans, syndicate loans, discounts 
of instruments, issuance of local L/C, local guarantee making and factoring 

(iii) Foreign Exchanges Operations: import, export, foreign exchange 
settlements, and deposits and loans of foreign currency 

(iv) Trust Operations: Investment in domestic and overseas marketable 
securities through special monetary trustee accounts, certification of 
marketable securities, real estate trust and specific independent money 
management and utilization trust 

(v) Internet Banking Operations: network banking, ATM and phone banking 
(vi) Investments Operations: Dispatch of funds in NTD and foreign currency, 

foreign exchange, marketable securities trading and long-term equity 
investment  

 
B. Assets under respective business units and/or their proportion to total assets 

and/or revenue, and the status of growth 
(i) Deposits Operations: 

Currency: NTD thousand; % 

2007 2006 Compared with 2006 Year 
 
 

Item 
Amount Proportion 

(%) Amount Proportion 
(%) 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

amount 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
proportion % 

Check deposits 3,892,410 1.62 5,008,808 2.06 (1,116,398) (22.29) 
Current deposits 37,550,361 15.59 34,128,549 14.04 3,421,812 10.03 
Current saving 

deposits 
60,906,477 25.28 63,122,469 25.97 (2,215,992) (3.51) 

Current 
deposits 

Subtotal 102,349,248 42.49 102,259,826 42.07 89,422 0.09 
Time deposits 31,411,937 13.04 24,297,540 10.00 7,114,397 29.28 

Time saving deposits 104,062,084 43.20 113,238,155 46.58 (9,176,071) (8.10) 
Current 
deposits 

Subtotal 135,474,021 56.24 137,535,695 56.58 (2,061,674) (1.50) 

Others 
Accounts transfer 

and deposits via post 
office 

3,069,625 1.27 3,287,117 1.35 (217,492) (6.62) 

Total 240,892,894 100.00 243,082,638 100.00 (2,189,744) (0.90) 

Note: Current deposits and time deposits include deposits in foreign currencies and treasury deposits 
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(ii) Loan Operations: 
Currency: NTD thousand; % 

2007 2006 Compared with 2006 Year 
 
 

Item 
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

amount 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
proportion % 

Short-term secured 
loans 51,259,559 26.00 54,120,562 28.47 (2,861,003) (5.29) 

Short-term credit loans 17,071,357 8.66 12,451,113 6.55 4,620,244 37.11 
Subtotal 68,330,916 34.66 66,571,675 35.02 1,759,241 2.64 

Mid-term secured 
loans 

35,613,658 18.06 29,957,224 15.76 5,656,434 18.88 

Mid-term credit loans 20,410,749 10.35 23,735,746 12.49 (3,324,997) (14.01) 
Subtotal 56,024,407 28.42 53,692,970 28.24 2,331,437 4.34 

Long-term secured 
loans 66,191,334 33.57 64,116,095 33.73 2,075,239 3.24 

Long-term credit loans 555,817 0.28 550,838 0.29 4,979 0.90 
Subtotal 66,747,151 33.85 64,666,933 34.02 2,080,218 3.22 
Others 6,058,956 3.07 5,177,897 2.72 881,059 17.02 

Subtotal 6,058,956 3.07 5,177,897 2.72 881,059 17.02 

Total 197,161,430 100.00 190,109,475 100.00 7,051,955 3.71 

Note: Said table includes foreign currencies, OBU, delinquent accounts, receivable acceptances and receivable security bonds 

 
(iii) Foreign Exchanges Operations: 

Currency: USD thousand; % 

2007 2006 Compared with 2006 Year 
 
 

Item 
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

amount 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
proportion% 

Import 644,792 10.24 435,901 10.75 208,891 47.92 
Export 247,105 3.92 155,485 3.83 91,620 58.93 

Outward remittance  3,319,303 52.72 1,996,098 49.20 1,323,205 66.29 
Inward remittance 2,085,582 33.12 1,469,600 36.22 615,982 41.91 

Total 6,296,782 100.00 4,057,084 100.00 2,239,698 55.20 
Balance of deposits at 
the end of the year 

237,693 192,536 45,157 23.45 

Balance of loans at the 
end of the year 191,818 124,115 67,703 54.55 
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(iv) Trust Operations: 
Currency: NTD thousand; % 

2007 2006 Compared with 2006 Year 
 
 

Item 
Amount Proportion 

(%) Amount Proportion 
(%) 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

amount 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
proportion% 

Balance of trust in 
domestic funds 7,887,546 - 2,810,893 - 5,076,653 180.61 

Fees income 124,647 23.48 26,835 16.83 97,812 364.49 
Balance of trust in 
overseas funds 

24,524,675 - 13,326,394 - 11,198,281 84.03 

Fees income 400,541 75.44 132,049 82.83 268,492 203.33 
Balance of structure 
note 

408,045 - - - 408,045 - 

Investment in 
domestic and 
overseas 
marketable 
securities through 
special monetary 
trustee accounts 

Fees income 2,209 0.42 - - 2,209 - 
Business volume 1,751,740 - 2,153,329 - (401,589) (18.65) Certification of 

marketable 
securities Fees income 423 0.08 546 0.34 (123) (22.52) 

Balance of trust 90,891 - - - 90,891 - 
Real estate trust 

Fees income 2,706 0.51 - - 2,706 - 
Balance of trust 2,500 - - - 2,500 - Specific 

independent 
money 
management and 
utilization trust 

Fees income 407 0.08 - - 407 - 

Balance of trust assets 32,913,657 - 16,137,288 - 16,776,369 103.96 
Fees income for trust 530,933 100.00 159,430 100.00 371,503 233.02 

 
(v) Internet Banking Operations: 

Unit: transaction; % 

2007 2006 Compared with 2006 Year 

 

 

Item 

Accumulative 
transactions Proportion (%) 

Accumulative 
transactions Proportion (%) 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
transactions 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
proportion% 

Network 
banking 13,044,112 53.93 4,641,690 28.70 8,402,422 181.02 

ATM 7,953,971 32.88 8,338,534 51.55 (384,563) (4.61) 

Phone banking 3,189,353 13.19 3,195,458 19.75 (6,105) (0.19) 

Total 24,187,436 100.00 16,175,682 100.00 8,011,754 49.53 
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(vi) Investments Operations: 
Currency: NTD thousand; % 

2007 2006 Compared with 2006 Year 

 

 

Item 
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) 

Increase 
(decrease) in 

amount 

Increase 
(decrease) in 
proportion% 

Long-term/short-term 
investment revenue 237,289 15.08 60,758 5.48 176,531 290.55 

Interest income – 
NTD/foreign currency 1,225,333 77.86 958,259 86.37 267,074 27.87 

Exchange revenue - spot 111,209 7.06 90,459 8.15 20,750 22.94 

Total income 

(exclusive of the reserve 
fund and own reserves)  

1,573,831 100.00 1,109,476 100.00 464,355 41.85 

 
(2) Business plan for 2008: 

A. Deposits Operations: 
According to FSC’s statistics on deposits in December 2007, the Bank’s current 
deposits were NT$102.349 billion, the structural proportion (current deposits/total 
deposits) of 42.49% and ranking 6th place among the local banks (6/38), only 
following Hua Nan Commercial Bank, Cathay United Bank, Standard Chartered 
Bank, Chang Hwa Bank and First Bank.  It showed that the Bank had effectively 
achieved the purpose for reducing the cost of capital.The Bank will continue to 
solicite for low-cost current savings and current deposits in foreign currencies by 
developing corporate accounts, agency for collection of securities, schools, 
agencies and groups, and general personal accounts, in order to meet the need and 
utilization of funds reqired by wealth management, loans and investments, et al.  

 
B. Corporate Banking Operations: Enhance SME loans (The Bank’s SME loans and 

Bedrock Project) 
(i) As of the end of June 2007, the accumulative balance of SME loans 

amounted to NT$64.7 billion, making the Bank rank at 8th place among the 
local 41 financial institutions and recognized by FSC as the excellent bank 
for SME loans.  Meanwhile, the Bank was granted with incentives such as 
promotion from simplified brach to full operation branch and automatic 
approval on the application for relocation of branches as of the day 
following the date of receipt if the application is filed within one year.The 
Bank continues working with the competent authority to handle the SME 
financing business, and defining the relevant incentive assessments and 
urging business entities to strengthen the development, in hopes of winning 
the honor for excellent bank and recognition from the competent authority 
consecutively and promoting the Bank’s identity and financial position. 

(ii) The Bank’s five regional centers have established the SME guidance 
taskforces to help the various business entities to promote the SME loans 
and provide excellent SME customers with professional service, and also to 
plan the appropriate product portfolio to meet SMEs' need for short-term 
and mid-term funds, e.g. “Ching Chi Li”, “Ching Chien Pen” Loans, export 
loans, import/export financing and factoring, so as to expand the scale of the 
Bank’s loaning business and collect higher interest and fee income to 
increase the Bank’s profitability. 

(iii) Launch the “Chen You Li Loans” and collect operation costs subject to the 
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amount of loans to effectively increase the fees income and interest revenue 
from loans and the weight of fees income in operating revenue. 

(iv) Continue promoting the SME “Ching Chi Li” and “Ching Chien Pen” loans 
and also apply the SME Credit Guarantee Fund strategy to reduce the 
Bank’s credit extension risk and increase the Bank’s capital adequacy rate. 

 
C. Consumer banking: 

(i) Adjust the credit extension strategy for simplified consumer small loans. 
In order to cope with the transformation in the consumer banking market, 
the Bank adjusted the credit extension policies from time to time.  As of 
December 2005, the Bank reduced the authorized limit of small consumer 
loans from NT$800,000 to NT$400,000 and had the Consumer Banking 
Division of Loan Department handle the examination. Until Dec. 31, 2007, 
the balance of loans as granted has been NT$95,375 thousand, NPL 
NT$1,728 thousand and NPL rate 1.81%.  Apparently, the credit extension 
quality control has produced positive effects. The balance of disbursement 
of cash cards has been reduced from NT$2.677 billion, the maximum, to 
NT$0.21 billion on Dec. 31, 2007, and is still reducing on a monthly basis.  
The Bank has recently issued a letter to urge each business entity to advise 
cash card customers to accelerate their applications for repayment in 
installments under “Wealth Management Loans”, in hopes of collecting the 
credit in the shortest term, reducing the risk in bad debts and avoiding loss. 

 
(ii) Stable operation of housing loans 

At the end of December 2007, the balance of housing loans was NT$46.96 
billion, a decrease of NT$4.59 billion compared with the balance of housing 
loans at the end of December 2006, NT$51.55 billion.  The weight of 
credit extension thereof was reduced from 27.56% at the end of December 
2006 to 24.34% at the end of Dec. 2007, a decrease of 3.22%.  In the future, 
the Bank will manage the housing loans in a stable manner. 

 
D. Foreign Exchanges Operations: 

(i) Participate in the international syndicated loans actively, solicit foreign 
banks for cooperation and expand the scope of foreign exchange service to 
increase income and promote the Bank’s publicity 

(ii) Promote overseas banking business, establish OBU to be the centre for 
funds dispatched by customers who established factories overseas, continue 
inviting management consultation companies to introduce the knowledge 
about overseas companies, overseas investment management and 
application of OBU, to enrich colleagues’ expertise 

(iii) Enhance the cross-strait banking transactions, establish the corresponding 
relations with financial institutions in the territory of Mainland China, 
strengthen the international corresponding network and shorten the length of 
time for the cross-strait remittances to provide customers with more rapid 
banking service 

(iv) Develop foreign exchanges and solicit deposits in foreign currencies, define 
preferential rules to solicit customers for transactions, increase the market 
share of foreign exchanges, and enrich the operating capital 
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E. Trust Operations: 
(i) Continue strengthening and expanding the lineup of “VIP service 

specialists” and “VIP service supervisors” in hopes of establishing 
professional wealth management departments, and enhance training, enrich 
expertize, form professional marketing taskforces and promote the trust 
business to make more outstanding record 

(ii) Define incentive rules, encourage branches to develop new customers, and 
dedicated to promoting the sale of domestic and overseas funds and 
structure notes 

(iii) Strengthen “VIP management system”: provide colleagues with diversified 
information and provide it to customers immediately for reference to 
upgrade the service quality 

(iv) Hold wealth management seminar: the Bank has held many wealth 
management seminar since 2007. The Bank will continue holding the 
seminar to serve customers in the upcoming years.In addition to the 
cooperative fund managers, the Bank also invited many famous trainers to 
hold seminars, e.g. Hsieh Ching-ho, Hsia Yun-fen and Juan Mu-hua, etc.  
The customers responded to such seminars enthusiastically and also 
recognized them positively.  Therefore, the Bank also developed many 
new customers and promoted its publicity. 

 
(3) Market Analysis: 

A. Territories of banking business: 
For the time being, banks in Taiwan are primarily engaged in running business in 
the domestic market.  However, given that the competition in the market has 
tended to be more intensive in the recent years and the products and services 
provided by most banks are identical in nature, the local banks have to work very 
hard in the market.According to FSC, about 85% of the local banks’ earnings 
before taxation was generated from overseas.  Therefore, overseas branches and 
OBU have become the main sources of profit for local dealer.  Apparently, 
overseas markets tend to be more and more important. 

 
B. The market supply & demands and growth in the future: 

(i) Currently, many financial institutions have made adjustment and 
improvement of the profit structures. Until the effect of integration in the 
market pays off, interest spread and profit rate of financial products can 
hardly be raised significantly. Therefore, operation performance of financial 
institutions is determined by the competitive power and sustained 
improvement of profit structure. Furthermore, stable economic growth and 
the status of risk in the corporate sector can help to relieve the pressure of 
the cost of loans for the financial institutions of Taiwan. 

(ii) Sluggish economic growth prompted the shifting of the business gravity of 
financial institutions overseas: 
The manufacturing sector of Taiwan has slowly but surely migrated to 
Mainland China. This is echoed with the gradual decline of corporate 
income or personal income with sources from Taiwan. Domestic investment 
has decreased and economic growth became sluggish. Furthermore, 
competent authority restrained the overseas relocation of financial 
institutions by their scale of operation. Therefore, the potential for growth of 
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the financial industry in the future is limited to spread or services charge 
from consumer banking and wealth management and financial operations. 
The shifting of strategic operation allows smaller finance institutions in the 
private sector to challenge the position of big financial institutions in the 
market. However, active development of new products without proper risk 
monitor mechanism contributed to the increase in non-performing loans to 
banks issued the two cards, which was another crisis. 

 
C. Key strengths, advantages and disadvantages in future prospects and 

counterassessments: 
(i) Competitive niche: 

a. Numerous branches and stable customer base 
Until the end of 2007, the Bank has owned 79 local branches.  The 
dense marketing channels and network strengthened the Bank's 
competiveness .The Bank also proceeded with the organization reform 
to exert the integrated and cross marketing to provide customers with 
“one stop shopping” financial service and enhance the marketing 
effect and profitability. 

b. The Bank has long-standing profile and outstanding goodwill. 
Formerly a cooperative savings company in Taichung, the Bank has 
been established for more than five decades. The scope of Bank’s 
business then covered Taichung City, Taichung County, Chang Hwa 
County and Nantou County.  In 1995, the amended Banking Act of 
the ROC was promulgated whereby all cooperative savings companies 
were incorporated into the national banking system.  In compliance 
with applicable legal rules and business development needs, the Bank 
has successfully transformed into “Taichung Small and Medium 
Business Bank” in 1978. The Bank’s stock was listed in May 1984.  
In 1998, the Bank was reformed into “Taichung Commercial 
Bank”(the regular Chinese characters of “��” was transformed to 
the simplified Chinese characters formally “� �”, and the Bank was 
called “Taichung Bank’ for short) and formally became one of the 
national commercial banks .  So far, the Bank expanded to an 
operation with 79 branch locations. Its service network has success 
expanded from the central Taiwan to northern and southern Taiwan 
successively and thereby established the Bank’s entire business 
domain. Currently, the Bank has a Trust Department, International 
Banking Department and offshore banking unit International Banking 
Department, and has 8 branches designated as foreign exchange 
locations for serving the clients with a full basket of commercial 
banking services. The Bank is located in  central Taiwan and 
possesses the deep-rooted localization strength.  It will continue to 
make use of such strength to  dedicate to the SME business, which 
has been a bank integrated into the local life and culture. 

 
(ii) Favorable and unfavorable factors for development in the future, and 

counterassessments: 
a. Key strengths: 
� Advantage of deep-rooted localization: 
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The Bank has its origin in central Taiwan and has cultivated the 
market  for more than half a century. Therefore, the Bank has 
maintained very good relationship with the SME and has 
established and maintained its advantage in financing the SME. 

� Advantage of segmentation:  
In the past, the Bank has been conservative in doing business.  
Therefore, the Bank was only slightly affected by the two card 
storm and serious consumer banking crisis in Taiwan in 2005 
and 2006 after shortening the cash card limit and even ceasing 
granting the cash card earlier than other banks. 

� Advantage of asset quality: 
The Bank has intensified in the collection of delinquent accounts 
through different means, including mitigation of the number of 
customers of overdue payment, sale of non-performing assets, 
and write-off of bad debts.  In 2006, the Bank pressed down its 
NPL rate to 1.72%, less than the mean of the Taiwan banks 
1.84% , and its bad debt coverage rate was 71.99%, higher than 
the mean of the Taiwan banks 64.82%. 

b. Disadvantages: 
� With tremendous resources,financial holding companies have 

been dedicated to expanding their market shares through 
acquisition and merger and, therefore, threated the other banks’ 
existence. 
Counterassessments: 
Encountered the large-scale financial holding companies, the 
Bank adopted the small-but-qualified regional bank operating 
policy as the countermeasure.Given that the Bank was formerly 
a professional SME bank, it will continue to engage in the same 
scope of business,understand customers’ needs , provide 
excellent SME customers with professional service, and also 
plan the appropriate product portfolio to meet SMEs' need for 
short-term and mid-term funding,  e.g. “Ching Chi Li”, “Ching 
Chien Pen” Loans, export loans, import/export financing and 
factoring, which will generate higher income from interest 
revenue and fees income, so as to increase the Bank� s 
profitability. 

� The price war is intensive and the interest spread between 
deposits and loans is narrowing. 
Counterassessments: 
Due to the intensive competition in the banking market, the 
spread interest for the traditional deposits and loans has been 
reduced gradually.The Bank centrally developed the 
professional business and strengthen the items with 
competiveness, e.g. SME loans, to provide specific customers 
with services, and also developed the source of fees income, 
primarily the fees income from foreign exchange and mutual 
funds, to upgrade its entire profitability and cover the effect 
produced by the shortened interest spread to earnings. 
Further, in order to avoid being entangled in the price war in the 
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same trade, the Bank was dedicated to transforming to provide 
customers with delicate services and paid attention to the’s 
requirements about quality and services.  The Bank also probed 
into the target customers’ needs thoroughly and strengthen its 
brand image to upgrade its profitability.Given that local 
manufacturers relocated their factories overseas and the 
profitability in the tri-region (consisting of Taiwan, Hong Kong 
and Mainland China) strait appears to be remarkable, the Bank 
plans to invest in the development of the business and establish 
overseas branches in the places where Taiwanese businessmen 
gather. 

� Layout of business locations and credit extension portfolio: 
Currently, the Bank has 79 branches of which 62 are located at 
Taichung, Changhwa, and Nantou, which are township in rural 
and urban zones in central Taiwan. Despite its broad clientele 
base in central Taiwan, the loan accounts of the Bank is over 
concentrated in the region, which makes the Bank vulnerable to 
risks that may derive from the region. In addition, some of the 
branches are overlapping in the same business regions that 
causes over competition, which makes optimization of operation 
impossible. 
Counterassessments: 
For diluting the over concentration of business channels and 
geographic locations, the Bank has planned to gradually relocate 
some of its branches  to other counties and cities so as to 
expand its business to regions beyond central Taiwan. In the 
future, the Bank will expand its business domain overseas with 
its current clientele base of SME. 

 
(4) Research of Financial Products and Development of Business Operations: 

A. Premium financial products and new banking units, their sizes and status of profit: 
The Bank has added Risk Management Department and Treasury Department in 
the most recent two years. The size and profit of the premium financial products 
in the most recent two years are specified as following: 
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Currency: in NTD thousand 

Until March 31, 2008 2007/end 2006/end 
Item Trade 

value/volume 
Revenue Trade 

value/volume 
Revenue Trade 

value/volume 
Revenue 

Corporate banking       
Volume of corporate 
loans 78,073,660 751,264 73,902,843 2,815,698 61,998,472 2,331,143 

Personal banking       
Consumer loans 50,943,687 492,800 54,027,498 2,045,635 61,707,605 2,320,065 
Non-Consumer loans 62,497,087 539,587 62,763,900 2,092,857 61,987,304 2,173,458 
Credit card loans 515,108 20,857 2,261,227 93,247 2,417,629 124,958 

Trust and securities brokerage       
Balance of trust assets 36,264,252 184,777 32,913,657 530,933 16,137,287 159,430 
Securities brokerage 8,997,795 20,783 43,067,007 60,785 28,260,912 40,860 

Financial management       
Securities trade 1,889,049 9,532 5,822,049 138,234 3,168,274 17,022 

 
B. R&D expenditure and results, and plans: 

(i) R&D expenditure 
In order to strengthen the Bank’s business development and cope with the 
competition in the banking market, the Bank has improved the various 
software and hardware equipments in the recent years, and also encouraged 
colleagues to engage in the research related to banking business to upgrade 
colleagues’ professional R&D ability in financial products. 

(ii) R&D results 
a. Development of Web ATM: 

Security authentication is based on a banking card with chip. 
Transaction can be conducted at the user end browser via the Internet 
with all ATM functions (except cash withdrawal). 

b. Development of value-added functions of the mutual fund system: 
Examples are B share trade, cut loss default, online subscription, 
redemption, inquiry on net worth and others. 

c. Development of enhanced functions of foreign exchanges: 
For example, SIBOR, OBU handled by designated foreign banks on 
commission, remoting printing of the relevant recits (document 
delivery service), et al. 

d. To cope with the issuance of chip VISA ATM cards, the Bank 
planned the cooperation of different industries to upgrade the added 
functions to add the Bank’s risk-free fees income. 

e. Change VISA ATM card payment mechanism into the immediate 
payment deduction 

f. Open media batch fund transfer and collection for VISA ATM cards 
g. Establish the automatic seal match and survey system to integrate with 

the end system to enable the automatic survey of the depositor’s seal; 
press the “Start” buttom if the amtomatic system match is required 

h. Complete the development of “bonds subscription system” to respond 
to the issuance of 2nd priority bonds, with the main functions including 
subscription, payment, file transmission (for delivery of bonds to the 
central depositing agency) and management information, etc. 

(iii) Future development plans 
a. The Bank will independently develop its credit extension customer 
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rating and risk premium mechanism.  Given that the outsourced 
suppliers’ quotation amounted to tens of million dollars frequently and 
the equivalent benefits thereof remained questionable, the Risk 
Management Department fored the credit rating taskforce across 
departments and offices to discuss the types of credit extension, 
variable factors for risk, source of data and statistic circle and engage 
in the development with the statistic tools applied frequently. 

b. To cope with the installation of VIP system by Trust Department and 
meet the need for applications for the Bank’s wealth management 
services, the Bank will contract the installation of the system to others.  
The customers asset information, transaction record and special notes 
are linked with the relevant systems and, therefore, should be the item 
to be developed by the Bank. 

c. The Bank will introduce the research and program development for 
the cash processing machine to mitigate the bank clerks' burden for 
collection of cash, so as to upgrade the clerks' efficiency and save the 
clerks from overpayment or shortage of collection of cash. 

d. The national sub-stage payment functions are categorized as 
226xIDNO+account number trading and 256x chip transactions, 
which may serve to be an option for enterprises to commission the 
multi-functional collections and payments. 

 
(5) Long and Short-term Business Development Plans: 

A. Short-term development plans: please refer paragraph (2), the business plan 2008 
 

B. Long-term development plans: 
The Bank will utilize its niche in SME loaning business to develop the four core 
businesses, deposits, loans, foreign exchanges and trust, and be oriented towards 
diversified business, preveilance of cusotomers and localization, and be dedicated 
to transforming itself from a regional bank to a fine-quality omnibus 
bank.Meanwhile, the Bank is planning to establish branches in the territories or 
countries where overseas Taiwanese businessmen gather to promote the growth of 
its foreign exchange and overseas banking services, expand its business domain 
and upgrade its competitiveness to move forward to its objective of 
internationalization and globalization. 



78 

2. Employees 
(1) Employees’ information: 

Year 
Item 

For the Year 
Ended 2006 

For the Year 
Ended 2007 

Until March 31, 
2007 

More than 50 years old 71 83 83 

More than 40 years old 568 667 668 

More than 30 years old 904 810 810 

More than 20 years old 416 494 506 

Attain 20 years old 10 3 3 

Employee No. 

Total 1,969 2,057 2,070 

Average age 36.08 36.47 36.45 

Average seniority 11.69 11.42 11.32 

Doctoral - - - 

Masters 2.89% 4.57% 4.54% 

Bachelors 82.22% 83.72% 83.62% 

Senior High Schools 13.81% 11.08% 11.02% 

Education 
Background 

Below Senior High Schools 1.07% 0.63% 0.82% 

Securities sales traders 199 224 233 

Investment Insurance Products 436 626 660 

Securities investment 
trust/investment advice sales 

traders 
70 84 89 

Initial credit extension 
personnel’s professional 

ability 
503 530 535 

Advanced credit extension 
personnel’s professional 

ability 
14 15 14 

Futures sales traders 29 43 48 

Life Insurance of Agent 1171 1347 1386 

Bond sales qualified in 
professional ability test 5 8 8 

Initial foreign exchange 
personnel’s professional 

ability 
233 265 265 

Wealth management and 
planning personnel 333 372 384 

Trust Operations Personnel 1264 1399 1430 

Bank’s internal control basic 
test 944 1005 1012 

Senior securities traders 104 121 125 

Property Insurance of Agent 1257 1394 1427 

Employees 
with 

Professional 
Certifications 

Notes and bills traders 8 13 16 
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Year 
Item 

For the Year 
Ended 2006 

For the Year 
Ended 2007 

Until March 31, 
2007 

Marketable securities, 
financing and financial 

instruments sales traders 
27 25 24 

Internal auditor 1 2 2 

 

Stock affairs personnel 
qualified in professional 

ability test 
2 3 3 

 
(2) Licenses designated by the competent authority as acquired by personnel relevant to 

transparent financial information:  

License By department Total Aggregate 
Treasury Department 3 
Accounting Department 2 
Audit Office 2 

Securities traders 

Other entities 226 

233 

Treasury Department 7 
Accounting Department 7 
Audit Office 9 

Investment Insurance Products 

Other entities 637 

660 

Treasury Department 8 
Accounting Department 1 
Audit Office 1 

Securities investment 
trust/investment advice sales staff 

Other entities 79 

89 

Treasury Department 8 
Accounting Department 3 
Audit Office 12 

Initial credit extension personnel’s 
professional ability 

Other entities 512 

535 

Treasury Department - 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Advanced credit extension 
personnel’s professional ability 

Other entities 14 

14 

Treasury Department 6 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Futures sales traders 

Other entities 42 

48 

Treasury Department 16 
Accounting Department 9 
Audit Office 18 

Agent for Life Insurance   

Other entities 1343 

1386 

Treasury Department 3 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Bond sales qualified in professional 
ability test 

Other entities 5 

8 
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License By department Total Aggregate 
Treasury Department 8 
Accounting Department 2 
Audit Office 6 

Initial foreign exchange personnel’s 
professional ability 

Other entities 249 

265 

Treasury Department 13 
Accounting Department 4 
Audit Office 7 

Wealth management and planning 
personnel 

Other entities 360 

384 

Treasury Department 17 
Accounting Department 9 
Audit Office 21 

Trust Operations Personnel 

Other entities 1383 

1430 

Treasury Department 15 
Accounting Department 6 
Audit Office 19 

Bank’s internal control basic test 

Other entities 972 

1012 

Treasury Department 10 
Accounting Department 1 
Audit Office 2 

Senior securities traders 

Other entities 112 

125 

Treasury Department 15 
Accounting Department 7 
Audit Office 28 

Agent for Property Insurance  

Other entities 1377 

1427 

Treasury Department 10 
Accounting Department 1 
Audit Office 1 

Notes and bills traders 

Other entities 4 

16 

Treasury Department - 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Marketable securities, financing and 
financial instruments sales traders 

Other entities 24 

24 

Treasury Department 1 
Accounting Department 1 
Audit Office - 

Internal auditor 

Other entities - 

2 

Treasury Department 2 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Stock affairs personnel qualified in 
professional ability test 

Other entities 1 

3 

Treasury Department 3 
Accounting Department - 

Foreign exchange professional 
ability 

Audit Office - 

5 
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License By department Total Aggregate 
 Other entities 2  

Treasury Department 1 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Financial personnel’s professional 
ability in appraising collaterals for 
credit extension 

Other entities 7 

8 

Treasury Department - 
Accounting Department - 
Audit Office - 

Financial personnel's professional 
ability in risk management 

Other entities 2 

2 

 
(3) Employees’ advanced studies and training: 

Currency: in NTD  

Internal 
training+external 

training 
2006 2007 2008 

(projected) 
Increase in 
proportion 

Total trainees 5,749 5,556 6,000 8% 

Total hours 3,644 5,294 5,500 3.89% 

Total classes 150 173 180 4.05% 

Total expenses 
(projected) 3,837,555 11,866,876 12,000,000 1.12% 

 
(4) Employees’ code of conduct or ethics: 

The Bank has defined the employees’ work rules and personnel management rules to 
enable employees to verify their own interest and right and code of conduct to be 
followed. 

 
(5) Work environment and employees’ personal safety protection assessments: 

A. In the case of any casualty, General Affairs Department shall designate the 
dedicated personnel to safeguard evidence, contact the insurance company, work 
with the insurance investigation, filing of the claims and report to the respective 
authority. 

B. The Bank will conduct the inspection on the hardware facility at office premises 
periodically according to the relevant labor safety and health laws and regulations.  
The business entity personnel will also adquire the required licenses pursuant to 
the laws and regulations (e.g. B-grade and C-grade labor safety and health 
management technicians and first-aid personnel, etc.). 

 
3. Enterprise Responsibilities and Ethical Behavior 

Please refer to III. Status of Corporate Governance�(4)Status of Corporate Governance as 
required for banks, and any nonconformity to the Corporate Governance Best-Practice 
Principles for Banking Industry and reasons thereof�VIII. Specify the social responsibility of 
the Bank, the system and policy adopted and the performance of its social obligations: 
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4. IT Equipment 
(1) The Bank has the following major IT systems: 

A. NTD Account System: NEC duo server and peripherals. 
B. Foreign Exchange Account System: Sun duo server and peripherals. 
C. Trust System: IBM server and peripherals. 
D. Call Center: Wintel multiple server and peripherals. 
E. Internet Banking System: Wintel multiple server and peripherals. 

 
(2) Plans for development and procurement in the future: 

A. Internet Banking – Expanded functions of Dynamic PIN/ transactions through 
authentication for transactions with high risk. 

B. Planning and installation of 3G supporting environment in branches 
C. The Bank has installed back-up mechanism for all banking servers. 
D. Install remittance services and centralization of collected financial instruments. 
E. Install the signature/seal inquiry and matching system. 
F. NBT Terminal and seal photographic platform integrated application 
G. Install receivable accounts system 
H. Internet Banking foreign exchange system 
I. IT safety and anti-virus system 
J. Renovation and addition of uninterrupted power system 
K. Expansion of Core Banking System 

 
(3) Emergency and safety protection assessments 

A. The Bank has installed the remote backup support for NTD server in CHT’s IDC 
Building in Chientan. 

B. The remote backup support for foreign exchange system is under construction, 
and is expected to be completed in the first half of 2008. 

C. Safety protection assessments: 
(i) Install the “automatic fix system”: able to fix the bugs in the system 

immediately to prevent any person from intruding into the system 
(ii) Install “double system fire wall": able to prevent any unlicensed link and 

access to the system 
(iii) Install “anti-virus and virus scan system”: able to prevent the system from 

being ruined, or being intruded by “Troy” 
(iv) Install IDS “intrusion detection system”: able to verify the intrusion earlier 

for precaution 
(v) Proceed with information safety propagation and education per year 

D. The Bank will take the followingactions to prevent hackers and virus: 
(i) Install the anti-virus products of the second supplier, send email and surf 

webpages, proceed with the immediate scan, and expected to complete the 
installation in the first half of 2008 

(ii) Install the IPS to enhance the IDS, detect the known cyber attacks and 
extraordinary Internet behavior, and expected to complete the installation in 
2008 
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5. Labor-Management Relations 
(1) Current Labor-Management Agreement and the status of execution; 

A. Employee fringe benefits: 
(i) Provide labor insurance, national health insurance, and group accident 

insurance. 
(ii) Allocation of employees’ dividends and bonus 
(iii) Scholarships for the children of employees. 
(iv) Annul traveling and tour for the employees. 
(v) Gifts for Spring Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival, subsidies for marriage, 

funeral and other celebrities and employee birthdays. 
(vi) Free periodic health examination 

 
B. Retirement System: 

(i) Pension will be disbursed to employees under the Retirement Regulation of 
the Bank. 

(ii) The Bank contributed to the employee pension fund under the Statute for 
Labor Retirement. 

(iii) Subsidies for employees retired at the age of 60 for overseas traveling. 
(iv) Gifts for employees retired at the age of 60. 

 
C. Other important benefits: 

(i) Employees’ salary raise by 10% as of January 1, 2007 
(ii) Increase fuel subsidies for field specialists 
(iii) At the end of year, employees may apply for additional salary for attendance 

insofar as the special leave not consumed by the employees is less than 
one-thirds of the total days of the special leave in the current year. 

(iv) Granting of treasury stock 
(v) Production of new uniforms for all employees 

 
D. Labor-management agreement: None 

 
E. Employees' interest and right protection assessments 

(i) Personnel Review Committee’s functions: review of supervisors’ promotion, 
review of staff’s promotion, and review of employees’ reward and 
punishment, and review of applications 

(ii) Labor-management meeting/scope of parliamentary procedure: development 
of labors, production plan and overview of business, meditation of 
labor-management relations, promotion of labor-management cooperation, 
labor terms and conditions, labor benefits planning, and enhancement of 
working efficiency 
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(2) Labor-management disputes 
March 31, 2008 

Case The contention Status 
Remarks (date of legal 

action, amount claimed, 
estimated loss in cash) 

A. Yi-Hsiung Wang 
Case 

Wang has claimed for the 
disbursement of pension. 
However, he was a 
defendant of the Kuang San 
Case and was found guilty. 
As such, the Bank declined 
to disburse pension in his 
favor. 

Wang has filed a complaint, 
and the first trial is in 
progress.  

1. Wang filed the 
complaint on March 2 
2006. 

2. The pension disbursable 
to Wang amounted to 
NT$ 5,996,000 

B. Wen-Yu Su Case 

Su has claimed for the 
disbursement of pension. 
However, Su was alleged in 
failure to perform duties as 
required in granting loans to 
a client. The Bank therefore 
temporarily holds the 
pension. 

The Supreme Court 
rendered the final and 
irrevocable judgment in 
favor of Su on March 21, 
2008. 

1. According to the civil 
judgment rendered by 
the Supreme Court on 
March 21, 2008, the 
pension payable by the 
Bank to Su was 
NT$6,675,120. 

2. The Bank shall also pay 
the interest at 5% annual 
rate accruing from 
January 27, 2006 to the 
date of repayment. 

C. Yen-Chuan Chuang 
Case 

The Bank petitioned for 
provisional seizure against 
the assets of Chuang, who 
was suspected of being 
involved in the shortage of 
cash on hand of Neihsin 
Branch (including the 
employee’s dividends and 
refundable deposit), and 
also initiated the civil action 
with monetary claim.  The 
final judgment was rendered 
in disfavor of the Bank.  
Therefore, Chuang intiated 
a civil action with monetary 
claim against the Bank. 

The judgment was rendered 
in favor of the Bank in 1st 
and 2nd instances for the 
civil action initiated by 
Chuang against the Bank. 

1. The deadline of the 
appeal has expired.  
Chuang did not file any 
further appeal. 

2. The judgment has 
become final and 
irrevocable upon 2nd 
instance. 
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6. Significant Agreements 
 

Nature of 
agreement Contracting Parties Term of Agreement Summary Content Restrictive 

clause 

Computer Data 
Print out And 
Packing 
Agreement 

Eagles Information Systems 
Corp. 2007.07.01~2008.07.01 

Outsourced works on 
mutual funds transactions 
statements 

None 

Eagles Information Systems 
Corp. 2003.05.15~2008.04.30 Computer Data 

Print out And 
Packing 
Agreement 

Yu Feng Investment Co., 
Ltd. 2008.05.01~2009.04.30 

Credit card debit note 
outsourcing packing 
agreement 

None 

Outsourcing 
Agreement Leebao Security Co, Ltd 2006.06.01~2009.05.31 

Delivery service of 
securities and funds for all 
banking units of the Bank 

None 

Outsourcing 
Agreement 

Goyun Security Company 
Ltd. 2006.12.01~2009.11.30 Security for all branches None 

Outsourcing 
Agreement 

Integrated Provider 
Delivering Trust 2007.09.25~2008.09.24 

Delivery service of 
financial instruments and 
documents for all 61 
branches 

None 

Outsourcing 
Agreement NEC Taiwan Ltd. 2006.04.01~2009.03.31 Remote backup support for 

NEC server None 

Outsourcing 
Agreement 

Joint National Credit Card 
Center of R.O.C 

From 2006.11.14 to 
notice of discharge by 
either side of the parties. 

Credit card authorization 
and clearing, foreign 
exchange settlement for 
international credit card 
transactions and related 
declaration 

None 

Notice of 
statement of 
accounts 

Yu Feng Investment Co., 
Ltd. 2007.4.14-2008.4.13 

Statement of accounts or 
notice sent periodically or 
irregularly in accordance 
with the requirements of the 
competent authority or the 
Bank 

None 

Collection of 
instruments TWNCH 2007.8.15-2008.8.14 Prosessing of non-MICR 

instruments None 

Exclusive 
account check 
production 
system 

 
First Data Systems, Inc. 

2007.6.8-2008.6.7 
Exclusive check books 
provided to customers to 
facilitate branches 

None 

Hardware 
equipment 
procurement 
agreement 

New Image Co., Ltd. 
From Sept. 12, 2007 
until completion of the 
installation 

Remittance and collection 
of instruments None 

Hardware 
equipment 
procurement 
agreement 

 
Harmonation Inc.  

From June 22, 2007 
until completion of the 
installation 

Scanner for collection of 
instruments None 

 
7. Securitized products and related information 

None. 
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VI. Financial Status 
 
1.  Condesed balance sheet and income of statement for the most recent five years 

Condensed Balance Sheet 
Currency: in NTD thousand 

Financial information from 2003 to 2007 Year 
 

Item 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Financial 
information as of 
March 31 2008 

Cash and cash equivalent, 
central bank deposits, call loans 
to banks 

44,554,100 37,214,725 55,960,443 54,489,950 47,913,347 46,493,439 

Financial instruments at fair 
value through income statement 

2,887,575 2,431,635 3,969 711,603 816,432 774,262 

Discounts and loans – net 165,842,608 180,845,632 180,567,810 186,349,893 192,468,949 193,681,093 

Account receivables – net 4,256,099 3,625,624 3,311,686 2,196,142 2,120,714 2,335,860 

Financial instruments held to 
maturity – net 6,768,084 6,212,956 7,417,124 7,048,627 11,346,949 13,769,315 

Equity investment under equity 
method 

12,993 79,160 57,459 48,412 104,354 121,629 

Fixed assets – net 4,061,467 4,194,223 4,024,685 3,897,913 3,770,773 3,776,620 

Other financial assets 195,051 176,596 173,971 158,934 211,549 181,549 

Other assets 10,801,423 10,673,201 10,019,656 4,558,799 3,901,687 3,590,780 

Total assets 239,379,400 245,453,752 261,536,803 259,460,273 262,654,754 264,724,547 

Deposits of Centre Bank and 
other banks 4,351,891 4,308,438 3,665,298 3,315,568 3,168,649 3,134,353 

Deposits and remittances 218,052,489 223,366,445 235,481,571 239,800,057 237,831,638 238,452,648 

Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
382 

 
270 

 
- 

Repurchase bonds and debts 
liabilities - - 2,996,039 848,061 - 1,098,200 

Funds borrowed from Central 
Bank and inter-banks, payable 
financial bonds 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2,400,000 

 
2,400,000 

Accruable pension liabilities 521,811 436,121 246,390 232,979 292,480 303,296 

Other financial liabilities - 173 136 93 45 32 

Other liabilities 3,214,759 3,472,293 6,119,863 6,938,174 3,110,068 3,075,038 

Before 
Distribution 226,140,950 231,583,470 248,509,297 251,135,314 246,803,150 248,463,567 

Total 
liabilities After 

Distribution 
226,140,950 231,583,470 248,509,297 251,135,314 - - 

Shares and dividendss 15,380,144 15,380,144 15,380,144 15,380,144 13,040,880 13,040,880 

Capital surplus 10 14,488 - - 750,000 750,000 

Unrealized appreciations - - 160,452 - 284,079 284,079 

Before 
Distribution (2,018,161) (1,524,350) (2,513,090) (7,055,185) 1,776,645 2,186,021 

Retained 
earnings After 

Distribution (2,018,161) (1,524,350) (2,513,090) (7,055,185) - - 

Before 
Distribution 

13,238,450 13,870,282 13,027,506 8,324,959 15,851,604 16,260,980 Total 
shareholders 
equity After 

Distribution 
13,238,450 13,870,282 13,027,506 8,324,959 - - 

Note: The financial information above has been audited. (Information as of March 31 2007 has been reviewed by CPA) 
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Condensed Income Statement 
Currency: NTD thousand; EPS:NTD 

Financial information from 2003 to 2007 Year 
 

 
Item 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Financial 
information from 

January 1 to 
March 31, 2008 

Net interest income 4,950,587 4,955,538 5,121,120 5,038,464 5,331,732 1,386,235 
Net income other 
than interest 351,260 (178,449) (1,072,567) (5,128,382) 771,872 51,760 

Bad debt expenses (1,861,194) (1,039,212) (1,880,849) (2,903,319) (985,969) (122,604) 
Operating expenses (2,895,262) (2,994,076) (3,007,112) (2,755,042) (3,013,918) (804,709) 
Income (loss) 
before tax from 
continued 
operations  

545,391 743,801 (839,408) (5,748,279) 2,103,717 510,682 

After-tax income 
(loss) from 
continued 
operations 

339,964 493,801 (1,003,228) (4,702,547) 1,776,645 409,376 

Net Income of 
current period 339,964 493,801 (1,003,228) (4,702,547) 1,776,645 409,376 

Earnings per share 
(After-tax) 0.42 0.61 (1.25) (5.85) 1.50 0.31 

Note 1: The financial information above has been audited. (Information as of March 31 2007 has been reviewed by 
CPA) 

Note 2: The temporary shareholders’ meeting held on December 7, 2006 resolved to reduce the shares and dividends 
of the Bank by NT$7,339,264 thousand whereby 733,926,000 outstanding common shares were eliminated. 
The Board resolved to make February 8, 2007 the record date of capital mitigation.  As such, adjustment 
was made retroactively on the weighed average quantity of outstanding shares from 2003 to 2006. 

 
The names of CPA conducted financial audits in the last 5 years and their audit opinions 

 
Year 

Certified auditors 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Centre & Co., CPAs 
Yu Tien-Hsing, 

Hsiung 
Kuang-Ning 

Wu Hao-Fan 
Liao 

Kuo-Hong 
   

Deloitte & Touche (Note 2)   
Wang 

Tze-Chun 
Hsu Wen-Ya 

Hsu Wen-Ya 
Wang 

Tze-Chun 

Wang Tze-Chun 
Hsiun-Lien Lin 

Audit opinions 
Qualified 
opinions 
(Note 1) 

Qualified 
opinions 
(Note 1) 

Qualified 
opinions 
(Note 1) 

Revised 
unqualified 

opinions 
(Note 3) 

Unqualified 
opinions 

Note 1: The Bank sold non-performing assets to asset management firms in accordance with the Mergers and 
Acquisitions of Financial Institutions Act and has amortized the capital loss thereof for a period of 60 months. 
This practice violated the accounting principles generally accepted in the ROC whereby such a loss shall be 
recognized as expenses for the current period. 

Note 2: The Bank has retained a new CPA firm effective from the third quarter 2005. 
Note 3: As per the Executive Yuan Financial Supervisory Committee Letter Jin-Guan-Zheng (VI) 0950146434 dated 

October 11 2006, the Bank has changed the accounting principle in the bookkeeping of disposals of 
non-performing assets from the previous amortization during a period of 60 months pursuant to Article 15 of 
the Mergers and Acquisitions of Financial Institutions Act to write off  the deferred balance of capital loss 
from disposal of non-performing assets in a lump sum as of September 2006.  Revised unqualified opinions 
were issued due to the material incident. 
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2. Financial Analysis in the last 5 years 
Financial Analysis 

Currency in: NTD thousand 

Financial Analysis from 2003 to 2007 Consolidated financial 
analysis of 2006 and 2007 

Year 

 

Items of analysis 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Until March 
31, 2008 

2006 2007 

Deposit/Loans rate (%) 75.95 80.64 77.33 78.45 81.94 82.21 78.47 81.99 

NPL rate (%) 9.79 4.70 2.01 1.72 1.72 1.68 1.72 1.72 

Interest expenses to 
average loan balance 
ratio 

1.46 1.09 1.14 1.32 1.41 0.40 1.32 1.41 

Interest income to 
average loan balance 
ratio 

4.92 4.20 3.84 3.81 3.81 1.18 3.81 3.81 

Total assets turnover  

(times) 
2.13 1.93 1.52 (0.11) 2.32 0.54 (0.10) 2.34 

Employee average 
return 2,463 2,269 2,062 (148) 2,967 695 (137) 2,978 

Utility 

Employee average profit 164 236 (520) (2,388) 864 198 (2,378) 861 

Return on Class I 
Capital (%) 4.20 5.49 (6.28) (54.25) 17.79 3.27 (54.15) 17.98 

ROA (%) 0.15 0.20 (0.40) (1.81) 0.68 0.16 (1.81) 0.68 

ROE (%) 2.60 3.64 (7.46) (44.05) 14.70 2.55 (44.05) 14.70 

Profit Rate (%) 6.66 10.40 (25.24) (1,616.21) 29.11 28.47 (1,616.21) 29.11 

Profitability 

EPS ($) 0.42 0.61 (1.25) (5.85) 1.50 0.31 (5.85) 1.50 

Liabilities to total assets 94.45 94.33 94.99 96.77 93.93 93.82 96.77 93.93 
Financial 
structure Fixed assets to 

shareholders’ equity 30.68 30.24 30.89 46.82 23.79 23.23 46.84 23.80 

Asset Growth Rate (%) 6.91 2.54 6.55 (0.79) 1.23 0.79 (0.79) 1.21 
Growth rate 

Profit Growth Rate (%) 112.03 36.38 (212.85) (584.80) 136.60 (75.72) (596.40) 137.17 

Cash flow ratio n/a n/a 46.85 6.81 - 4.73 6.79 - 

Cash flow suitability 
rate - - - 108.53 720.59 1,252.10 103.35 722.69 Cash flows 

Cash flow adequacy rate - (38.15) (32.86) (45.98) - (15.38) (45.87) - 

Liquidity Ratio 26.25 21.63 17.48 16.48 15.37 13.90 16.48 15.37 

Total secured loans to stakeholders 2,460,464 2,276,952 1,946,294 1,853,341 1,772,335 1,694,637 1,853,341 1,772,335 

Total secured loans to stakeholders to 
total loan assets ratio 1.44 1.22 1.06 0.97 0.90 0.85 0.97 0.90 

Asset market share (%) 0.68 0.69 0.71 0.69 0.69 0.68 0.69 0.69 

Net worth market share 
(%) 0.67 0.71 0.63 0.40 0.73 0.73 0.40 0.73 

Deposit market share 
(%) 0.99 1.01 0.98 0.95 0.94 0.93 0.95 0.94 

Scale of 
operation 

Loan market share (%) 0.98 1.12 1.06 1.07 1.08 1.08 1.07 1.08 

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the last 2 years: 

1. Operating ability, profitability and growth rate: Deposit/loans rate, interest expenses to average loan balance rate, total assets turnover, employee 
average return and employee average profit, return on first pillar assets, ROA, ROE, net profit rate and EPS, asset growth rate and profit growth 
rate increase in 2007 over those in 2006.  NPL rate and interest income to average loan balance rate in 2007 are as same as those in 2006 as the 
result of capital increase and mitigation conducted by the Bank in 2007 to improve its financial structure and net worth, upgrade the quality of 
loans and strictly supervise the review of loans and, therefore, the NPL rate was not increased.  The Central Bank increased the deposit/loan 
interest rate in 2007.  Given that the deposit/loan interest spread was being shortened gradually, the interest expenses to average loan balance rate 
increased slightly, while the interest income to average loan balance rate remained unchanged.  The Bank has worked hard to develop the banking 
business and upgrade the Bank’s operational performance.  Therefore, the employee average return and profit grew remarkably in 2007. 

2. Financial structure: Liabilities to total assets rate and fixed assets to shareholders’ equity rate in 2007 was reduced over 2006.3. Cash flow analysis: 
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The increase in cash flow adequacy rate is a result of the increase in the Bank’s net cash inflow from operating activites for the most recent five 
years in 2007 over that in 2006. 

 

Note 1: The above financial information has been audited. (Information as of March 31 2007 has been reviewed by external auditors) 

Note 2: Equations for financial analysis: 

1. Utility 

(1) Loans/deposits ratio = total loans/total deposits 

(2) NPL rate = Total non-performing loans/total loans 

(3) Interest expense to average annual deposit balance ratio = total interest expenses/average annual deposit balance 

(4) Interest income to average annual loan balance ratio = total interest incomes/average annual loan balance  

(5) Total assets turnover = Earnings/Total assets 

(6) Employee average return rate = earning/Total number of employees 

(7) Employee average profit rate = EBT/Total number of employees 

2. Profitability 

(1) Return on Class I Capital = EBT/Average total amount of Class I capital 

(2) ROA = earnings/Average total assets 

(3) ROE = earnings/Average net shareholders equity 

(4) Profit rate = earnings/return 

(5) EPS = (earnings – dividends from preferred shares)/weighed average quantity of outstanding shares (Note 4) 

3. Financial Structure 

(1) Liabilities to total assets =Total liabilities /total assets 

(2) Fixed assets to net worth =net total assets/net shareholders’ equity 

4. Growth 

(1) Asset growth rate = (Total assets of current year – total assets of previous year)/total assets of previous year 

(2) Profit growth rate = (EBT of current year – EBT of previous year)/EBT of previous year 

5. Cash flow (Note 7) 

(1) Cash flow rate= net cash flow from operation /(Call loans and overdraft from banks + payable CP + financial liabilities which 
change in fair value is recognized as gain (loss) + R/P and bond liabilities + current portion of payables. 

(2) Net cash flow suitability rate= net cash flow from operation in the last 5 years/ (capital spending + cash dividends)in the last 5 years 

(3) Cash flow adequacy rate = Cash flow from operation/ cash flow from investments  

6. Liquidity Reserve Ratio = Central Bank Required Current Assets/Allowance for liquidity of liabilities 

7. Scale of operation 

(1) Asset market share = Total assets/total assets of all financial institutions available for making deposits and loans (note 2) 

(2) Net worth market share = Net worth/total net worth of all financial institutions available for making deposits and loans 

(3) Deposit market share = total deposits/total deposits of all financial institutions available for making deposits and loans 

(4) Loan market share = total loans/total loans of all financial institutions available for making deposits and loans 

Note 3: Total liabilities net of reserve, allowance for loss from bill trade, allowance for default, and allowance for contingency.  

Note 4: The following shall be considered in assessing the equation for EPS as aforementioned: 

1. Weighted average quantity of shares is on the basis of common stock, not the outstanding shares as of the end of the year.  

2. The quantity of new shares for raising new capital or treasury stock trade shall be included in the weighted average quantity of shares 
during their effective term.  

3. Where the shares may be issued through the capitalization of retained earnings or capital surplus, make adjustment in proportion to the 
quantity of shares issued in calculating the semi-annual or annual EPS of the year. The period for the release of such new shares may be 
omitted. 

4. If the preferred stock is non-convertible cumulative preferred stocks, dividend for the year (issued or not) shall be subtracted from 
earnings or added to earnings.  

5. If the preferred stock is not cumulative, dividend of such preferred stock shall be subtracted from earnings, if there is any: e.g., no 
adjustment shall be made if there is loss.  

Note 5: Financial institutions that can undertake deposits and withdrawals included domestic banks, branches of foreign banks in Taiwan, Credit 
Unions, Credit Departments of Farmers and Fishermen Associations, and investment trust firms. 

Note 6: Return rate refers to the total of incomes from interests and other sources. 

Note 7: Consider the followings in conducting cash flow analysis: 

1. Net cash flow from operation refers to net cash inflow from operation as stated in the Statement of Cash Flow 

2. Capital spending refers to the cash outflow to annual capital investments. 

3. Cash dividend includes the dividends in cash paid to holders of common shares and preferred shares.  

4. Gross fixed assets refer to total fixed assets before subtracting by accumulated depreciation. 
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Capital Adequacy 
Currency: NTD thousand 

Capital Adequacy rate from 2003 to 2007 (Note 2) 
Consolidated capital 

adequacy rate in the last 2 
years 

Year (Note 1) 
 
 

Items under analysis 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Capital 
Adequacy as 
of March 31 

2008 
(Note 5) 2006 2007 

Common shares 15,380,144 15,380,144 15,380,144 15,380,144 13,040,880 13,040,880 15,380,144 13,040,880 
Perpetual cumulative 
preferred shares 

- - - - - - - - 

No maturity non-cumulative 
2nd priority bonds 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Advance investments - - - - - - - - 

Capital surplus (exclusive of 
surplus from appreciations 
of fixed assets) 

 
10 

 
36 

 
- 

 
- 

 
750,000 

 
750,000 

 
- 

 
750,000 

Statutory reserve  - - - - - - - 

Special reserve - - - - - - - - 

Loss (gain) carried forward (2,018,161) (1,524,350) (2,513,090) (7,055,185) 1,776,645 2,186,021 (7,054,870) 1,777,461 
Minority equity - - - - - - (315) (816) 

Other shareholders’ equity (123,543) 14,452 - - - - - - 

Less: goodwill - - - - - - - - 

Less: unamortized loss from 
disposal of non-performing 
credit 

- - - - - - - - 

Less: capital deductions 104,022 127,878 115,715 103,631 143,450 136,688 79,424 91,273 

Class I 
Capital 

Total Class I capital 13,134,428 13,742,404 12,751,339 8,221,328 15,424,075 15,840,213 8,245,535 15,476,252 

Perpetual cumulative 
preferred shares 

- - - - - - - - 

No maturity cumulative 2nd 
priority bonds - - - - - - - - 

Surplus from appreciations 
of fixed assets 

- - 160,452 - 284,079 284,079 - 284,079 

45% of unrealized gain from 
financial instruments 
available for disposal 

- - - - - - - - 

Convertible Bonds     - - - - 

Allowance for operation and 
allowance for doubtful 
accounts 

275,713 224,301 104,475 198,596 208,828 78,000 198,596 208,828 

Long-term 2nd priority bonds - - - - 2,400,000 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 

Non-perpetual preferred 
shares - - - - - - - - 

The total of Perpetual 
non-cumulative preferred 
stock and no maturity 
non-cumulative 2nd priority 
bonds in excess of 15% of 
total Class I Capital 

- - - - - - - - 

Less: capital deductions 104,022 127,878 115,715 103,630 143,450 136,688 79,425 91,273 

Class II 
Capital 

Total Class II Capital 171,691 96,423 149,212 94,966 2,749,457 2,625,391 119,171 2,801,634 

Short-term 2nd priority bonds - - - - - - - - 

Non-perpetual preferred 
shares - - - - - - - - Class III 

Capital 

Total Class III Capital - - - - - - - - 

Sh
ar

es
 a

nd
 d

iv
id

en
ds

 

Shares and dividends 13,306,119 13,838,827 12,900,551 8,316,294 18,173,532 18,465,604 8,364,706 18,277,886 

StandardisedApproach 146,903,953 154,914,307 152,996,007 153,886,167 163,663,230 166,731,382 153,887,864 163,663,530 

Internal Rating Method - - - - - - - - Credit Risk 

Asset Securitization - - - - - - - - 

Basic Indicator Approach - - - - 10,339,825 10,554,275 - 10,370,850 

StandardisedApproach/optio
nal StandardisedApproach 

- - - - - - - - Operation 
risk 

Advanced Assessment - - - - - - - - 

StandardisedApproach 8,705,040 7,538,451 3,221,275 1,468,487 2,480,213 2,130,642 1,468,487 2,480,213 Market 
Risk Internal Model - - - - - - - - W

ei
gh

ed
 a

ve
ra

ge
 ri

sk
-b

as
ed

 
as

se
ts

 

Total weighed average risk-based assets 155,608,993 162,452,758 156,217,282 155,354,654 176,483,268 179,416,299 155,356,351 176,514,593 

Capital adequacy rate 8.55% 8.52% 8.26% 5.35% 10.30% 10.29% 5.38% 10.35% 

Proportion of Class I capital to risk assets 8.44% 8.46% 8.16% 5.29% 8.74% 8.83% 5.31% 8.76% 

Proportion of Class II capital to risk assets 0.11% 0.06% 0.09% 0.06% 1.56% 1.46% 0.07% 1.59% 

Proportion of Class III capital to risk assets - - - - - - - - 

Proportion of shares and dividends in common 
shares to total assets 

6.43% 6.27% 5.88% 5.93% 4.97% 4..92% 5.93% 4.97% 
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Reasons for changes in capital adequacy rates in the most recent two periods:(Analysis is not required for a change of less than 20%.) 

1. The Bank has reduced its shares by NT$7,339 million (or at 47.719%) for revitalizing its financial structure. The paid-in capital in the aftermath 
reduced from NT$15,380 million to NT$8,041 million. 

2. The Bank has raised capital of NT$5 billion by issuing new shares in Q1 of 2007 for buttressing capital structure and lifting up the capital adequacy 
rate.  The paid-in capital of the Bank amounted to NT$13,041 million after the issuance of new shares.  The Bank issued the 2nd priority financial 
bonds amounting to NT$2.4 billion in Q4 of 2007. 

3. Change in capital adequacy rates upon capital increase and mitigation: 5.38% at the end of 2006 and 8.40% in Q1 of 2007, an increase of 3.02%, 
and 10.30% upon the offering of 2nd priority financial bonds in Q4 of 2007An increase of 2.05% over that at the end of Q3 of 2007, 8.25% 

 

Note 1: The above financial information has been audited. (Information as of March 31 2007 has been reviewed by external auditors) 

Note 2: The shares and dividends and the amount of weighed average risk assets shall be filled in as required in “Regulation for Banks in the 
Management of Capital Adequacy”, and “Explanation and Forms for the Calculation of Shares and dividendss and Risk Assets by Banks”. 

Note 3: Where banks may calculate credit risk in transitional periods, fill in the amount of risk assets under the Credit Risk StandardisedApproach. 

Note 4: Specify the following equations at the end of the report: 

(1) Shares and dividends = Class I Capital + Class II Capital + Class III Capital 

(2) Total amount of weighed average risk assets = credit risk weighed average risk assets + allowance of (operation risk + market risk) x 
12.5. 

(3) Capital Adequacy rate = shares and dividends/ total amount of weighed average risk assets. 

(4) Proportion of Class I Capital to Risk Assets = Class I Capital / Total amount of weighed average asset 

(5) Proportion of Class II Capital to Risk Assets = Class II Capital / Total amount of weighed average asset 

(6) Proportion of Class III Capital to Risk Assets = Class III Capital / Total amount of weighed average asset 

(7) Proportion of shares and dividends in common shares to total assets = shares and dividends in common shares/ total assets 

Note 5: Companies listed in TSE or GreTai shall specify if the financial information in the most recent quarter to the date the financial report was 
printed, audited or reviewed or both audited and reviewed by external auditors. 

Note 6: If the year if the Basel I policy year, fill in this form as follows: 

(1) Specify 50% of Basel I capital deductible items as deductions of Class I capital and the remaining 50% as deduction of Class II capital. 

(2) Basel II credit risk capital requirement shall be stated as capital requirements of credit risk “StandardisedApproach”. 
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3. Supervisors’ Review Report on the Financial Statement of 2007 
 

Supervisors’ Review Report 
 

Date: March 24, 2008 
 

To: General Meeting of Shareholders, Taichung Commercial Bank 
 

The Board of the Taichung Commercial Bank has prepared the Report 
on Operation, Financial Statements and Tables Capital Allocation covering 
fiscal year 2007 under applicable legal rules. The Financial Statements 
were audited by Deloitte & Touche, Certified Public Accountants. We 
have reviewed the audit result and found nothing irrelevant and hereby 
present this report pursuant to Article 219 of the Company Law. 

 
 
 

Resident Supervisor         Su-Li Huang 
(Chou Chang Corporation) 

Supervisor                 Chien-Hwa Lee Fu 
(Chou Chang Corporation) 

Supervisor                 Jiann-Ell Huang 
(Chou Chang Corporation) 

Supervisor                 Chorng-Bor Chen 
(Chou Chang Corporation) 

Supervisor                 Chao-Hsiang Lee 
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4. Financial statements for 2007 
See Appendix 1. 

 
5. Consolidated financial statements for 2007 

See Appendix 2. 
 
6. In the case of any insolvency of the Bank and its affiliates, specify its effect on the financial 

position of the Bank 
None. 
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VII. Financial Position and Operation Result, Review and Analysis, and Risk 
Management 

1. Analysis of Financial Position 
Currency: in NTD thousand 

Variance Year 
Title 2007 2006 

Amount % 
Cash and cash equivalent, 
central bank deposits, call 
loans to banks 

47,913,347 54,489,950 (6,576,603) (12) 

Financial assets at fair 
value through income 
statement 

816,432 711,603 104,829 15 

Receivables -net 2,120,714 2,196,142 (75,428) (3) 
Discounts and loans - net 192,468,949 186,349,893 6,119,056 3 
Financial assets held to 
maturity – net 11,346,949 7,048,627 4,298,322 61 

Equity investment under 
equity method 104,354 48,412 55,942 116 

Other financial assets - net 211,549 158,934 52,615 33 
Fixed assets –net 3,770,773 3,897,913 (127,140) (3) 
Other assets 3,901,687 4,558,799 (657,112) (14) 

Total assets 262,654,754 259,460,273 3,194,481 1 
Vostro accounts 3,168,649 3,315,568 (146,919) (4) 
Financial liabilities at fair 
value through income 
statement 

 
270 

 
382 

 
(112) 

 
(29) 

R/P and bond liabilities 0 848,061 (848,061) (100) 
Payables 2,688,097 6,470,463 (3,782,366) (58) 
Deposits and remittances 237,831,638 239,800,057 (1,968,419) (1) 
Payable financial bonds 2,400,000 0 2,400,000 - 
Accruable pension 
liabilities 292,480 232,979 59,501 26 

Other financial liabilities 45 93 (48) (52) 
Other liabilities 421,971 467,711 (45,740) (10) 

Total liabilities 246,803,150 251,135,314 (4,332,164) (2) 
Shares and dividendss 13,040,880 15,380,144 (2,339,264) (15) 
Capital surplus 750,000 0 750,000 - 
Retained earnings 
(accumulated loss) 1,776,645 (7,055,185) 8,831,830 125 

Unrealized appreciations 284,079 0 284,079 - 
Total shareholders equity 15,851,604 8,324,959 7,526,645 90 

 
�Analysis of the changes: 

(1) The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is a result of the decrease in payables, 
because the last three days at the end of 2006 were holidays and the accumulated 
exchange of financial instruments increased, and the last day at the end of 2007 was 
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a business day and the financial instruments to be exchanged decrease.  The 
decrease in central bank deposits and call loans to banks is a result of the decrease in 
call loans to banks. 

(2) The increase in financial assets at fair value through income statement is a result of 
the increase in investment in doemstic stock traded on TSEC (GreTai), beneficial 
securities and foreign exchange agreements. 

(3) The increase in financial assets held to maturity-net is a result of the purchase of 
foreign bonds in 2007. 

(4) The increase in equity investment under equity method is a result of the Bank’s new 
investment in Taichung Insurance Agent, NT$6,000 thousand, in 2007, and the 
increase in the investment income recognized under equity method in 2007. 

(5) The increase in other financial assets-net is a result of the investment in TSEC, 
NT$52,700 thousand. 

(6) The decrease in other assets is a result of the active acceptance of collaterals, 
outstanding disposal of partial collaterals which expired the statutory time limit as 
recognized the impairment loss on assets, and the decrease in deferred income tax 
assets-net. 

(7) The decrease in financial liabilities at fair value through income statement is a result 
of the decrease in the evaluation loss on forward exchange contracts. 

(8) The RP and bond liabilities decrease because the Bank's capital was sufficient in 
2007 and rejected the underwriting. 

(9) The decrease in payables is a result of the increase in financial instruments to be 
exchanged on the Balance Sheet day in 2006, which was not a business day. 

(10) The increase in accruable pension liabilities is a result of the increase in the projected 
benefit obligation and unrecognized pension loss. 

(11) The payable financial bonds refer to the 2nd priority financial bonds issued in 2007. 
(12) The decrease in other financial liabilities is a result of the decrease in payable rents. 
(13) The decrease in other liabilities is a result of the decrease in receipts in advance 

resulting from the active processing of overdue loans and decrease in receipts in 
advance for principal and interest of overdue loans. 

(14) The primary cause for the increase in retained earnings is the change in accounting 
principles in 2006 whereby the unamortized balance of disposal of NPL amounted to 
NT$4,661,392 thousand was written off in lump sum in September 2006 and the 
accumulated loss increased by NT$4,542,095 thousand, and plus the loss for the 
previous year, NT$2,513,090 thousand, the accumulated loss stated at the end of 
2006 became NT$7,055,185 thousand.  The loss was covered by the shares and 
dividends in common shares, NT$7,339,264 thousand, in 2007, and the unrealized 
appreciations to cover the loss in the previous year was recovered, NT$284,079 
thousand.  The net income was NT$1,776,645 thousand in 2007. 

(15) The increase in shareholders’ equity is a result of the increase/decrease in said 
retained earnings, in addition to the Bank’s capital mitigation and increase resulting 
in the improvement of the Bank’s financial structure and net worth.  The Bank’s 
paid-in capital upon capital mitigation and increase was NT$13,040,880 thousand.  
The capital surplus refers to the premium generated from the capital increase by 
issuance of new shares exceeding the stock issued at book value in 2007.  
Unrealized appreciations refer to the unrealized assets appreciations which were 
resolved to be reversed by the shareholders' meeting in 2007. 
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2. Analysis of Operation Result 
Currency: in NTD thousand 

Title 2007 2006 Change in 
amount 

Change in 
percentage 

(%) 
Net interest income 5,331,732 5,038,464 293,268 6 
Net income other than 
interest 771,872 (5,128,382) 5,900,254 115 

Bad debt expenses (985,969) (2,903,319) (1,917,350) (66) 
Operating expenses (3,013,918) (2,755,042) 258,876 9 
Income before taxation 
of continued operations 
(loss) 

2,103,717 (5,748,279) 7,851,996 137 

Income before taxation 
of continued operations 
(loss) 

1,776,645 (4,702,547) 6,479,192 138 

Income-current period 
(loss) 1,776,645 (4,702,547) 6,479,192 138 

Earnings per share 
(Loss) (NTD) 1.50 (5.85) 7.35 126 

 
�Analysis of the changes: 

(1) The increase in net income other than interest is a result of amortization, deferral and 
disposal of NPL, NT$5,666,266 thousand, in 2006, and no amortization, deferral and 
disposal of NPL in 2007. 

(2) The primary cause for the increase in NPL expense was the improvement of asset 
quality in 2006 whereby the writing off of bad debts accelerated with the increase in 
allowance for bad debts. 

(3) The primary cause for the increase in the income-current period is the change in 
accounting principles in 2006 whereby the unamortized balance of disposal of NPL 
amounted to NT$4,661,392 thousand was written off in lump sum in September 
2006.  The decrease in bad debt expenses is a result of the increase in the income 
resulting from the incrase in the income from fees income, interest and financial 
assets/liabilities at fair value through income statement in 2007. 

(4) The primary cause for the increase in EPS was the change in accounting principle by 
the Bank in 2006 thereby the deferred balance of disposals of NPL was written off in 
lump sum in September 2006, which resulted in the increase in the income after 
taxation.A special session of the Board held on December 7, 2006 resolved to reduce 
the shares and dividends of the Bank by NT$7,339,264 thousand whereby 
733,926,000 outstanding common shares were eliminated. The Board resolved to 
make February 8, 2007 the record date of capital mitigation.  As such, the weighed 
average quantity of outstanding shares was 804,088 thousand shares in 2006 upon 
retroactive adjustment.March 7, 2007 was set as the “new shares issuing and 
subscription date”.  The total shares issued amounted to NT$5,750,000 thousand.  
The offering has been completed on March 26, 2007.  Therefore, the Bank’s 
financial structure and net worth have been improved significantly.  The weighted 
average quantity of outstanding shares upon capital mitigation and incrase in 2007 
was 1,187,650 thousand shares. 
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3. Cash flow analysis 
(1) Liquidity Analysis as of December 31, 2007 and 2006: 

Unit: % 
Year 

Subject 
December 31 2007 December 31 2006 Change in 

proportion 
Cash flow ratio (%) - 6.81 - 
Cash flow suitability ratio (%) 720.59 108.53 563.95 
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) - (45.98) - 

 
�Analysis of changes: 

The primary cause for the decline in cash flow rate was the decrease of net cash inflow 
from operating activities in 2006 from the level as in 2005. 

 
(2) Cash flow analysis for the year ahead 

Currency: in NTD thousand 
Remedy for cash gap 

Cash balance 
at beginning 
� 

Net cash flow 
from operating 

activities of 
the year 
� 

Cash outflow 
of the year 
� 

Projected cash 
balance (gap) 
����� 

Investment 
plan 

Financing 
plan 

4,197,402 1,555,100 1,195,000 6,947,502 - - 

 
�Analysis of change in cash flow: 

1. Operating: The net cash inflow from operating activities will be generated as a result 
of the projected income in 2008, which will also be applied to purchase financial 
assets at fair value through income statement. 

2. Investing: The net cash outflow from investing activities is a result of the increase in 
projected discounts and loans, acquisition of financial assets held to maturity, central 
bank deposits and call loans to banks and other financial assets. 

3. Financing: The net cash inflow from financing activities is a result of the increase in 
projected deposits and remittances, RP and bond liabilities and other financial 
liabilities.  The net cash flow from investing activities and financing activities of the 
year was cash inflow. 

(3) Corrective action plan on inadequate liquidity: n/a. 
 
4. Major capital expenditure in 2007 and its effect on financial position and operation of the 

Bank 
None. 

 
5. Direct investment policy, the main reasons for profit or loss, and corrective action plan in 

2007, and investment plan in the next year 
(1) Direct investment policy in the most recent year: 

In 2007, the Bank invested in the installation of a full-range financial product sales 
platform for meeting business development needs and the eventual goal of perpetual 
development in operation and competitive power internally, and invested in ideal 
investment items externally for supporting government policy in strategic investment in 
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the financial sector and for upgrading the quality of the whole financial market. 
(2) The main reason for profit or loss from direct investment in the most recent year: 

The Bank continues its conservation tradition in investment, and has exercised proper 
risk control in business development and joint ventures in all investments. Both 
subsidiaries to the Bank yielded profits. 

(3) Corrective Action Plan: 
Further to buttressing risk control and cooperation with all subsidiaries, the Bank has 
also proactively reviewed the ROE performance and business development of the 
subsidiaries and has made proper planning on the efficient allocation of funds between 
itself and the subsidiaries. 

(4) Investment plan in the next year: none. 
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6. Risk Management 
(1) Qualitative and quantitative information about the various risks: 

A. Credit risk management system and capital requirement: 
(i) Credit risk management system 

 

Item Contents 

1. Credit risk 
strategies, 
objectives, 
policies and 
processes 

1. The Bank will comply with the supervisory 
requirements and the New Basel Capital Accord to 
develop the sound credit risk management mechanism 
to identify, assess, monitor and control the credit risk 
effectively,—and seek the balance between the 
tolerable risk level and expected return level. 

2. The Bank will consider the business circle and the 
effect thereof to the quality of the entire loan asset 
portfolio with different types of business and 
complexity of the business, and will make adjustment 
periodically subject to the changes in internal and 
external environment to ensure that the strategies and 
relevant capital utilization plan policies will cover all 
credit risks. 

3. The Bank will evaluate and monitor the quality of the 
various assets, enhance the management on 
extraordinary loan and truly provide the allowance for 
potential loss.  The relevant operation and process 
shall be conducted subject to the Bank’s rules and 
guidelines, and the senior management will be 
provided with the credit risk report for reference when 
making any decision. 

2. Credit risk 
management 
organization and 
structure: 

The Board is the supreme decision-making entity in 
credit risk management of the Bank, which governs Risk 
Management Committee, Risk Management Department, 
business supervisory departments, business entities 
(including regional centers), Loan Review Committee, 
Pastdue Loan Management Committee, loan review 
committee of the regional centers, and Audit Office of 
the Board. 

3. Scope and 
characteristics of 
credit risk report 
and measurement 
system 

1. Measure the credit risk factors of the Bank’s 
businesses, covering all transactions included in the 
banking books and trading books, and on-balance 
sheet and off-balance sheet, and the existing or new 
businesses handled by the various entities. 

2. Establish the credit risk monitor mechanism to 
monitor the credit risk of individual loan and loan 
portfolio; the monitor mechanism includes the limit 
management, post-lending management, collateral 
management and asset quality management 

3. Provide senior management with the credit risk report 
for reference to help them make any decision 
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4. Credit risk 
hedging or 
mitigation 
policies, and 
effective 
strategies and 
process for 
controlling risk 
hedging and 
mitigation tools 

1. According to the existing limit management system, 
the specific limit is defined towards the same person, 
related party, affiliate, group enterprise and industry, 
collateral and country to prevent the credit risk from 
being concentrated overly. 

2. Enhance the credit account gurarantee by soliciting 
collaterals, guarantors or guarantee under the of SME 
Credit Gurantee Fund 

5. Approach for 
regulatory capital 
charge 

The Standardised Approach 

 
(ii) Exposure and capital requirement under the credit risk standardised 

approach after risk mitigation: 
 
 December 31, 2007 Unit: in NTD thousand 

Type of exposure Exposure after risk 
mitigation Capital requirement 

Sovereigns  - - 
Non-central government public 
sector entities 711,299 11,381 

Banks (included nultilateral 
development banks) 9,733,196 189,341 

Corporates (included securities and 
Insurance companies) 43,061,147 3,417,687 

Claims on retail 124,539,564 8,088,859 
Residential property 24,867,813 912,441 
Equity securities investments 29,800 9,536 
Other assets 6,681,404 463,813 
Total 209,624,223 13,093,058 

 
B. Risk management system, exposure and capital requirement of asset 

securitization: 
 

Item Contents 

1. Asset securitization management strategy and process Not 
applicable 

2. Asset securitization management organization and framework Not 
applicable 

3. Scope and characteristics of asset securitization risk report 
and measuring system 

Not 
applicable 

4. Asset securitization hedging or risk mitigation policies, and 
effective strategies and process for controlling risk hedging 
and mitigation tools 

Not 
applicable 
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5. Approach to require the authorized capital Not 
applicable 

 
C. Operational risk management system and capital requirement: 

(i) Operational risk management system 
 

Item Contents 
1. Operational risk 

management strategy and 
process 

By establishing and executing the sound 
operational risk management mechanism, the 
Bank manages the operational risk actively, 
generally evaluates the frequency and effect 
of the various potential risks in routines and 
management and takes the appropriate 
counterassessments to avoid, transfer or write 
off, control and bear the risk to reduce the 
substantial loss and frequencies. 

2. Operation risk management 
organization and structure 

The Board is the supreme decision-making 
entity in operational risk of the banks, which 
is entitled to approve the definitions of the 
relevant operational risk and provide the 
senior management with the guidelines to 
identify, measure, communicate and monitor 
the operational risk.  It established Assets 
and Liabilities Management Committee and 
Risk Management Commtitee as the risk 
management entities of the Bank.The Bank 
also established the independent Risk 
Management Department responsible for the 
management and monitor of the Bank’s 
operational risk. 

3. Scope and characteristics of 
operational risk report and 
measurement system 

When measuring the operational risk, each 
entity shall conduct qualitative and quantative 
analysis on the cause, consequence, frequency 
and effect thereof and conclude the degree of 
individual risk to verify the exposure of the 
Bank’s operational risk.Each entity shall also 
record the various exposures.  The 
responsible entity shall present the report for 
the risk identified by the entity.  By 
introducing the operational risk identification, 
measurement, monitor and report 
management mechanism, the Bank establishes 
and centrally manages the database for the 
Bank’s operational risk loss events and 
summarizes the operational risk information 
and capital utilization plan status, and submit 
the report and suggestions to Risk 
Management Committee and the Board 
periodically. 
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4. Operation risk hedging or 
mitigation policies, and 
effective strategies and 
process for controlling risk 
hedging and mitigation tools 

In order to enhance the monitor over 
operational risk, the Bank also establishes the 
risk evaluation and monitor various changes 
in the indicators according to the four 
dimensions of operational risk, i.e. operation 
procedure, personnel, system and external 
incidents, in order to reduce the operational 
risk loss effectively, the Bank can transfer or 
write off the loss and impact of incidents 
caused by operational risk through insurance 
and outsourcing, in part or in whole. 

5. Approach for regulatory 
capital charge 

Basic Indicator Approach 

 
(ii) Captial requireqment for operational risk: 
 

 December 31,2007 Unit: in NTD thousand 
Year Gross profit Capital requirement 

 
93 5,466,972 

94 5,803,726 
95 5,273,028 

 

Total 16,543,726 827,186 

 
D. Market risk management system and capital requirement: 

(i) Market risk management system 
 

Item Contents 
1. Market risk management 

strategy and process 
The Bank’s market risk management strategy 
is to develop the sound and effective market 
risk management mechanism.  The 
mechanism shall correspond to the Bank’s 
business scale, nature and complexity to 
ensure the proper management of the market 
risk to be borne by the Bank and seek the 
balance between the tolerable risk level and 
expect return level. The Bank's market risk 
management process covers the risk 
identification, evaluation, measurement, 
monitor and report.  The contents thereof 
cover the market risk related to the Bank’s 
major traded products, trading activities, 
process and system. 

2. Market risk management 
organization and structure 

1. The Bank’s market risk management 
organization and structure includes the 
Board , Risk Management Committee, Risk 
Management Department, business 
supervisory entities, business trading 
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entities and Audit Office of the Board. 
2. The Board is the supreme decision-making 

entity in market risk management of the 
bank, and takes the ultimate responsibility 
for the Bank's market risk management. 
Risk Management Committee takes charge 
of the Bank’s market risk management 
mechanism according to the market risk 
management policy authorized by the 
Board.Risk Management Department is the 
entity dedicated to the Bank’s market risk 
management, responsible for consolidating 
and executing the Bank’s entire market risk 
management.Business supervisory entities 
are responsible for managing and 
supervising the necessary risk management 
tasks to be executed by business trading 
entities and working with Risk 
Management Department to complete the 
control of the Bank’s risks.Business trading 
entities are responsible for executing the 
risk identification, evaluation and 
measurement, and taking appropriate 
counterassessments.Audit Office of the 
Board executes the market risk 
management auditing business 
independently and provides the suggestions 
for corrective action. 

3. Scope and characteristics of 
market risk report and 
measurment system 

Each business trading entity shall submit the 
trading information related to the market risk 
to the business supervisory entity and Risk 
Management Department.  Risk Management 
Department shall consolidate and summarize 
the information and present the report to Risk 
Management Committee and the Board.  The 
contents of said report cover all market risk 
positions and ensure that the various 
transactions are conducted under authorization 
and the specific limit. The Bank’s existing IT 
system is primiarly engaged in the limit 
management.  Following the business 
development, the Bank will establish the risk 
measuring system in accordance with the 
Internal Model under the New Basel Capital 
Accord. 

4. Market risk hedging or 
mitigation policies, and 
effective strategies and 
process for controlling risk 
hedging and mitigation tools 

The Bank’s transactions subject to market risk 
have defined the limits of the various 
investment objects in the relevant rules.  The 
specific limits is also set against the trading 
counterpart based on its credit rating and 
financial status to prevent the operation of 
fund from being highly concentrated.  Each 
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business trading entity shall adjust the 
operational position according to the change 
in the relevant market environments under the 
authority granted to it, and adopt any available 
derivative product to hedge risk in a timely 
manner and execute the relevant stop-loss 
mechanism whenever necessary.Said relevant 
requirements shall be reviewed and revised 
subject to the operation plan, business 
development and changes in the entire 
financial environment. 

5. Approach for regulatory 
capital charge 

The Standardised Approach 

 
(ii) Captial requireqment for market risk: 

 December 31, 2007 Unit: in NTD thousand 
Type of risk Capital requirement 

Interest rate risk 63,798 
Equity securities risk 126,638 
Foreign exchange risk 7,981 
Commodity risk - 
Total 198,417 
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E. Liquidity risk including the analysis of maturities of assets and liabilities: 
(i) Analysis of maturity structure of NTD: 

 
 December 31, 2007 Currency: NTD million 

Remaining balance to maturity 
 Total 1 to 30 

days 
31 to 90 

days 
91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 

1 year 
More than 

1 year 
Main capital inflow 
upon maturity 321,522 38,085 18,859 38,553 42,553 183,472 

Main capital outflow 
upon maturity 346,290 32,190 28,715 34,667 82,940 167,778 

Gap (24,768) 5,895 (9,856) 3,886 (40,387) 15,694 

 
 March 31, 2008 Currency: NTD million 

Remaining balance to maturity 
 Total 1 to 30 

days 
31 to 90 

days 
91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 

1 year 
More than 

1 year 
Main capital inflow 
upon maturity 320,569 39,013 28,719 32,636 40,176 180,025 

Main capital outflow 
upon maturity 348,175 28,076 34,249 44,519 73,099 168,232 

Gap (27,606) 10,937 (5,530) (11,883) (32,923) 11,793 

 
(ii) Analysis of the maturity structure of USD: 

 December 31, 2007 Currency: in USD thousand 

Remaining balance to maturity 
 Total 1 to 30 

days 
31 to 90 

days 
91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 

1 year 
More than 

1 year 
Main capital inflow 
upon maturity 490,795 82,994 50,830 91,419 15,365 250,187 

Main capital outflow 
upon maturity 456,259 108,552 39,668 256,762 51,277 - 

Gap 34,536 (25,558) 11,162 (165,343) (35,912) 250,187 

 
 March 31, 2008 Currency: in USD thousand 

Remaining balance to maturity 
 Total 1 to 30 

days 
31 to 90 

days 
91 to 180 

days 
181 days 
to 1 year 

More than 
1 year 

Main capital inflow 
upon maturity 501,281 93,388 50,176 105,005 10,960 241,752 

Main capital outflow 
upon maturity 463,918 129,187 168,961 131,040 14,730 20,000 

Gap 37,363 (35,799) (118,785) (26,035) (3,770) 221,752 
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(2) Changes in government policies and legal environment at home and abroad, and the 
effect on the financial position and operation of the Bank, and counterassessments: 
A. Effect of Consumer Debt Clearance Regulations to the Bank’s business, and 

counterassessments: 
(i) Consumer Debt Clearance Regulations passed the Legislative Yuan on July 

11, 2007 and was enforced as of April 11, 2008.  The enforcement of the 
Regulations brought out the effect to the non-secured personal loans, 
consumer loans and credit card debts.  However, the Bank accepted few 
consumer loan cases, and ceased issuing cash cards as of July 2005 and 
frozened the limit of credit unused, and then cancelled the cash advance 
from credit cards.  Meanwhile, the non-performing credit card debts would 
be written off into bad debt pursuant to the relevant requirements.  
Therefore, no significant effect has been caused to the Bank. 

(ii) As of December 2005, the Bank has reduced the authorized limit of small 
consumer loans from NT$800,000 to NT$400,000 and also adjusted the 
personal ratings for reference when reviewing the credit extension, in order 
to strictly select the counterparts and sources of cases and to avoid accepting 
bad credit cases and reduce NPL. 

(iii) The Bank’s credit extension policy has been adjusted to the one primarily 
engaged in promoting SME loans and cautious in processing personal house 
loans and dedicated to reducing the proportion of personal houseloans, in 
order to reduce the credit extension risk.  

B. Effect of the amended Civil Code, Part of Inheritence, to the Bank’s business, and 
counterassessments: 
(i) Carefully consider the financial condition and age of borrowers and 

guarantors, and process non-secured personal credit extension subject to the 
optimal financial condition and age of borrowers and guarantors 

(ii) Research the non-secured credit extension cases tied with insurance 
business to transfer the risk upon the insurance company lest the heir 
petition for restricted inheritance upon the borrower’s death to avoid 
repayment to the Bank 

C. Effect of the New Basel Capital Accord to the Bank’s business, and 
counterassessments: 
(i) The Bank has adopted the New Basel Capital Accord pursuant to the 

supervisory requirement as of 2007, and adopted the Standardised Approach 
for capital requirement of market risk-weighted assets. The capital 
requirement for operational risk as added is subject to Basic Indicator 
Method. 

(ii) To cope with the enforcement of the New Basel Capital Accord, the Bank 
established Risk Management Department dedicated to risk management 
and regulation and continued establishing the risk-based management 
system. The Bank’s short-term objective is to establish the banking culture 
oriented towards risk management in accordance with The Second 
Pillar –Supervisory Review Process and The Third Pillar—Market 
Disciplines, and then the Bank will upgrade the risk management objectives 
step by step. 

(3) The effect of technological and industrial changes on the financial position and 
operation of the Bank and counterassessments: 
A. Effect of technological changes on the financial position and operation of the 
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Bank: 
Due to the on-going repaid innovation of information technology and wide 
application of such technology, the effect to the financial position and operation 
of the Bank is specified as following: 
(i) e-trading replaces traditional manual operation. 
(ii) The Bank needs to utilize the Internet banking operations to reduce the 

operating cost. 
(iii) The Internet may break through the time and geographical restricts to enable 

the Bank’s marketing channels and business model to become more 
diversified. 

(iv) The technological improvement implies many safety and provicy concerns, 
and the operating risk is increased relatively. 

To cope with the IT trend, the Bank takes the following response actions: 
(i) The Bank continues utilizing the network, ATM and voice mail to provide 

diversified, repaid and safe service systems and more extensive trading 
channels to customers. 

(ii) The Bank continues installing internet banking platforms to replace the 
traditional time-consuming manual operation and upgrade the internal 
operation efficiency and reduce the operating cost. 

(iii) The Bank enhances the anti-virus and intrusion detection on internet 
banking platforms to prevent hackers. 

(iv) The Bank installs the remote support system and defines emergency 
response actions to provide a sustained operation environment and ensure 
customers’ interests and rights. 

B. Effect of industrial changes, and countermeaures: 
In the recent years, the domestic traditional industries have massively emigrated 
to SEA countries and Mainland China.  Due to the fact that it was hard for the 
Bank to control the purpose and whereabouts of the fund borrowed by Taiwanese 
businessmen engaged in investment in Mainland China and also to seek the 
investigative information, the Bank established the “overseas taskforce” to visit 
the Bank’s trading Taiwanese businessmen overseas and condut the on-site survey 
to meet the business entity’s need when reviewing the credit extension, so as to 
verify and evaluate the borrower’s overview of operation.  The Bank will also 
take response actions to secure its credit, enhance the control of the risk in credit 
extension to overseas Taiwanese businessmen and upgrade the credit extension 
quality to reduce bad debts and NPL. 

(4) The effect of the change in the corporate image of the Bank and counterassessments: 
In order to establish its corporate identity and highlight the local culture, the Bank was 
renamed from “Taichung (in regular Chinese characters) Commercial Bank�  to 
�Taichung (in simplified Chinese characters) Commercial Bank�, a.k.a "Taichung 
Bank�, and also replaced all signboards at its business entities with those depicting the 
new characters to build its brand new corporate identity, which were well recognized by 
customers and the general public.  The Bank was also dedicated to improving its 
financial structure and effectively increased its capital adequacy rate and reduced the 
NPL rate.  Taichung Bank’s fine-quality image has been deeply impressed customers.  
The Bank will be dedicated to managing the sector of SME and oriented towards 
internationalization and globalization. 
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(5) Expected result and possible risks of mergers and acquisitions and counterassessments: 
None. 

 
(6) Expected result for establishing more business locations, possible risk and 

counterassessments: None 
 

(7) Risk in the over concentration of business and counterassessments: The Bank has 
maintained a proper balance of banking services and there is no over concentration to 
the extent that diversification of risk is impossible. 

 
(8) The effect of change in the management of the Bank, possible risk and 

counterassessments: None. 
 

(9) Legal actions and non-contentious matters: 
A. The Kuang San Group’s illegal and excessive borrowing and investment and 

default in the delivery of stocks issued by Shun Ta Yu was uncovered in 
November 1998.  The loss suffered by the Bank has been fully written off into 
bad debt.Taichung District Court Prosecutors’ Office and Taichung District Court 
have seized the amount of NT$2,645,915 thousand involved in the case.  In the 
first trial instance, the court ruled that NT$1,597,653 thousand of the seized 
amount was illegal loans from the Bank.  However, the court ruled in the second 
trial instance that the Bank and the victimized securities dealers should be entitled 
to distribution in proportion with the amount involved in the default of stock 
delivery thereby the Bank should be entitled to NT$767,417 thousand in the 
distribution.  The case has been remanded by the Supreme Court to Taiwan High 
Court, Taichung Branch for reconsideration in 2nd trial instance.  Therefore, it is 
not possible to identify the actual amount recoverable at this moment. 

B. The Bank has filed criminal charges of breach of fiduciary duty and violations of 
the Securities and Exchanges Act and the Anti-Money Laundering Act against the 
core members of the illegal loans of the Kuang San Group Case at Central Taipei 
Branch and the phony accounts of defaulting stock delivery as well as the 
involved securities dealers.  Except that the judgment on the criminal action as to 
the defaulting stock delivery has been final and irrevocable, the other actions were 
remanded by the Supreme Court to Taiwan High Court, Taichung Branch for 
reconsideration in 2nd trial instance.  Further, the Bank claimed the damages 
against the head of the criminal group and the accomplices amounted to 
approximately NT$11,236,748 thousand.  The civil case is now pending in 
Taichung District Court.In the criminal action against Liu Sung-Fan for breach of 
fiduciary duty, he was found guilty in 2nd tiral instance, and the judgment on the 
civil action was rendered in favor of the Bank on June 28, 2007. 

C. With respect to the traces of funds in the Kuang San Case, according to the tables 
attached to Verdict (88) Su-Zhi No. 367 issued by Taichung District Court, and the 
mentioning of the alleged suspicion of involvement of money laundery against 
Shanghai Commercial and Saving Banks Chung Kang Branch, whereby the Judge 
being about to turn the criminal facts to Prosecutor’s Office, the Bank therefore on 
July 23, 2001, has filed the private prosecution for criminal action against the 
branch involved and the Manager of Chung Kang Branch at the time of the case, 
and also filed civil action for compensation in the amount of NT$5,734,272 
thousand on Dec. 18, 2002. The case is now pending in the Taiwan High Court 
Taichung Branch. 
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D. Because Chang Wen-Yi and Tseng Cheng-Jen were both infringers for illegal 
loans and defaulty stock delivery in Kuang San Case and Chang Wen-Yi was the 
Chairman of Board of Shun Ta Yu in 1999, the Bank claimed that he should be 
liable for the damages jointly and severally.  The amount claimed in 1st trial 
instance was NT$11,299,953 thousand, and reduced to be NT$650,000 thousand 
in 2nd trial instance.  The judgment was rendered in disfavor of the Bank in 1st 
and 2nd trial instances.  For disagreement with the judgment, the Bank has filed 
an appeal, and now the case is pending in the Supreme Court. 
The Bank also filed a civil action with monetary claim against Shun Ta Yu.  The 
claimed money was NT$50,000 thousand.The judgment was rendered in favor of 
the Bank by the Taiwan High court Taichung Branch.  The opposing party filed 
the appeal, and now the case is pending in the Supreme Court. 

E. Prior to the General Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held in June 2005, 
there were released information on newspapers alleging that the Bank offered the 
purchase of proxies. One of the shareholders of the Bank, Yan Mei Lee thereby 
accused against the Bank for violating the �Rules of Attending General Meeting 
of Shareholders of Public Listing Companies through Proxy� and filed an action 
for the revocation of the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the 
Bank on the election of Directors and Supervisors.  The Bank considered that her 
accusation were against the truth and the resolution should be still valid.  
Taichung District Court ruled in favor of the Bank in October 2006.  The 
opposing party subsequently filed an appeal, and Taiwan High Court, Taichung 
Branch still rendered the judgment in favor of the Bank in June 2007.  Eventually, 
the judgment in favor of the Bank has become final and irrevocable on August 13, 
2007. 

 
(10) Other major risks and counterassessments: None. 

 
7. Crisis management response mechanism 

The Bank has established the “Implementation Procedure in Emergency” as the guideline for 
response to any crisis.  In the event of any crisis, the Bank may take the appropriate response 
actions subject to the circumstances. 

 
8. Other important notes 

None. 
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VIII. Special Notes 
 
1. Information on affiliates 
 

(1) Consolidated Report on Operation of subsidiaries: 
 

A. Chart showing the affiliations with subsidiaries: 
 

(i) The Dominant Company and subordinate companies 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(ii) Cross-investment: none. 
 

(iii) Subsidiaries and subsidiaries: None 
 

B. Profiles of affiliates: 
Currency: in NTD thousand 

Name of enterprise Date of 
establishment Address Paid-in 

capital Principal business 

Parent Name of enterprise     
Taichung Commercial Bank 

Company Limited 
1953.08.26 No. 87, Min Chuan 

Road, West District, 
Taichung 

13,040,880 Banking business as 
permitted under the 
Banking Act 

Subsidiaries     
Taichung Commercial Bank 

Life Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. (Note 1) 

2001.10.11 2F.No. 87, Min 
Chuan Road, , West 
District, Taichung 

6,000 Agent of personal 
insurance 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. (Note 2) 

2001.10.11 2F.No. 87, Min 
Chuan Road, , West 
District, Taichung 

3,000 Agent of property 
insurance 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

2007.09.26 No. 87, Min Chuan 
Road, 2/F, West 
District, Taichung 

6,000 Insurance agent 

Note 1: The special session of the shareholders’ meeting on Dec. 25, 2007 resolved that Taichung Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance Agency Company Ltd. should be wound up and liquidated on Jan. 19, 2008. 

Note 2: The special session of the shareholders’ meeting on Dec. 27, 2007 resolved that Taichung Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance Agency Company Ltd. should be wound up and liquidated on Jan. 19, 2008. 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Co., Ltd. 

Taichung Bank Life Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. 

Taichung Bank Property Insurance 
Agency Company Ltd. 

Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance 
Agent Co., Ltd. 

99% 

99% 

100% 
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C. Entities presumed in parent-subsidiary relations and information on identical 
shareholders: None 

 
D. (i) The industries housed in the same business location of the whole business 

group: 
� Commercial bank: Banking business as permitted under the Banking 

Act 
� Insurance Agent: 

Please refer to Paragraph 2, Profiles of Affiliates. 
� Insurance agent: 

Please refer to Paragraph 2, Profiles of Affiliates. 
 

(ii) The division of labor of affiliates: 
The business group started with banking through Taichung Commercial 
Bank, and Taichung Commercial Bank Life Insurance Agency Company 
Ltd. and Taichung Commercial Bank Property Insurance Agency Company 
Ltd. acted as agents for domestic insurance companies in insurance policies.  
Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance Agent acted as the agent for personal 
and property insurance, and developed the business through employees of 
Taichung Commercial Bank as the channels. 
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E. Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Presidents of affiliates: 
Unit: in thousand shares 

Status of shareholding 
Name of enterprise Title Name or representative 

Quantity Proportion of 
shareholding 

Name of enterprise     
Taichung Commercial Bank 
Company Limited 

Chairman Representative to Pan Asia Chemical Corporation: 91,428 7.01% 

  Hsui-Nan Huang - - 
 Vice Chairman Representative to Pan Asia Chemical Corporation: 91,428 7.01% 
  Chao-Chang Wang - - 
 Managing Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical Corporation: 91,428 7.01% 
  Ching-Huang Tsai - - 
 Managing Director Yi-Te Chen 7,834 0.60% 
 Director Po Han Investment Corporation 2 - 
 Director Representative to Pan Asia Chemical Corporation: 91,428 7.01% 
  Che-Nan Wang 3,251 0.25% 
  Yuh-Eing Chung 64 - 
  Chuang-Shang Hong 50 - 
  Kuei-Fong Wang 84 - 
  Hsin-Ching Chang - - 
  Ming-Shan Chuang - - 
 Director Representative to Hong- Ching Investment 

Corporation: 
809 0.06% 

  Ya-Chuan Tsai 564 0.04% 
 Director Representative to Yu-Feng Investment Corporation: 1,986 0.15% 
  Wen-Pin Liao 1,092 0.08% 

 
(Continued on next page) 
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(Continued from previous page) 
 

Status of shareholding 
Name of enterprise Title Name or representative 

Quantity Proportion of 
shareholding 

 Director Representative to Chiung Tung Investment 
Corporation: 

4,330 0.33% 

  Ching-Hsin Chang - - 
 Director Steve Chang - - 
 Resident Supervisor Representative to Chou Chang Corporation: 6,535 0.50% 
  Su-Li Huang - - 
 Supervisor Representative to Chou Chang Corporation: 6,535 0.50% 
  Jiann-Ell Huang - - 
  Chien-Hwa Lee Fu - - 
  Chorng-Bor Chen - - 
 Supervisor Chao-Hsiang Lee - - 
 President Yuh-Eing Chung 64 - 
Subsidiaries     
Taichung Commercial Bank Life 
Insurance Agency Company Ltd. 

Chairman Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 594  

  Ching-Huang Tsai - 99.00% 
 Director Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 594 - 
  Shu-Chen Chen - 99.00% 
  Ching-Kun Lin - - 
  Hsin-Ching Chang - - 
  Kai-Yu Lin - - 
 Supervisor Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 594 - 
  Yi-Te Chen - 99.00% 

 
(Continued on next page) 
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(Continued from previous page) 
 

Status of shareholding 
Name of enterprise Title Name or representative 

Quantity Proportion of 
shareholding 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. 

Chairman Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 297 99.00% 

  Yuh-Eing Chung - - 
 Director Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 297 99.00% 
  Kai-Yu Lin - - 
  Hsueh-Hsien Liao - - 
  He-Chin Chang - - 
  Chung-Liang Ho - - 
 Supervisor Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 297 99.00% 
  Yi-Te Chen - - 
Taichung Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

Chairman Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 600 100.00% 

  Hsin-Ching Chang - - 
 Director Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 600 100.00% 
  Ching-Huang Tsai - - 
  Yi-Te Chen - - 
  Representative to Taichung Commercial Bank: 600 100.00% 
 Supervisor Kai-Yu Lin - - 
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F. Status of operation in the subsidiaries: 
Unit: in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified 

Name of enterprise Paid-in 
capital Total assets Total 

liabilities Net worth Net income 
(loss) 

Net Income 
(loss) 

(Before 
Income Tax) 

Net Income 
(loss) (After 
Income Tax) 

Earnings (loss) 
per share (NT$) 
(After Income 

Tax) 

Name of enterprise:         

Parent         

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Company Limited 

13,040,880 262,654,754 246,803,150 15,851,604 6,103,604 2,103,717 1,776,645 1.50 

         

Subsidiary:         

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Life Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. 

6,000 109,407 29,291 80,116 100,425 90,685 67,396 112.33 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance Agency 
Company Ltd. 

3,000 26,184 6,241 19,943 25,561 19,020 14,150 47.17 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

6,000 5,336 40 5,296 2 (939) (704) (1.17) 
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(2) Consolidated financial statement of parent and subsidiaries: 
The Bank is required to prepare consolidated financial statements with its subsidiaries 
under the “Standards for the Preparation of Consolidated Report on Operation, 
Consolidated Financial Statements, and Report on Affiliations between Parent and 
Subsidiaries”. Subsidiaries of the Bank under the aforementioned legal rule are identical 
with the subsidiaries defined under Financial Accounting Standard No. 7 on 
“Consolidated Financial Statements”. Information on financial position and operation 
performance of such subsidiaries has been included in the disclosure of the 
aforementioned consolidated financial statement between parent and subsidiaries and 
therefore will not be prepared separately. For further information, please refer to the 
aforementioned consolidated statement between parent and subsidiaries. 
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Statement of Declaration 
 

Date: February 18, 2008 
 

We prepared the Affiliation Report for fiscal year 2007 (from January 1 to December 31, 
2007) in accordance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated 
Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises”. There is no 
significant discrepancy between the information contained in the notes to financial statements 
covering the aforementioned period for disclosure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Company Name: Taichung Commercial Bank Company Limited 
 
Chairman: Hsui-Nan Huang 
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Auditors’ Review Opinions 
 

Date: February 18, 2008 
 
To: Taichung Commercial Bank Company Limited 
 

We conducted the audit on the financial statements of Taichung Commercial Bank Company 
Limited for 2007 in accordance with the “Standards on the Audit of Financial Statements” and the 
accounting principle generally accepted in the Republic of China, and we have issued revised 
unqualified opinions dated February 28, 2008.  The purpose of the audit is to give an opinion on 
the fair presentation of the said financial statements.The Affiliation Report prepared by Taichung 
Commercial Bank was attached.  Such report was prepared in accordance with the “Criteria 
Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises”. An audit review requires us to proceed with the 
necessary process, including the acquisition of customers’ declaration and the confirmation on 
related information.  The review has been successfully accomplished. 

In our opinion, the Affiliation Report for 2007 prepared by Taichung Commercial Bank is in 
compliance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business 
Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” and the contents of 
financial information is identical with those presented in the financial statements.  No material 
amendments to the information shall be required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deloitte & Touche 
Tze-Chun Wang, CPA, Deloitte & Touche 

 
Hsiun-Lien Lin, CPA, Deloitte & Touche 

 
 
 
 
 
SFC Approval Document No. 
Tai-Tsai-Cheng (VI) No. 0920123784 

SFC Approval Document No. 
Tai-Tsai-Cheng (VI) No. 0930128050 
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(3) Report on Affiliations: Relations between parent and subsidiaries 
Unit: Share; % 

Status of shareholding and lien of stock by 
holding company 

Directors, Supervisors or managers 
appointed by holding company Name of holding 

company Reason of holding 
Quantity Proportion Shares under 

lien Title Name 

Pan Asia Chemical 
Corporation 

Occupied more than half of the 
director seats 

91,427,702 
shares 

7.01% - Chairman Hsui-Nan Huang 

     Vice Chairman Chao-Chang Wang 
     Managing 

Director 
Ching-Huang Tsai 

     Director Che-Nan Wang 
     Director Hsin-Ching Chang 
     Director Yuh-Eing Chung 
     Director Chuang-Shang 

Hong 
     Director Kuei-Fong Wang 
     Director Ming-Shan Chuang 
China Man-Made Fiber 
Co., Ltd. 

Indirectly control over the HR, 
finance or operation of the Bank 

195,605,076 
shares 

15.00% - - - 

Chung Chien Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

Indirectly control over the HR, 
finance or operation of the Bank 

- - - - - 

Pan Asia Investment Co., 
Ltd. 

Indirectly control over the HR, 
finance or operation of the Bank 

- - - - - 

 
�Transactions between subsidaries and parent company: None 

�Guarantees/endorsements between subsidaries and parent company: None 
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2. Private placement of securities and financial bonds 
None. 

 
3. Holding or disposal of the Bank’s stock by subsidiaries 

None. 
 
4. Other Supplementary Disclosure 

None. 
 
5. Any significant events materially affecting shareholders’ equity or the price of securities 

The General Meeting of the Shareholders resolved in a special session dated December 7, 
2006 to reduce the shares and dividends of the Bank amounted to NT$7,339,264,000 with the 
elimination of 733,926,400 outstanding shares. At the same time the meeting also resolved to 
increase capital by issuing new shares of common stock amounting to 5 billion shares at 
NT$10 per share. The resolutions have been reported to FSC on January 22, 2007 under 
Jin-Guan-Zheng No. 0950158669 confirmation letter.In 2006, the Bank has successfully 
raised NT$5.75 billion (including the issue at premium) and the investments have been fully 
collected by the end of March 2007. 
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IX. Branches of Taichung Commercial Bank at a Glance 
 
Business entity Address Telephone Business entity Address Telephone 

Head Office   W. Shihu Branch 290, Sec. 1, Er-Shi Rd., Shi Hu (04)8851480 

Min Chuan Building 87, Min-Chuan Rd., Wenstern Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)22236021 Peitou Branch 180, Sec. 1, Dou-Yuan Rd., Peitou (04)8884146 

Min Tsu Building 45, Min-Tsu Rd., Central Dist., Taichung (04)22236063 Pitou Branch 163, Dou-Yuan W. Rd., Pitou (04)8924606 
Trust Dept No. 87, Min Chuan Road, 2/F, West District, 

Taichung 
(04)22236021 Lukang Branch  266, Chung-Shan Rd., Lukang (04)7780545 

Int’t Dept No. 87, Min Chuan Road, 2/F, West District, 
Taichung 

(04)22212933 Erlin Branch 496 & 498, Ren-ai Rd., Erlin Town (04)8962125 

   Puyen Branch 8, Sec. 2, Chang-Sui Rd., Pu Yen (04)8656811 
Taipei City      

Taipei Branch 85, Sec. 1, Chung-Hsiao East Rd., Taipei (02)23211819 Taichung County   

Sungshan Branch 1F, 176, Sec. 1, Keelung Rd., Taipei (02)27658666 Fongyuan Branch 302~1, Chung-Cheng Rd., Fongyuan City (04)25244171 
Neihu Branch 306 Reh Kuang Rd., Taipei (02)26579899 E. Fongyuan Branch 203, San-Min Rd., Fongyuan City (04)25260175 
   S. Fongyuan Branch 232, Chung-Shan Rd., Fongyuan City (04)25261195 
Taipei County   Nanyang Branch 338, Yuan-Huan E. Rd., Fongyuan City (04)25244426 

Sanchung Branch 69, Sec. 2, Chung-Hsin Rd., Sanchung City (02)29877878 Shangkong Branch 40, Min-Tzu Rd., Shenan Village, Shenkang (04)25621501 
Linko Branch 8, Tsu-Lin Rd., Linko (02)26021888 Daya Branch 39, Chung-Ching S. Rod, Daya (04)25668161 
BanChiao Branch 28-2 Sec. 1 Ming-Sheng Rd., Ban Chiao City, (02)29563456 Tantzu Branch 76, Sec. 3, Tan-Hsing Rd., Tantze (04)25323121 
Xinzhuang Branch 651, Zhongzheng Rd., Xinzhuang City (02)29017888 Dongshih Branch 61, Chung-Shan Rd., Dongshih (04)25872185 
   Houli Branch 95, Min-Shen Rd., Houli (04)25571180 
Taoyuan County   Waipu Branch 358, Jia-Ho Rd., Tatung Village, Waipu (04)26836435 

Pingzhen Branch 1&2F.No14, 18, Zhongfeng Rd. Pingzhen 
City 

(03)4915688 Dachia Branch 42, Chiang-Kong Rd., Dachia (04)26862151 

Taoyuan Branch Taoyuan Branch (03)2701666 Chingsui Branch 104, Chung-Shan Rd., Chingsui (04)26226106 
   Shalu Branch 298, Chung-Shan Rd., Shalu (04)26621101 

Miaoli County   Taichungkang Branch  36, Pa-Der Rd., Wuchih (04)26571191 

Wanli Branch 79, Hsin-Yi Rd, Wanli (037)866366 Dadu Branch 778, Sec. 2, Sha-Tien Rd., Dadu (04)26991166 
Chunan Branch  66, Ho-Ping St., Chunan (037)481148 Wufong Branch 829, Chung-Cheng Rd., Wufong (04)23391165 
   Dali Branch 292~1, Sec. 1, Chung-Hsing Rd., Dali City (04)24927727 

Taichung City   Neihsin Branch 339, Sec. 2, Chung-Hsinag Rd., Dali City (04)24830345 

Int’l Banking Branch No. 87, Min Chuan Road, 2/F, West District, 
Taichung 

(04)22212933 Shihjouchia Branch  No. 327-3 & No. 327-4, Yung Feng Road, 
Tai Ping City 

(04)22754822 

Business Department 1F, 87, Min-Chuan Rd., Wenstern Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)22274567 Taiping Branch 115, Chung-Hsing Rd., Taiping City (04)22700756 

Chungcheng Branch 189, Chung-Cheng Rd., Central Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)22245181 Lungjing Branch 325, Yo-Yuen S. Rd., Lungching (04)26326788 

W. Taichung Branch 369, Kong-Yi Rd., Western Dist., Taichung (04)23212501 Wutze Branch 107, San-Min St., Wujih (04)23373176 
S. Taichung Branch 355, Sec. 3, Fu-Shing Rd., Southern Dist., 

Taichung 
(04)22244187    

N. Taichung Branch 624, Da-Ya Rd., Northern Dist., Taichung (04)22920832 Nantou County   

Szumin Branch No. 199, Chung Teh Road, Sec. 3, Pei Tun 
District, Taichung City 

(04)24226165 Nantou Branch 52, Min-Shen Rd., Nantou City (049)2222146 

Hsitun Branch 436, Sec. 2, Ho-Nan Rd., Hsitun Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)27060696 Mingchien Branch 67, Chang-Nan Rd., Mingchien (049)2735615 

Nantun Branch 1F, 663, Sec. 2, Wu-Chuan W. Rd., Nantun 
Dist., Taichung 

(04)23824358 Tsaotun Branch 141, Bi-Shan Rd., Tsaotun (049)2334146 

Chungkang Branch 222, Sec. 1, Dong-Shan Rd., Peitun Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)24371151 Puli Branch  62, Shi-Kang Rd., Pu Li (049)2984001 

Chungte Branch 367, Sec. 4, Han-Kou Rd., Northern Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)22371161 Chushan Branch 148, Chu-Shan Rd., Chushan (049)2643181 

Siangshang Branch 291, Sec. 1, Meicun Rd., West Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)23015108 Luku Branch 316, Lu-Chang Rd., Luku (049)2755281 

Daching Branch 295, Sec. 1, Fu-Shing Rd., Southern Dist., 
Taichung 

(04)22634838 Shuili Branch 250, Min-Chuan Rd., Shuili (049)2772177 

Peitun Branch 80, Jinhua N. Rd., Beitun District, Taichung (04)22316266    
N. Taiping Branch 66, Jin-Wu E. Rd., Eastern Dist., Taichung (04)22121298 Yunlin County   

   Huwei Branch 364, Kwang-Fu Rd., Huwei (05)6313788 

Changhwa County   Dounan Branch 151-9, Chung-Shan Rd., Tounan Town (05)5954879 

Changhua Branch 126, Kwang-Fu Rd., Changhua City (04)7224641    
Dachu Branch 364, Sec. 1, Chang-Nan Rd., Changhua City (04)7387648 Chiayi County   

Homei Branch 393, Sec. 6, Lu-Ho Rd., Ho Mei Town (04)7562171 Ming Hsiung Branch 2F, No. 78, Chien Kuo  Road, Sec. 2, Ming 
Hsiung Hsiang 

(05)3206222 

Shangkong Branch 111, Chung-Shan E. Rd., Hsin Kang Village, 
Shangkong 

(04)7983171    

Huatan Branch 446, Sec. 1, Chung-Shan Rd., Huatan 
Village, Huatan 

(04)7868775 Tainan County   

Siushui Branch 597, Sec. 2, Chang-Shui Rd., Hsiushui (04)7693525 Yung Kang Branch No. 760, Chung Hua Road, Yung Kang City (06)7021199 
Yungchiung Branch 71, His-Men Rd., Yungchiung (04)8232363    
Yuanlin Branch 27, Chung-Shan S. Rd., Yuanlin (04)8326141 Kaohsiung City   

N. Yuanlin Branch 116, Sec. 2, Ta-Tung Rd., Yuanlin (04)8322141 Kaohsiung Branch 1F, 11, Min-Chuan I Rd., Kaohsiung City (07)3355275 
Puhsin Branch 217, Sec. 1, Chung -Cheng Rd., Dongmen 

Village, Puhsin 
(04)8281437    

Shetou Branch 311, Sec. 2, Yuang-Chi Rd., Shetou (04)8731466 Kaohsiung County   

Teinchung Branch 197, Sec. 1, Chung-Tzou Rd., Tien Chung (04)8742206 Fongshan Branch 172, Wu-ching II Rd., Fongshan City (07)7216719 
Shihu Branch 290, Sec. 3, Chang-Sui Rd., Shi Hu (04)8853311    
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Appendix 1 
 

Stock Code: 2812 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
 

Financial Statements 

 
For the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 

(Independent Accountants’ Audit Report included) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Address: No. 87, Min Chuan Road, West District, Taichung City, TEL: (04) 22236021 
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Independent Accountants’ Audit Report 
 
To: Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. as 
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ 
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in New Taiwan dollars. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidelines for Certified Public Accountants’ 
Examination and Reports on Financial Statements”, and generally accepted auditing standards of 
the Republic of China.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.We believe that our audit may provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for years then ednded in conformity with the “Rules 
Govening the Preparation of Financial Statements fo Public Issued Banks”, Business Accounting 
Act, the relevant financial accounting requirements referred to in Business Accouting Guidelines 
and generally aceepted accounting principles of the Republic of China. 

As stated in Note 3 to the financial statements, as per the Financial Supervisory Commission 
of Executive Yuan Jin-Guan-Zheng (6) 0950146434 dated on October 11, 2006, the Bank has 
changed the accounting principles of the deferred losses on sale of non-performing loans from the 
previous amortization during a period of 60 months in conformity with Article 15 of the Mergers 
and Acquisitions of Financial Institutions Act to write off the deferred balance in lump sum as of 
September 1, 2006. 

As stated in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Bank has adopted Statements of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 34 on “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and No. 
36 on “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” since Jan. 1, 2006.  

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Bank for 2007 and 2006, and 
have expressed the unqualified opinions and modified unqualified opinions on such financial 
statements. 

The statement of important accounting titles of the financial statement for 2007 was ment to 
supplement for analysis only, and has been audited by us in accordance with the procedures referred 
to in Paragraph 2 herein.  In our opinion, the statement is consistent with the relevant information 
provided in the financial statements referred to in Paragraph 1 herein in all material respects. 

Deloitte & Touche 
Tze-Chun Wang, CPA 

 
Hsiun-Lien Lin, CPA 

 
 
 
 
Securities and Futures Commission Approval No. 
Tai-Tsai-Cheng (VI) No. 0920123784 

Securities and Futures Commission Approval No. 
Tai-Tsai-Cheng (VI) No. 0920128050 

Date: February 18, 2008
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 

Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2007 and 2006 

In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 

  December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

Percenta
ge of 

Variatioi
n    

December 31, 
2007 

December 31, 
2006 

Percentage of 
Variatioin 

Code Assets Amount Amount (%)  Code Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity Amount Amount (%) 

11000 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) $ 4,197,402 $ 8,189,088 ( 49)  21000 Due to Central Bank of China and banks 
(Note 14) 

$ 3,168,649 $ 3,315,568 ( 4) 

11500 Due from Central Bank of China and banks 
(Note 5) 

 43,715,945  46,300,862 ( 6)  22000 Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss(Notes 2&6) 

 270  382 ( 29) 

12000 Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss (Notes 2&6) 

 816,432  711,603  15  22500 Notes issued under repurchase agreements 
and bond liabilities (Notes 2&15) 

 -  848,061 ( 100) 

13000 Receivables , net (Notes 2&7)  2,120,714  2,196,142 ( 3)  23000 Payables (note 16)  2,688,097  6,470,463 ( 58) 
13500 Notes discounted and loans , net (Notes 2, 8 

& 26) 
 192,468,949  186,349,893  3  23500 Deposits and remittances (Notes 17&26)  237,831,638  239,800,057 ( 1) 

14500 Held-to-maturity investments, net (Notes 
2&9) 

 11,346,949  7,048,627  61  24000 Financial bonds payable (Note 18)  2,400,000  -  - 

15000 Stocks-equity method (Notes 2&10)  104,354  48,412  116  25000 Accrued pension liabilities (Notes 2&20)  292,480  232,979  26 
15500 Other financial assets , net (Notes 2&11)  211,549  158,934  33  25500 Other financial liabilities (Note 2)  45  93 ( 52) 
 Property and equipment , net (notes 2&12)     29500 Other liabilities (Note 2&19)  421,971  467,711 ( 10) 
 Cost     20000 Total liabilities  246,803,150  251,135,314 ( 2) 
18501 Land  1,885,486  1,924,247 ( 2)   Shareholders’ equity (Note 21)    
18521 Buildings and structures  2,003,388  2,041,968 ( 2)  31000 Common stock  13,040,880  15,380,144 ( 15) 
18541 Transportation and communication 

equipment 
 44,359  45,042 ( 2)  31500 Capital surplus  750,000  -  - 

18551 Other equipment  1,107,747  1,255,359 ( 12)  32000 Accumulated earnings (accumulated 
deficit to be offset) 

 1,776,645 ( 7,055,185)  125 

18581 Leased assets  212  212  -  32501 Unrealized revaluation appreciation  284,079  -  - 
 Total cost  5,041,192  5,266,828 ( 4)  30000 Total shareholders’ equity  15,851,604  8,324,959  90 
 Revaluation increment  619,176  652,602 ( 5)       
 Less: accumulated depreciation ( 1,771,917) ( 1,872,566) ( 5)       
 Less: accumulated impairment ( 122,000) ( 150,000) ( 19)       
18571 Construction in process  283  -  -       
18575 Prepayments for equipment  4,039  1,049  285       
18500 Net  3,770,773  3,897,913 ( 3)       
19500 Other assets (Notes 2, 13, 20&24)  3,901,687  4,558,799 ( 14)       
10000 Total assets $ 262,654,754 $ 259,460,273  1   Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 262,654,754 $ 259,460,273  1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 28, 2008) 

Chairman:Hsui-Nan Huang Manager: Yuh-Eing Chung Chief Accountant: Shu-Chen Chen 
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Statements of Operations of Taichung Commercial Bank 
January 1 to December 31, 2007 and 2006 

 
In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings (Loss) Per Share 

  2007 2006 

Code  Amount Amount 

Percentage 
of 

Variatioin 
41000 Interest income (Notes 2&26) $ 8,792,105 $ 8,310,786  6 
51000 Interest expenses (Notes 2&26) ( 3,460,373) ( 3,272,322)  6 
 Net interest income  5,331,732  5,038,464  6 
 Net income (loss) other than interest    
49100 Net income from service fees 

(Note 22) 
 767,196  360,764  113 

49200 Gains (losses) on financial 
assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss 
(Note 2) 

 150,985 ( 23,518)  742 

49500 Investment income recognized 
under equity method, net 
(Notes 2&10) 

 80,023  31,125  157 

49600 Gains on foreign exchange, net 
(Note 2) 

( 48,758)  66,152 ( 174) 

49700 Reversal gains (losses) on asset 
impairment (Notes 2, 9, 
12&13) 

( 149,213)  233,455 ( 164) 

58021 Amortization of deferred loss on 
disposal of non-performing 
loans (Note 3) 

 - ( 5,666,266)  100 

58023 Net loss on disposal of 
collaterals assumed 

( 47,711) ( 138,649) ( 66) 

48000 Other gains(losses) (Note 2)  19,350  8,555  126 
 Net gains (losses)  6,103,604 ( 89,918)  6,888 
51500 Bad debt expenses (note 2) ( 985,969) ( 2,903,319) ( 66) 
 Operating expenses (note 23)    
58500 Personnel expenses ( 1,977,154) ( 1,767,982)  12 
59000 Depreciation and amortization 

expenses 
( 177,248) ( 189,587) ( 7) 

59500 Business and administrative 
expenses 

( 859,516) ( 797,473)  8 

 Total operating expenses ( 3,013,918) ( 2,755,042)  9 
(Continued on next page) 
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(Continued from previous page) 

  2007 2006 
Code  Amount Amount 

Change in 
percentage 

61001 Income (loss) before income tax $ 2,103,717 ($ 5,748,279)  137 
61003 Income tax expense (Notes 2&24) ( 327,072)  1,045,732 ( 131) 
69000 Net Income(loss) $ 1,776,645 ($ 4,702,547)  138 

 

Code  

Before 
Income 

Tax 

After 
Income 

tax 

Before 
Income 

Tax 

After 
Income 

tax 
69500 Earnings(losses) Per Share(Note 25) $ 1.77 $ 1.50 ($ 7.15) ($ 5.85) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 

28, 2008) 
 

Chairman:  
Hsui-Nan Huang 

Manager:  
Yuh-Eing Chung 

Chief Accountant:  
Shu-Chen Chen 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
Change in Shareholders’ Equity 

January 1 to December 31, 2007 and 2006 
In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings (Loss) Per Share 

  Capital surplus 
Retained 
earnings   

 Common stock 
Stock 

premiums 

Unallocated 
earnings 

(accumulated 
deficit) 

Unrealized 
revaluation 
increment 

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 
Balance as 
of January 
1, 2006 

$ 15,380,144 $  - ($ 2,513,090) $ 160,452 $ 13,027,506 

Unrealized 
asset 
revaluatio
n 
increment 
to cover 
loss 

 - -  160,452 ( 160,452)  - 

Net loss as 
of 2006 

 -  - ( 4,702,547)  - ( 4,702,547) 

Balance as 
of 
December 
31, 2006 

 15,380,144  - ( 7,055,185)  -  8,324,959 

Capital 
reduction 
to offset 
deficit 

( 7,339,264)  -  7,339,264  -  - 

Capital 
from new 
shares 

 5,000,000  750,000  -  -  5,750,000 

Recovery 
of 
unrealized 
asset 
revaluatio
n 
increment 

 -  - ( 284,079)  284,079  - 

Earnings 
as of 2007 

 -  -  1,776,645  -  1,776,645 

Balance as 
of 
December 
31, 2007 

$ 13,040,880 $ 750,000 $ 1,776,645 $ 284,079 $ 15,851,604 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 

28, 2008) 
 

Chairman:Hsui-Nan Huang Manager: Yuh-Eing Chung Chief Accountant: Shu-Chen 
Chen 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

January 1 to December 31, 2007 and 2006 
 

In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
 2007 2006 

Cash flow from operating activities   
Net Income(loss) $ 1,776,645 ($ 4,702,547) 
Provision of allowance for bad debts  985,969  2,903,319 
Recovery of bad debts  503,222  381,940 
Write-off of non-performing loans ( 827,556) ( 3,022,802) 
Provision for reserve accounts  1,206  792 
Amortization of deferred loss on disposalof 

non-performing loans 
 -  5,666,266 

Investment income recognized under equity 
method 

( 80,023) ( 31,125) 

Cash dividends under equity method  30,081  40,172 
Amortization of premium on financial assets 

held-to-maturity  
 124,489  158,013 

Impairment loss of financial assets 
held-to-maturity  

 100,000  - 

Loss on delinquent accounts stated as financial 
assets remeasured at cost 

 -  1,501 

Depreciation and amortization (deprecation of 
assets not for business operation included) 

 177,462  190,016 

Net loss on disposal of property, equipment and 
collateral assumed 

 49,071  138,520 

Impairment loss (reversal gain) on property, 
equipment and collateral assumed 

 49,213 ( 233,455) 

Deferred income tax  297,195 ( 1,045,732) 
Defined benefit pension fund allocated more 

than accrued pension liabilities 
 - ( 151,506) 

Decrease (increase) in operating assets   
Financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss 
( 104,829) ( 707,634) 

Receivables  72,518  117,511 
Other assets ( 9,250) ( 15,847) 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss 
( 112)  382 

Payables ( 3,782,366)  1,104,834 
Other liabilities ( 74,668) ( 76,332) 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating 

activities 
( 711,733)  716,286 

 
(Continued on next page) 
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 2007 2006 
Cash flow from investing activities   

Decrease in due from Central Bank of China and 
call loans to banks 

$ 2,584,917 $ 2,238,707 

Increase in notes discounted and loans ( 6,757,987) ( 6,041,437) 
Proceeds received on disposal of 

non-performing loans 
 -  1,000,853 

Redemption of financial assets held- to- 
maturity 

 2,914,509  2,653,683 

Purchase of financial assets held-to-maturity ( 7,437,320) ( 2,443,199) 
Increase in investment under equity method ( 6,000)  - 
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets ( 43,944)  7,613 
Purchase of property, equipment and deferred 

charges 
( 125,785) ( 62,100) 

Proceeds on sale of property, equipment and 
collateral assumed 

 329,120  1,130,844 

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits  76,251 ( 42,788) 
Net cash outflow from investing activities ( 8,466,239) ( 1,557,824) 

Cash flow from financing activities   
Issuance of common stock for cash  5,750,000  - 
Decrease in due to Central Bank of China and 

banks 
( 146,919) ( 349,730) 

Decrease in notes issued under repurchase 
agreements and bonds liabilities 

( 848,061) ( 2,147,978) 

Increase (decrease) in deposits and remittances ( 1,968,419)  4,318,486 
Issuance of financial bonds  2,400,000  - 
Decrease in other financial liabilities ( 48) ( 43) 
Decrease in guarantee deposits received ( 267) ( 210,983) 

Net cash inflow from financing activities  5,186,286  1,609,752 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent ( 3,991,686)  768,214 
Balance of cash and cash equivalent,beginning of 

period 
 8,189,088  7,420,874 

Balance of cash and cash equivalent ,end of period $ 4,197,402 $ 8,189,088 
Supplementary disclosures of cash flow   

Interest payment $ 3,460,220 $ 3,210,979 
Income tax payment $ 86,634 $ 75,902 

Non-cash investing and financing activities cash flow   
Prepayments transferred to  collateral assumed $ 1,013 $ 8,736 
Delinquent accounts stated as financial assets 

remeasured at cost 
$ - $ 1,740 

Capital reduction to offset accumulated deficit $ 7,339,264 $ - 
 
(Continued on next page) 
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 2007 2006 
Cash collected and accounts stated as other 

receivables 
  

Disposal of NPL   
Proceeds on disposal of non-performing 

loans 
$ - $ - 

Decrease in other receivables  -  1,000,853 
Cash collected $ - $ 1,000,853 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 

28, 2008) 

Chairman:  
Hsui-Nan Huang 

Manager:  
Yuh-Eing Chung 

Chief Accountant:  
Shu-Chen Chen 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

2007 and 2006 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 
1.ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”) preparatory establishment by command of 
the Taiwan Provincial Government as the Taichung District Joint Saving Co., Ltd. was on 
September 27, 1952. It was approved for establishment in April 1953 and started operations in 
August. The Bank was approved by the Banking Act of the Republic of China (R.O.C.) to change 
its organization to “Taichung District Small and Medium Enterprise Bank” on January 1, 1978. On 
May 15, 1984, it was further approved to be listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (the “TSE”). 

In order to be in harmony with national financial policies, to provide financial services for the 
society, to contribute efforts to economic development, and to develop industrial and commercial 
businesses, the Bank changed its organization to “Taichung Commercial Bank” in December 1998. 
As of March 31, 2007, the Bank had operated business department, trust department, foreign 
exchange transaction department, and there were 78 domestic branches, offshore  banking branch 
and a securities broker branch. It is engaged mainly in financial operations regulated by the Banking 
Law, trust business, offshore banking business and others approved by competent authority. 

The Bank’s paid-in capital was NT$500 thousand when the Bank was incorporated.  In order 
to well found its capital structure and comply with the government's order and decreee, the Bank 
has increased/reduced its capital over the past years. As of Dec. 31, 2007 and 2006, its paid-in 
capitals were NT$13,040,880 thousands and NT$15,380,144 thousands respectively, and its 
employees were 2,057 persons and 1,969 persons. 
 
2.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the Criteria 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks, requirements of the Business 
Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing Business Accounting relevant to financial accounting 
standards, and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.  In preparing 
financial statements in conformity with these guidelines and principles, the Bank is required to 
make certain estimates and assumptions that could affect the amounts of allowance for credit losses, 
property depreciation, pension, provision for loss on guarantees, reserve for default and trading 
losses, and losses on pending lawsuits.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Since the operating cycle could not be reasonably identified in the banking industry, 
according to SFAS No. 28, “Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks,” accounts included 
in the Bank’s financial statements were not classified as current or noncurrent.  Nevertheless, 
accounts were properly categorized according to the nature of each account, and sequenced by their 
liquidity.  Please see Note 28 for maturity analysis of assets and liabilities. 

The Bank’s significant accounting policies are summarized as follows: 
 
Basis of Financial Statement Preparation 

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Head Office, OBU and all 
branches.  All interoffice transactions and balances have been eliminated. 
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Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss (“FVTPL”) include financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and those 
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.  The Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial 
liability on its balance sheet when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instrument.  A financial asset is derecognized when the Bank has lost control of its 
contractual rights over the financial asset.  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation 
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value.  Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
recognized immediately in profit or loss.  At each balance sheet date subsequent to issue of initial 
recognition, financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are remeasured at fair value, with 
changes in fair value recognized directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.  On 
derecognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the difference between its carrying amount 
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable or consideration paid and payable is 
recognized in profit or loss.  All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized 
and derecognized on a trade date basis. 

A derivative that does not meet the criteria for hedge accounting is classified as a financial 
asset or a financial liability held for trading.  If the fair value of the derivative is positive, the 
derivative is recognized as a financial asset; otherwise, the derivative is recognized as a financial 
liability. 

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance sheet date are determined 
as follows:  Publicly traded stocks - at closing prices; open-end mutual funds - at net asset values; 
bonds - at prices quoted by the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market; and financial assets and financial 
liabilities without quoted prices in an active market - at values determined using valuation 
techniques. 

Financial instruments which are mixed instruments, or for the reason of elimination of the 
difference in accounting practices, can be designated as financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss.  Financial instruments portfolio, based on the Bank’s risk-management and 
investment policy, may also be designated as financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss 
 
Bonds Purchased under Resell / Notes Issued under Repurchase Agreements 

Bonds purchased under resell / notes issued under repurchase agreements are considered a 
financing transaction if the risk and reward are attributed to the seller.  When a bond is purchased 
under a resell agreement, its purchase price is listed as “bonds purchased under resell agreements,” 
a asset account.  For a note issues issued under repurchase agreement, the selling price is listed as 
“notes issued under repurchase agreements,” a liability account.  The difference between purchase 
(issue) price under the agreement and actual issue (purchase) price is recorded as interest income 
(expense). 
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Receivable 
Credit card receivables are recorded when the merchants report the amount, and the related 

interest revenue is recognized by accrual basis accounting. 
Credit card receivables are reclassified into delinquent loans and the related accrued interest will not 
be recognized when they are overdue and had not been collectedDelinquent Loans 

According to “Regulations Governing the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate 
Assets and Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans” (the “Regulations”) issued by the 
Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”), overdue loans with accrued interests are reclassified into 
delinquent loans and accounted as discounts and loans if accounted as loans initially; otherwise 
accounted as other financial assets such as loans originally recorded as guarantee, acceptance, and 
credit card receivables. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Reserve for Loss on Guarantees Allowances provided 
for loans, discounts, accounts receivable, interest receivables, other receivables, and delinquent 
loans as well as guarantees and acceptances are determined based on the credit risk of the particular 
loans and the overall loans portfolio. 

Pursuant to the Regulations stated above, the Bank determines the allowance for doubtful 
accounts by evaluating the recoverability of the outstanding balances of various loans, the 
borrowers’/clients’ financial condition and payment history.  Such doubtful accounts are classified 
into: need attention, less likely to be collectible in full, difficult to collect, and uncollectible 
accounts and the allowance should be provided at 2%, 10%, 50%, and 100%, respectively, of the 
loan amount to meet the minimum requirement.  

Accounts deemed uncollectible are written off with the approval of the Board of Managing 
Directors.  Under SFAS No. 28, “Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks,” a loan that is 
recovered after being written off is recorded as an increase of allowance for doubtful accounts in the 
current period. 
 
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition.  The changes in fair value from a subsequent 
remeasurement are reported in stockholders’ equity.  The corresponding accumulated gains or 
losses are transferred to net profit and loss for the period when the financial asset is derecognized 
from the balance sheet.  A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is accounted for using 
trade date accounting. 

The recognition, derecognition and the fair value bases of available-for-sale financial assets are 
similar to those of financial assets at FVTPL. 

Cash dividends are recognized on the ex-dividend date or upon the shareholders’ resolutions, 
except for dividends distributed from the pre-acquisition profit which are treated as a reduction of 
investment cost.  The difference between the initial cost of a debt instrument and its maturity 
amount is amortized using the effective interest method, with the amortized interest recognized in 
profit or loss. 

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence that the financial asset is 
impaired.  Any subsequent decrease in impairment loss for an equity instrument classified as 
available-for-sale is recognized directly in equity.  If the fair value of a debt instrument classified 
as available-for-sale subsequently increases as a result of an event which occurred after the 
impairment loss was recognized, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed to profit 

Held-to-Maturity Investments Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. Held-to-maturity investments are initially measured at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition.  Profit or loss is recognized when 
the financial assets are derecognized, impaired, or amortized.  All regular way purchases or sales 
of financial assets are accounted for using a trade date basis. 
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An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence that the investment is 
impaired.  The impairment loss is reversed if an increase in the investment’s recoverable amount is 
due to an event which occurred after the impairment loss was recognized; however, the adjusted 
carrying amount of the investment may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the investment in prior years. 
Stocks - Equity Method 

Investments in equity securities are accounted for under the equity method if the Bank’s 
ownership interest is 20% or more of the voting shares or the Bank has significant influence on the 
investee’s operating and financial policy decisions, and the Bank recognizes the investee’s profits or 
losses according to its percentage of ownership. 

Stock dividends are recorded as an increase in the number of shares held and do not affect 
investment income.  The cost per share is recalculated based on the new total number of shares. 

 
Other Financial Assets  

Investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value 
cannot be reliably measured are carried at their original cost, such as non-publicly traded stocks.  
If there is objective evidence which indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a loss is recognized.  
A subsequent reversal of such impairment loss is prohibited. 

 
Property and Equipment / Non-Operating Assets 

Property and equipment are stated at acquisition cost or construction cost.  Major renewals 
and improvements that extend the life or increase the value of an asset are capitalized, while regular 
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  Depreciation is provided on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated service lives of the assets as prescribed in the tax regulations, plus one 
additional year for salvage value. 

Leased property is recorded at the smaller of the following two values: (a) the present value of 
all future rental payments (less the lessee’s executory costs), plus the bargain purchase price or 
lessee’s guaranteed residual value, and (b) the leased property’s market value at the inception date 
of the lease. 

Upon sale or disposal of properties and equipment, their cost and related accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment and unrealized revaluation appreciation are removed from 
the respective accounts. Gains or loss resulting from sale or disposal of assets are included in other 
gains or loss as incurred. 

If property and equipment are not used for operating activities, the related cost and 
accumulated depreciation are transferred to non-operating assets (included in other assets). 
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Other Assets - Others 
Deferred charges are stated at cost and amortized on the straight-line basis over five years. 
The loss on sale of non-performing loans was being amortized over 60 months in accordance 

with Article 15 of the Financial Institutions Merger Act.  However, as advised by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission of Executive Yuan in letter of October 11, 2006 Jin-Guan-Zheng (6) No. 
0950146434, the Bank fully expensed the deferred loss on sale of non-performing loans in 
September 2006. 

 
Collaterals Assumed 

Collaterals assumed (included in other assets) are recorded at cost, which includes the assumed 
prices and any necessary repairs to make the collaterals saleable, at the date of acquisition, and 
evaluated at the lower of cost or net realizable value as of balance sheet date. 

 
Impairment of Assets 

Pursuant to SFAS No. 35 “Accounting for Asset Impairment,” the Bank assesses indicators for 
impairment of cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) and certain assets, including investments 
accounted for by the equity method, properties and equipment, collaterals assumed (included in 
other assets), etc., and performs an impairment review. 

SFAS No. 35 requires impairment review on aforementioned assets or CGUs (except 
goodwill) on each balance sheet date.  If assets or CGUs are deemed impaired, the Bank must 
calculate their recoverable amounts.  An impairment loss should be recognized on the balance 
sheet date if the recoverable amount of the assets or the CGUs is below the carrying amount, and 
this impairment loss is either charged to accumulated impairment or used to reduce the carrying 
amount of the assets or CGUs directly.  After the recognition of an impairment loss, the 
depreciation (amortization) should be adjusted in future period by the revised assets or CGUs 
carrying amount (net of accumulated impairment), less its salvage value, on a systematic basis over 
its remaining service life.  If asset impairment loss (excluding goodwill) is reversed, the increase 
in the carrying amount resulting from reversal is credited to current income.  However, the 
carrying amount after loss reversal should not be exceed the carrying amount (net of depreciation) 
that would have been determined had the impairment not been recognized. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate goodwill impairment, except goodwill can’t be attributed to certain CGUs in 
the first year of consolidating.  Impairment is recorded if the book value exceeds value in use.  
The increase in the recoverable amount of goodwill in the period following the recognition of an 
impairment loss is likely to be an increase in internally generated goodwill rather than the reversal 
of the impairment loss recognized for the acquired goodwill.  Thus, any reversal of an impairment 
loss on goodwill is prohibited. 

 
Pension Plan 

The Bank has pension plans covering all regular employees. One is defined benefit plan under 
the Labor Standards Law.  The benefits under defined benefit plan are primarily based upon an 
employee’s length of service and average compensation for the six-month period prior as 
retirement.  The Bank funds the plan at certain percentage of its employee’s salaries and wages 
and deposits the funds in the custody of the Committee of Pension Trust Funds, which are managed 
by the Bank’s Committee of Pension Fund.  Another is defined contribution plan under the Labor 
Pension Act, effective on July 1, 2005.  For those employees who choose defined contribution 
plan, the Bank makes monthly contribution based on 6� of each employee’s salaries and wages 
and deposits the fund to the employee’s individual pension account in the Bureau of Labor 
Insurance.  For those employees who choose the pension scheme regulated by the Labor Standards 
Law, their prior seniority years up to the enforcement of the Labor Pension Act shall be maintained. 

Pension expense under defined benefit pension plan is determined on the basis of actuarial 
calculations.  Pension under defined contribution pension plan is expensed during the period when 
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the employees rendered their services. 
 

Reserve 
Securities firms engaging in brokerage trading of marketable securities are required to provide 

0.0028% of the monthly transaction volume as the default loss provision (part of other liabilities) 
until the balance of this provision reaches $200,000 thousand. 

Reserve for guarantee loss is provided for based on the estimated unrecoverable amount. 
 

Recognition of Interest Revenues and Service Fees 
Interest revenue on loans is recorded on the accrual basis.  No interest revenue is recognized 

in the accompanying financial statements on loans and other credits extended by the Bank that are 
classified as nonperforming loans.  The interest revenue on those loans and credits is recognized 
upon collection.  Under the MOF regulations, the interest revenue on credits for which agreements 
have been reached to extend their maturities is recognized upon collection. 

Service fees are recorded as income upon receipt and substantial completion of activities 
involved in the earnings process. 

 
Income Tax 

The Bank adopted SFAS No. 22, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which requires an asset and 
liability approach to account and report for income tax.  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
are computed annually for differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws 
and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income.  
Valuation allowances are provided to reduce deferred tax assets that are not certain to be realized. 

According to SFAS No. 12, “Accounting for Income Tax Credits,” the Bank recognizes tax 
benefit from research and development and personnel training expenses in the year the tax credit 
was earned. 

Adjustment of prior years’ income tax is added to or deducted from current income tax 
expense (benefit) in the year the adjustment is made. 

Under the Income Tax Law of ROC, a 10% additional income tax is levied on distributable 
earnings that remain undistributed in the following year.  The 10% additional income tax is 
recognized and recorded as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolved the retention 
of the earnings. 

 
Commitments and Contingencies 
 

The Bank estimates any contingent loss that meets two basic requirements: 
(a) Information available prior to issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 

probable that an asset has been impaired or that a liability has been incurred at the date of 
the financial statements. 

(b) The amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
If a loss is probable or measurable, but not both, or if there is at least a reasonable 
possibility that a liability may have been incurred, the nature of the contingency must be 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, along with an estimate of the possible loss 
or the range of the possible loss if an estimate can be made. 

 
Foreign Currency Transactions 

At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of 
non-derivative merchandise are translated into New Taiwan dollars equivalents using the closing 
exchange rate. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of transactions at rates different from those at 
the date of the transaction, are recognized in the income statement and adjusted as the spot rate. 
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Unrealized exchange differences on nonmonetary financial assets and liabilities are a 
component of the change in their entire fair value.  For nonmonetary financial assets and liabilities 
classified as financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, unrealized exchange 
differences are recognized in the income statement.  For nonmonetary financial instruments that 
are classified as available-for-sale, unrealized exchange differences are recorded directly under 
stockholders’ equity until the instruments are sold or become impaired.  Nonmonetary financial 
instruments that are classified as carried at cost are recognized at the exchange rates on the 
transaction dates. 

 
Reclassifications 

Certain accounts of the financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 
2006 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the financial statements as of and for 
the three months ended March 31, 2007.. 
 

3. ACCOUNTING CHANGES 
Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank began applying the newly released SFAS No. 34, 

“Accounting for Financial Instruments,” No. 36, “Disclosure and Presentation for Financial 
Instruments,” and related revisions of previously released SFASs.  The Bank had properly 
recategorized its financial assets and liabilities upon the initial adoption of the newly released 
SFASs.  The adjustments made to the carrying amounts of the financial instruments recategorized 
as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss were included in the cumulative 
effect of changes in accounting principles.  On the other hand, the adjustments made to the 
carrying amounts of those recategorized as available-for-sale financial assets were recognized as 
adjustments to stockholders’ equity.  This accounting change did not have a significant impact on 
the Bank’s financial statements as of and for the year ended Dec. 31, 2006. 

The Bank separately signed contracts with CDAMC, Fu Hsi Asset Management Consulting 
Co., Ltd., P.I.C.K. International Asset Management Co., Ltd. and Orix Taiwan Corporation on 
November, 2003, November 2004, July 2005 and December 2005 to sell its non-performing loans 
at the book value of NT$4,802,474 thousand, NT$3,142,288 thousand, NT$687,090 thousand and 
NT$2,662,210 thousand.  The proceeds from the sale were NT$1,658,877 thousand, 
NT$1,080,889 thousand, NT$16,889 thousand and NT$1,000,853 thousand.  The losses on sale of 
non-performing loans were NT$3,143,597 thousand, NT$2,61,399 thousand, NT$670,201 thousand 
NT$1,661,l357 thousand.  The losses were supposed to be amortized during 60 months as of the 
date of contracts according to Article 15 of the Mergers and Acquisitions of Financial Institutions 
Act, and unamortized balance shall be stated as other assets.  However, as per the Financial 
Supervisory Commission of Executive Yuan Jin-Guan-Zheng (6) 0950146434 dated on October 11, 
2006, the Bank has changed the accounting principles of the deferred losses on sale of 
non-performing loans from the previous amortization during a period of 60 months in conformity 
with Article 15 of the Mergers and Acquisitions of Financial Institutions Act to write off the 
deferred balance NT$4,661,392 thousand in lump sum as of September 1, 2006. 
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Cash on hand  $ 2,887,380 $ 2,947,143 
Notes and checks for clearing  1,104,683  5,028,080 
Due from banks  205,339  213,865 
 $ 4,197,402 $ 8,189,088 

 
5. DUE FROM CENTRAL BANK OF CHINA AND BANKS 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Reserve for deposits   

Reserve for deposits –checking account $ 3,210,663 $ 3,331,843 
Reserve for deposits –demand account  6,906,212  6,795,023 
Inter bank clearing account  450,954  354,160 
Reserve for deposits in foreign currency  313,724  5,541 

Certificate of deposit of the Central Bank  31,600,000  30,600,000 
Call loans to banks  1,234,392  5,214,295 
 $ 43,715,945 $ 46,300,862 

 
The deposit reserves in the CBC are calculated by multiplying the average monthly balances of 

all deposit accounts by the legally required ratio.  The demand account reserve can be used only 
for the monthly adjustment of the deposit reserve. 

 
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the guarantee deposit of the Bank in the CBC to handle 

capital allocation, transfer and clearing amounted to $1,500,000 thousand and $0 thousand, 
respectively. 
 
6.FINANCIAL ASSETS / LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 

 December 31, 2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Financial assets-Trading   
Listed stocks - domestic $ 717,939 $ 686,506 
Beneficiary certificates  98,287  13,908 
Foreign exchange contracts  206  10,488 
Non-Principal Delivery Forward Contracts   -  701 
 $ 816,432 $ 711,603 
Financial liabilities-Trading   
Non-Principal Delivery Forward Contracts  $ 174 $ - 
Forward contracts  96  382 
 $ 270 $ 382 

 
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the contract amounts (notional amounts) of the Bank’s 

outstanding derivative transactions were summarized as follows:: 
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 Contract amount 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Currency swap contracts $ 10,026,369 $ 1,302,510 
Forward contracts  284,557  196,644 
Non-Principal Delivery Forward Contracts   194,832  195,810 

 
The forward contract is a non-transaction operation performed for the purpose of providing 

customers with the hedging tool for the foreign exchange position generated from import/export and 
foreign exchange and hedging the risk from the business and meeting the need for foreign exchange 
fund. 

The net gains on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss for the three months 
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $229,416 thousand and $(42,682) thousand, respectively. 
 
7.RECEIVABLES, NET 
 

 December 31, 2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Interests receivable $ 803,565 $ 874,796 
Accounts receivable  448,689  529,915 
Acceptances receivable  279,641  327,672 
Receviable Tax refund receivable  199,322  202,673 
Notes receivable  1,244  5,496 
Other receivables  413,170  277,597 
  2,145,631  2,218,149 
Less: allowance for bad debt (Note 8) ( 24,917) ( 22,007) 
 $ 2,120,714 $ 2,196,142 

 
8.NOTES DISCOUNTED AND LOANS, NET 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Bills negotiated and discounts $ 375,974 $ 207,674 
Overdraft (including the secured)  116,942  103,139 
Loans due within one year (including the secured)  68,330,916  66,571,675 
Loans due from one to seven years (including the 

secured) 
 56,024,407  53,692,970 

Loans due more than seven years (including the 
secured) 

 66,747,151  64,666,933 

Delinquent loans  3,287,553  2,882,565 
  194,882,943  188,124,956 
Less: allowance for bad debt ( 2,413,994) ( 1,775,063) 
 $ 192,468,949 $ 186,349,893 
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Please refer to the table 3 of the important accounting subjects for details. 
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the balances of nonaccrual loans were $3,215,070 

thousand and $2,821,910 thousand, respectively.  The unrecognized interest revenues on 
non-performing loans amounted to $187,069 thousand and $136,185 thousand for the year ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

 
All credits written off credits had been subjected to legal proceedings before being written off 

for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006. 
 
The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts of receivables, notes discounted and loans, 

and other delinquent loans (included in other financial assets) were summarized as follows: 
 

 2007 

 

Unrecovery Risk 
for Particular 

Loans 
Risk on Overall 
Loan Portfolio  Total 

Balance, beginning $ 1,070,338 $ 735,403 $ 1,805,741 
Provision  928,379  29,125  957,504 
Write-offs  ( 827,556)  - ( 827,556) 
Recovery of bad debts  503,222  -  503,222 
Balance, ending $ 1,674,383 $ 764,528 $ 2,438,911 

 

 2006 

 

Unrecovery Risk 
for Particular 

Loans 
Risk on Overall 
Loan Portfolio  Total 

Balance, beginning $ 861,222 $ 682,062 $ 1,543,284 
Provision  2,849,978  53,341  2,903,319 
Write-offs  ( 3,022,802)  - ( 3,022,802) 
Recovery of bad debts  381,940  -  381,940 
Balance, ending $ 1,070,338 $ 735,403 $ 1,805,741 

 
9.HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS, NET  
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Overseas bonds – valued in USD, 259,618 thousand 

and 87,684 thousand on December 31, 2007 and 
2006, respectively; valued in Japanese Yen, 
504,912 thousand yen and 507,552 yen on 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively; 
valued in Australia currency, AUD4,005 thousand 
and AUD4,013 thousand on December 31, 2007 
and 2006, respectively. 

$ 8,683,594 $ 3,100,799 

Government bonds  2,663,355  3,847,828 
Bank debentures  100,000  100,000 
  11,446,949  7,048,627 
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Less: accumulated impairment ( 100,000)  - 
 $ 11,346,949 $ 7,048,627 

 
As of December 31, 2007, the held-to-maturity government bonds regarded as notes issued 

under repurchase agreements were $789,000 thousand with par value. 
Up to December 31, 2007, the impairment loss generated from bank debentures valued as 

held-to-maturity has been NT$100,000 thousand. 
 
10.STOCKS - EQUITY METHOD 
 

 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

 Carrying Value 

Ownership 
Percentage 

% Carrying Value 

Ownership 
Percentage 

% 
Taichung Commercial Bank 

Life Insurance Agency Co., 
Ltd. 

$ 79,315 99.00 $ 3,103 99.00 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance Agency 
Co., Ltd. 

 19,743 99.00  15,309 99.00 

Taichung Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agency Co., Ltd. 

 5,296 100.00  - - 

 $ 104,354  $ 48,412  
 

The Bank invested NT$6,000 thousand in Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance Agency Co., 
Ltd. in 2007.  Up to December 31, 2007, the company has still been operated in a entrepreneurial 
period.  

Earnings from equity investments, which were based on the investees’ reviewed financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were summarized as follows: 
 

 Investment income Original investment cost 
Investee 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Taichung Commercial 
Bank Life Insurance 
Agency Co., Ltd. 

$ 66,721 $ 20,488 $ 1,980 $ 1,980 

Taichung Commercial 
Bank Property 
Insurance Agency Co., 
Ltd. 

 14,006  10,637  1,980  1,980 

Taichung Commercial 
Bank Insurance 
Agency Co., Ltd. 

( 704)  -  6,000  - 

 $ 80,023 $ 31,125 $ 9,960 $ 3,960 
 

The entities to be included by the Bank into the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7 on “Consolidated Financial 
Statements”and “Rules Govening the Preparation of Financial Statements of Public Listed Banks” 
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include Taichung Commercial Bank Life Insurance Agency Co., Ltd., Taichung Commercial Bank 
Property Insurance Agency Co., Ltd. and Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance Agency Co., Ltd..  
The consolidated financial statements have already  been prepared. 
 
11.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Financial assets at cost $ 211,549 $ 158,849 
Remittance purchase  -  85 
Other receivables on demand, net  -  - 
 $ 211,549 $ 158,934 

 
Details of the financial assets carried at cost were summarized as follows: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Publicly offering of domestic common stock $ 38,065 $ 38,065 
Common stock other than publicly offering of 

domestic common stock 
 173,484  120,784 

 $ 211,549 $ 158,849 
 
Details of other receivables on demand, net were summarized as follows: 
 

 
December 31,  

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Receivables on demand other than delinquent loans  $ - $ 8,671 
Less: allowance for bad debt (Note 8)  - ( 8,671) 
 $ - $ - 
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12.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 2007 

 Land 
Housing and 

buildings 
Transportation 
equipment 

Miscellaneous 
equipment 

Leased 
assets 

Works in 
process 

Prepayments 
for purchase 

of 
equipment Total 

Cost         
Balance, beginning $1,924,247 $2,041,968 $ 45,042 $1,255,359 $ 212 $ - $ 1,049 $5,267,877 
Increasement  - 100  1,107  68,529  -  283  2,990  73,009 
Decreasement ( 38,761) ( 38,680) ( 1,790) ( 216,141)  -  -  - ( 295,372) 
Balance,ending  1,885,486  2,003,388  44,359  1,107,747  212  283  4,039  5,045,514 
         
Appreciations         
Balance , beginning  514,081  138,521  -  -  -  -  -  652,602 
Increasement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Decreasement ( 28,587) ( 4,839)  -  -  -  -  - ( 33,426) 
Balance, ending  485,494  133,682  -  -  -  -  -  619,176 
         
Less: Accumulated 

depreciation 
        

Balance, beginning  -  811,628  40,218  1,020,582  138  -  -  1,872,566 
Increasement  -  42,887  1,588  94,307  42  -  -  138,824 
Decreasement  - ( 21,558) ( 1,790) ( 216,125)  -  -  - ( 239,473) 
Balance, ending  -  832,957  40,016  898,764  180  -  -  1,771,917 
         
Less:Accumulated 

impairment 
        

Balance, beginning  150,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  150,000 
Increasement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Decreasement ( 28,000)  -  -  -  -  -  - ( 28,000) 
Balance,ending  122,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  122,000 
Net, ending $2,248,980 $1,304,113 $ 4,343 $ 208,983 $ 32 $ 283 $ 4,039 $3,770,773 
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 2006 

 Land 
Housing and 

buildings 
Transportation 
equipment 

Miscellaneous 
equipment 

Leased 
assets 

Works in 
process 

Prepayments 
for purchase 

of 
equipment Total 

Cost         
Balance, beginning $1,924,247 $2,013,025 $ 60,728 $1,403,922 $ 212 $ 25,751 $ 2,275 $5,430,160 
Increasement  -  550  500  21,208  -  4,655  -  26,913 
Decreasement  -  - ( 16,350) ( 168,730)  -  -  - ( 185,080) 
Reclassified in the 
current period 

 -  28,393  164 ( 1,041)  - ( 30,406) ( 1,226) ( 4,116) 

Balance,ending  1,924,247  2,041,968  45,042  1,255,359  212  -  1,049  5,267,877 
Appreciations         
Balance , beginning  514,081  138,521  -  -  -  -  -  652,602 
Increasement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Decreasement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance, ending  514,081  138,521  -  -  -  -  -  652,602 
         
Less: Accumulated 

depreciation 
        

Balance, beginning  -  767,426  54,844  1,085,728  79  -  -  1,908,077 
Increasement  -  44,202  1,630  106,099  59  -  -  151,990 
Decreasement  -  - ( 16,350) ( 168,707)  -  -  - ( 185,057) 
Reclassified in the 
current period 

 -  -  94 ( 2,538)  -  -  - ( 2,444) 

Balance, ending  -  811,628  40,218  1,020,582  138  -  -  1,872,566 
         
Less:Accumulated 

impairment 
        

Balance, beginning 150,000   -  -  -  -  -  -  150,000 
Increasement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Decreasement  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance,ending 150,000  -  -  -  -  -  -  150,000 
Net, ending $2,288,328 $1,368,861 $ 4,824 $ 234,777 $ 74 $ - $ 1,049 $3,897,913 

 
Some land and buildings were not available for business operation, which were stated as 

assets not available for business operation at their carrying value.  Please refer to Note 13. 
Some impaired fixed assets were sold in 2007.  Therefore, the gains from reversal of asset 

impairmentamounted to NT$28,000 thousand were recognized. 
13.OTHER ASSETS 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Deferred income tax assets (note 24) $ 1,629,740 $ 1,926,935 
Refundable deposits  1,158,537  1,234,788 
Deferred pension cost (note 20)  443,986  384,485 
Collaterals assumed, net  432,499  776,836 
Deferred expenses  104,225  82,665 
Prepayments  68,130  59,893 
Reserve for trust funds compensation  50,000  50,000 
Assets not available for business operation, net  14,570  43,197 
 $ 3,901,687 $ 4,558,799 
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The government bonds held-to-maturity deposited as the security bond for provisional seizure 

at court and for business guarantee on December 31, 2007 and 2006 were NT$901,300 thousand 
and NT$891,000 thousand,respectively, which were stated as refundable deposits. 

Details of collaterals assumed were summarized as follows: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Land $ 538,617 $ 665,066 
Housing and buildings  301,585  453,702 
Less: accumulated impairment ( 407,703) ( 341,932) 
 $ 432,499 $ 776,836 

 
Some collaterals assumed have not yet been disposed of due to the  expiration of the 

statutory time limit in 2007, and the loss on asset impairment amounted to  NT$77,213 thousand 
was recognized. Further, partial collateral assumed which had been impaired had been sold, the 
Bank recognized reversal gains on assets impairment of $233,455 thousand for the year ended 
December 31, 2007.. 

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the held-to-maturity government bonds regarded as 
reserve for trust funds compensation were the same amount by $50,000 thousand with par value, 
respectively. 

. 
Details of assets not available for business operation leased to others were as follows: 

 
 2007 2006 

 Land 
Housing and 

buildings Total Land 
Housing and 

buildings Total 
Cost       
Balance, 

beginning 
$ 26,977 $ 25,753 $ 52,730 $ 26,977 $ 25,753 $ 52,730 

Decreasement ( 17,086) ( 16,660) ( 33,746)  -  -  - 
Balance, ending  9,891  9,093  18,984  26,977  25,753  52,730 
       
Less: 
accumulated 
depreciation 

      

Balance, 
beginning 

 -  9,533  9,533  -  9,104  9,104 

Increasment  -  214  214  -  429  429 
Decreasement  - ( 5,333) ( 5,333)  -  -  - 
Balance, ending  -  4,414  4,414  -  9,533  9,533 
       
Net, ending $ 9,891 $ 4,679 $ 14,570 $ 26,977 $ 16,220 $ 43,197 
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14.DUE TO CENTRAL BANK OF CHINA AND BANKS 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Due to the CBC $ 6,650 $ 6,115 
Due to banks  92,374  10,278 
Due to Taiwan Post Co., Ltd.  3,069,625  3,287,117 
Call loans from banks  -  12,058 
 $ 3,168,649 $ 3,315,568 

 
15. As of December 31, 2007, notes issued under repurchase agreements were NT$848,061 
thousand.  The repurchasing commitments under such agreements were NT848,955 thousand. 
16.PAYABLES 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Notes and checks in clearing $ 1,104,683 $ 5,028,080 
Accrued expenses  358,442  281,570 
Interest payable  312,329  312,176 
Acceptances payable  290,061  342,856 
 Foreign exchange payable, trust  122,748  32,208 
Collection payable  93,327  130,079 
Other payables  406,507  343,494 
 $ 2,688,097 $ 6,470,463 

 
17.CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND REMITTANCES 
 

 December 31, 2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Checking $ 3,892,410 $ 5,008,808 
Demand  37,550,361  34,128,549 
Current saving deposits  60,906,477  63,122,469 
Time deposits  31,411,937  24,297,540 
Time saving deposits  104,062,084  113,238,155 
Remittances outstanding  8,369  4,536 
 $ 237,831,638 $ 239,800,057 

 
18.FINANCIAL BONDS PAYABLE 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Sub-prime financial bonds $ 2,400,000 $ - 
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As approved by FSC’s Letter under Ching-Kuan(4) No. 09600481190 dated November 14, 

2007, the Bank issued 1st term sub-prime financial bonds on December 21, 2007 upon the following 
terms and conditions: 

Approved: NT$3,500,000 thousand. 
Issued: NT$2,400,000 thousand. 
Face value: NT$10,000 thousand, issued at par value. 
Duration: 5.5 years, matured on June 21, 2013. 
Bond interest rate: the mobile interest rate of the time deposit of one year published by 

Taiwan Post Co., Ltd. plus 1.02%. 
Repayment terms: repaid in lump sum upon maturity. 
Payment of interest: interest paid per six months beginning as of the date of issuance. 

 
19.OTHER LIABILITIES 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Reserve for land revaluation increment tax (“LRIT”) $ 115,218 $ 115,694 
Advances  113,631  173,070 
Reserves  96,250  66,579 
Guarantee deposits received  93,032  93,299 
Others  3,840  19,069 
 $ 421,971 $ 467,711 

 
20.EMPLOYEES’ PENSION FUND 
 

The pension costs provided under the defined contribution method in 2007 and 2006 were 
NT$33,594 thousand and NT$26,485 thousand, respectively.  The net pension costs provided 
under the defined benefit method were NT$99,082 thousand and NT$110,390 thousand, 
respectively.  The components thereof are specified as follows: 
 

 2007 2006 
Service costs $ 35,419 $ 44,274 
Interest costs  34,591  47,091 
Unrecognized amortization of transitional net benefit 

obligation 
 25,765  25,765 

Expected return of pension fund assets ( 22,863) ( 32,910) 
Unrecognized unamortized balance of service costs 

in previous period 
 26,170  26,170 

Net pension cost $ 99,082 $ 110,390 
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The contribution of pension fund and stated accrued pension liabilities under the defined 

benefit rules are adjusted as follows: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Benefit obligation   

Vested benefit obligation ($ 182,129) ($ 118,680) 
Non-vested benefit obligation ( 949,904) ( 900,110) 
Cumulative benefit obligation ( 1,132,033) ( 1,018,790) 
Effects of increasement in salary ( 245,106) ( 243,058) 
Projected benefit obligation ( 1,377,139) ( 1,261,848) 

Fair value of pension fund assets  839,553  785,811 
Contribution ( 537,586) ( 476,037) 
Unrecognized transitional benefit obligation  128,832  154,597 
Unrecognized service costs from previous period  345,231  371,401 
Unrecognized pension loss  215,029  101,545 
Accruable pension liabilities ( 443,986) ( 384,485) 
Accruable pension liabilities ($ 292,480) ($ 232,979) 

 
The Bank’s acturial hypotheses of pension benefit obligation under the defined benefit 

method are specified as follows: 
 

 2007 2006 
Discounted rate 2.75% 2.75% 
Increasement rate of future salary 1.50% 1.50% 
Expected rate of return of pension fund assets 2.75% 2.75% 

 
The vested benefit under the defined benefity methos is specified as follows: 

 

 2007 2006 
Vested benefit $ 237,689 $ 155,752 

 
21.STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Common Stock 
The Bank’s had authorized and issued common stock amounted to $15,380,144 thousand 

divided into 1,538,014 thousand common shares with a par value of $10 dollars each as of 
December 31, 2007.. 

In order to improve the assets quality, perfect the financial condition, enforce the capital 
structure, and raise the CAR, in the extraordinary meeting on December 7, 2006, the stockholders, 
in accordance with Article 168-1 of the Company Act, resolved, as approved by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission of Executive Yuan in its letter of January 22, 2007 Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) 
No. 0950158669, to offset the accumulated deficit against the common stocks of $7,339,264 
thousand, which eliminated 733,926 thousand common shares, and to publicly raise its common 
stocks in cash by 500,000 thousand common shares.  The Board of Directors decided the date of 
capital reduction as February 8, 2007 and the date of capital increase in cash as March 7, 2007, 
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respectively.  Further, the Bank had completed the common stocks new-issuance in cash totaling 
$5,750,000 thousand, divided into 500,000 thousand common shares at $10 par value and at $11.5 
issue price per share, on March 26, 2007.  The registration process for this capital increase had 
been completed on April 10, 2007. The Bank had authorized and issued common stocks amounted 
to $13,040,880 thousand divided into 1,304,088 thousand common shares with a par value of $10 
each as of December 31, 2007. 

 
Capital surplus 
Under related regulations, capital surplus shall not be used except to offset a deficit.  However, 

capital surplus arising from issuance of shares in excess of par value (including issuance in excess 
of common stock par value, issuance of shares for combinations and treasury stock transactions, etc.) 
and donation may be transferred to common stock on the basis of the percentage of shares held by 
the stockholders.  Such capital surplus transferred to common stock shall be within a certain 
percentage prescribed by related regulations. 

Additional paid-in capital in excess of par amounted to $750,000 thousand resulted from the 
issuance of common stock for cash in March 2007. 

 
Retained Earnings and dividend policy 
 

The Bank’s Articles of Incorporation provide that the Bank’s annual earnings shall be 
appropriated in the following order: 

 
(a) Payment of taxes; 
(b) offset accumulated deficit, if any; 
(c) 30% thereafter as legal reserve; 
(d) Payment of stockholders’ dividend at 8%; 
(e) Employees’ bonuses at 8%; 
(f) The remainder plus the beginning balance of unappropriated earnings to be distributed 

shall be proposed by the Board of Directors, which shall consider the Bank’s actual condition, and 
approved in the annual stockholders’ meeting. 

 
According to the Banking Act of ROC, the maximum cash dividends may not exceed 15% of 

the amount of common stock outstanding.  Cash or asset distribution shall be restricted if the 
capital adequacy ratio (CAR) does not reach the authority’s requirement. 

 
Under the Financial Supervisory Commission of Executive Yuan directive, if the Bank’s 

non-performing loans are sold and the loss on this sale is amortized over 60 months, as required by 
Article 15 of the Financial Institutions Merger Act, a special reserve shall be appropriated from 
retained earnings at the amount equal to the difference of the loss on the sale of non-performing 
loans and the amortized amount.  Also, an amount equal to the debit balance of an account in 
stockholders’ equity shall be appropriated from retained earnings as special reserve.  The balance 
of the special reserve is adjusted to reflect the debit balance of the related account as of the balance 
sheet date. 
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The Bank’s appropriation and distribution of cash and stock dividends take into account the 
development of the overall financial environment, the condition of the future operating profitability, 
and the fair presentation of CAR, etc. 

 
The Bank resolved to offset against unrealized assets revaluation appreciation a loss of 

$313,641 thousand.  Earnings incurred in the future years cannot be distributed for payment of 
dividends or used for any other purpose unless, those unrealized revaluation appreciation which was 
previously offset against accumulated deficit, has been restored to those earnings.  In the annual 
meeting, the stockholders approved the amount of $284,079 thousand restored, and the unrealized 
revaluation appreciation amounted to $20,088 thousand should be reduced due to the realization of 
disposal of the property. Therefore, the amount $9,474 had not been restored as of December 31, 
2007. 

 
In the extraordinary meeting on December 7, 2006, the stockholders resolved to offset the 

accumulated deficit, ended September 30, 2006, against the common stocks of $7,339,264 
thousand.  Additionally, in the annual meeting, the stockholders approved the offset of the 
accumulated deficit as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, against the unrealized 
revaluation appreciation of $284,079 on June 15, 2007 and the capital surplus of  $160,452 
thousand on June 9, 2006. All the information above could be searched at the TSE Market 
Observation Post System website. 

 
As of February 18, 2008, the date of the accompanying independent accountants’ audit report, 

the dividend distribution had been not approved by the Board of Directors. The related information 
regarding the proposed dividend distribution of 2007 earnings can be found at the TSE Market 
Observation Post System website. 

 
22. SERVICE FEE, NET 

 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Service fee revenue $ 844,134 $ 441,446 
Service fee expenses ( 76,938) ( 80,682) 
 $ 767,196 $ 360,764 
 

23.EMPLOYEE EXPENSES, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION  
Summarized by functions: 

 

 2007 2006 

 Operating expenses Operating expenses 
Employee expenses   

Salaries and wages $ 1,675,440 $ 1,476,699 
Labor insurance and national health 
insurance 

 106,232  97,720 

Pension  132,676  136,875 
Others  62,806  56,688 

 $ 1,977,154 $ 1,767,982 
Depreciation expenses $ 146,032 $ 166,800 
Amortization expenses $ 31,216 $ 22,787 



152 

24.INCOME TAX 
 

Pursuant to “Income Basic Tax Act” effective from January 1, 2006, the income tax should be 
the higher amount of the following:  

 
a. Regular income tax calculated in accordance with the “Income Tax Act” and other 

relevant regulations. 
 
b. Basic tax calculated in accordance with the “Income Basic Tax Act” that does not allow 

deductions for investment tax credit granted under the provision of other laws.  (The basic tax rate 
decided by Executive Yuan, ROC was 10%.) 

The income tax refundable as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were calculated as follows:  
(The influence of “Income Basic Tax Act” had been considered in the calculation of current income 
tax.) 

 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Gains(loss) before income tax $ 2,103,717 ($ 5,748,279) 
Permanent difference ( 247,674) ( 435,029) 
Temporary difference ( 878,675)  3,955,676 
  977,368 ( 2,227,632) 
Less: loss deduction ( 977,368)  - 
Estimated general taxable income  - ( 2,227,632) 
Payable tax (x25%-NT$10 thousand)  -  - 
Plus: Supplemented minimum tax  29,877  - 
Payable income tax for the current period  29,877  - 
Less: prepaid and withheld tax ( 86,634) ( 75,902) 
Receivable tax refund (stated as receivable 

accounts) 
($ 56,757) ($ 75,902) 

 
Net deferred income tax assets consist of the following: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Deferred income tax   

Less: loss deduction $ 989,173 $ 2,274,730 
Loss from deferred disposal of NPL  662,911  1,039,739 
Excess allowance for bad debt  121,318  - 
   
Loss from unrealized fixed and pledged 

collater price decline and impairment 
 33,081  20,621 

Investment exemption  10,064  12,898 
Others  17,596 ( 12,365) 

Less: deferred income tax assets ( 204,403) ( 1,408,688) 
Net deferred income tax $ 1,629,740 $ 1,926,935 
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Until December 31, 2007, the loss deduction and investment exemption applicable to 
taxable income of the following years are specified as following: 
 

Due year Loss deduction 
Investment 
exemption 

2008 $ 174,056 $ 1,375 
2009  348,767  2,374 
2010  1,361,823  2,754 
2011  2,072,047  3,561 
 $ 3,956,693 $ 10,064 
 

The investment exemption for income tax is specified as following: 
 

Last year of 
deduction Item 

Balance to be 
deducted 

Total 
deduction Merit 

2008 Personnel training $ 1,375 $ 1,375 Statute for Upgrading Industries 
2009 Personnel training  2,374  2,374 � 
2010 Personnel training  2,754  2,754 � 
2011 Personnel training  3,561  3,561 � 

  $ 10,064   

 
The income tax expenses (gain) are specified as following: 

 

 2007 2006 
Payable income tax for the current period $ 29,877 $ - 
Decrease (increase) in deferred income tax assets  297,195 ( 1,045,732) 
Income tax expenses (gain) $ 327,072 ($ 1,045,732) 
 

The information about shareholders’ deductible tax: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Shareholders’ deductible tax account-Balance $ 1,389,991 $ 1,340,245 
Projected deductible rate of earnings allocation 

for the current year 
 33.33%  - 

 
Projected deductible rate of earnings allocation for the current year includes the 

payable income tax estimated for the current year.According to the Income Tax Law, no 
net dividends or earnings may be deducted unless they refer to the dividends allocated 
from a company or cooperative or the profit-making business income tax paid by an 
investee or cooperative as included in the total earnings, in the territory of the 
R.O.C. .Notwithstanding, said shall not apply where additional 10% income tax shall be 
levied as no earnings are allocated by the investee or cooperative. 
Unitl December 31, 2007, there was no unallocated earnings for 1997 and the previous 
years. 
The income tax returns until 2005 have been authorized by the tax collection authority. 
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EPS (loss per share) 

The numerator and denominator for calculating EPS (loss per share) are disclosed as 
following: 
 

 Earnings (loss)-current period 
(numerator) 

Quantity 
(denominator) EPS (loss per share)($) 

 Before 
taxation After taxation 

(thousand 
shares) 

Before 
taxation After taxation 

Basic EPS (loss per share)      
2007 $ 2,103,717 $ 1,776,645  1,187,650 $ 1.77 $ 1.50 
2006 ($ 5,748,279) ($ 4,702,547)  804,088 ($ 7.15) ($ 5.85) 

 
A special session of the Board held on December 7, 2006 resolved to reduce the capital 

stock of the Bank by NT$7,339,264 thousand whereby 733,926,000 outstanding shares were 
eliminated. The Board resolved to make February 8, 2007 the decapitalization day. As such, 
adjustment was made on the weighed average quantity of outstanding shares in 2006. 
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Important transactions with related parties 
Name Affiliation 

Hwang Hsui-Nan (Representative to Pan Asia 
Chemical Corporation) 

Chairman of the Board of the Bank 

Pan Asia Chemical Corporation and Chen Yee-Deh Executive director of the Bank 
Tsai Chin-Hwang and Wang Chao-Chang Juristic person representative to executive director of 

the Bank 
Chou Chang Co., Ltd. Standing supervisor of the Bank 
Hwang Shu-Li Juristic person representative to standing supervisor of 

the Bank 
Po Han Investment Co., Ltd., Hung Ching Investment 

Co., Ltd., Yu Feng Investment Co., Ltd., Gium 
Investment Co., Ltd. and Chang Ming-Cheng 

Director of the Bank 

Liao Wen-Pin, Wang Tzer-Nan, Chang Hsin-Ching, 
Yuh-Eing Chung, Hung Chuang-Shang, Chuang 
Ming-Shan, Tsai Ya-Juen, Wang Kwei-Feng, 
Chang Ching-hsin 

Juristic person representative to director of the Bank 

Chou Chang Co., Ltd. and Lee Chao-Hsiang Supervisor of the Bank 
Chen Chung-Po, Lee Fu Chien-Hwa and Hwang 

Chien-Er 
Juristic person representative to supervisor of the 

Bank 
Yuh-Eing Chung (note) President of the Bank 
Chang Lee Rong-hsiung (note) Former president of the Bank 
103 persons includig Lin An-Feng  Managers (above) of Head Office and managers of the 

various entities 
54 persons including Wang Chao-Ching Spouses and kins at the second tier under the Civil 

Code of directors, supervisors, Chairman of the 
Board and President of the Bank 

Taichung Commercial Bank Cultural and Educational 
Foundation, Taichung Commercial Bank Workers’ 
Welfare Commission 

Corporations receiving donation amounted to more 
than one-thirds of the Bank’s paid-in capital 

Taichung Commercial Bank Personal Insurance Agent 
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Taichung 
Commercial Bank Personal Insurance Agent) 

Subsidiary of the Bank 

Taichung Commercial Bank Property Insurance Agent 
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Taichung 
Commercial Bank Property Insurance Agent) 

Subsidiary of the Bank 

Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 
(formerly known as Taichung Commercial Bank 
Insurance Agent) 

Subsidiary of the Bank 

CMFC Dominant shareholder holding more than 10% of the 
Bank’s shares 

Chung Chien Investment Co., Ltd. Holding company of CMFC 
Deh Hsing Investment Co., Ltd. Affiliate 
Yung Ching Co., Ltd. Affiliate 
Deh Hsing Consolidated Securities Co., Ltd. Affiliate 
Deh Hsing Securities Investment and Trust Co., Ltd. Affiliate 
Nan Chung Petrochemical Corp. Affiliate 
Chou Chang Co., Ltd. Affiliate 
Sheng Jen Knitted Textiles Co., Ltd. Affiliate business 
Ta Fa Investment Co., Ltd. Affiliate business 
Pan Asia Investment Co., Ltd. Affiliate business 
Tai Yi Investment Co., Ltd. Affiliate business 
Formosa Imperial Wineseller Corp. Affiliate business 
 
Note: Former Presdient of the Bank resigned on May 31, 2006.  New Presdient was approved by FSC on March 
28, 2007. 
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Summarization of important transactions between the Bank and related parties: 
 
Loans 
 

2007 
Currency: NTD 1,000 

 
Performance 

Type 

Numer of 
accounts or 

name of 
related party 

Maximum 
balance – 
current 
period 

Balance - 
ending 

Normal 
loans NPL 

Interest 
revenue 

Contents of 
collateral 

Difference in 
trading conditions 

and terms with 
non-related party 

Consumer loans 
to employees 

21 accounts $ 10,742 $ 7,962 $ 7,962 $ - $ 231 Credit loans None 

Residential 
mortgage loans 

37 accounts  80,475  70,775  70,775  -  1,909 Real estate � 

Other loans Hsieh 
Cheng-Han 

 4,706  4,526  4,526  -  119 � � 

 Lin Tzer-Hsiu  9,389  3,334  3,334  -  111 � � 

 Chang 
Ching-Hsin 

 3,300  3,300  3,300  -  102 � � 

 Lee 
Chung-Hsien 

 2,587  2,463  2,463  -  87 � � 

 Hwang 
Chin-Feng 

 2,200  2,200  2,200  -  60 � � 

 Jiang Jie-Li  3,000  2,000  2,000  -  27 � � 

 Tsai Chia-Wei  2,836  2,000  2,000  -  45 � � 

 Liu Hsing-Chi  2,000  2,000  2,000  -  55 � � 

 Hwang 
Shun-Fa 

 2,000  2,000  2,000  -  33 � � 

 Chia Deh-Wei  1,926  1,838  1,838  -  57 � � 

 Chen 
Rai-Fang 

 2,400  1,820  1,820  -  56 � � 

 Tsai 
Shu-Ming 

 5,681  1,681  1,681  -  85 � � 

 Ge 
Chien-rong 

 1,496  1,462  1,462  -  38 � � 

 Liao Tai-Min  1,455  1,395  1,395  -  45 � � 

 You 
Wen-Tung 

 1,000  1,000  1,000  -  19 � � 

 Yang Tung-Po  1,013  804  804  -  28 � � 

 Chi Kuo-Chin  555  477  477  -  19 � � 

 Chou 
Kuo-cheng 

 582  149  149  -  12 � � 

 Yang 
Tien-Huei 

 3,500  -  -  -  85 � � 

 Lin Po-Tsun  3,000  -  -  -  33 � � 

 Lin 
Ching-Hsiang 

 900  -  -  -  1 Certificate 
of deposit 

� 

 Lin 
Chien-ting 

 500  -  -  -  6 Certificate 
of deposit 

� 

 Liang Hsin-Fu  200  -  -  -  1 Real estate � 

  $ 147,443 $ 113,186 $ 113,186 $ - $ 3,264   
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2006 
Currency: NTD 1,000 

 
Performance 

Type 

Numer of 
accounts or 

name of 
related party 

Maximum 
balance – 
current 
period 

Balance - 
ending 

Normal 
loans NPL 

Interest 
revenue 

Contents of 
collateral 

Difference in 
trading conditions 

and terms with 
non-related party 

Consumer loans 
to employees 

11 accounts $ 2,927 $ 967 $ 967 $ - $ 89 Credit loans None 

Residential 
mortgage loans 

45 accounts  91,567  70,483  70,483  -  1,752 Real estate � 

Other loans Yang 
Tsen-Lin 

 7,750  7,750  7,750  -  204 � � 

 Lin Tzer-Hsiu  6,955  4,459  4,459  -  114 � � 

 Tsai 
Shu-Ming 

 4,000  4,000  4,000  -  115 � � 

 Yang 
Tien-Huei 

 3,500  3,500  3,500  -  - � � 

 Chang 
Ching-Hsin 

 4,000  3,250  3,250  -  89 � � 

 Hsieh 
Cheng-Han 

 3,300  3,206  3,206  -  34 � � 

 Lin Po-Tsun  3,000  3,000  3,000  -  10 � � 

 Lee 
Chung-Hsien 

 2,708  2,587  2,587  -  88 � � 

 Chen 
Rai-Fang 

 5,700  2,400  2,400  -  69 � � 

 Hwang 
Shun-Fa 

 4,247  2,000  2,000  -  33 � � 

 Liu 
Hsing-Chi 

 2,000  2,000  2,000  -  14 � � 

 Chia Deh-Wei  2,017  1,926  1,926  -  48 � � 

 Liao Tai-Min  1,500  1,455  1,455  -  42 � � 

 Yang Tung-Po  1,217  1,013  1,013  -  33 � � 

 Tsai Chia-Wei  1,917  836  836  -  38 � � 

 Hwang 
Tsang-Yun 

 786  707  707  -  22 � � 

 Chou 
Kuo-cheng 

 616  583  583  -  27 � � 

 Chi Kuo-Chin  600  556  556  -  12 � � 

 Liang 
Hsin-Fu 

 500  200  200  -  5 � � 

 Yang 
Ching-Po 

 15,000  -  -  -  115 � � 

 Lee 
Chun-Tzer 

 4,500  -  -  -  61 � � 

 Yao 
Chung-Ho 

 4,000  -  -  -  66 � � 

 Lin Wen-Tao  3,773  -  -  -  147 � � 

 Wei Lin-Ruei  3,000  -  -  -  43 � � 

 Hong 
Chen-Sheng 

 1,000  -  -  -  20 � � 

 Peng 
Deng-Yueh 

 1,000  -  -  -  1 � � 

  $ 183,080 $ 116,878 $ 116,878 $ - $ 3,291   

 
(Continued on next page) 
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According to Articles 32 and 33 of the Banking Act, no non-secured credit loans shall 
be granted to any party interested with the Bank’s staff, unless they are consumer loans and 
loans extended to the government; the secured credit loans shall be granted under sufficient 
collateral and the terms of such credit extension shall not be more favorable than those offered 
to other customers in the same category. 
 
Deposits 
 

 2007 

 
Balance - 

ending 
Interest rate 

collars 
Interest 

expenditure 
Taichung Commercial Bank Workers’ 

Welfare Commission 
$ 138,231 9.33 $ 12,295 

Taichung Commercial Bank Personal 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

 99,933 0.10  70 

Taichung Commercial Bank Property 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

 23,225 0.10  21 

Taichung Commercial Bank Insurance 
Agent Co., Ltd. 

 4,887 0.10  2 

Deh Hsing Consolidated Securities 
Co., Ltd. 

 15,000 2.31  90 

Others  128,407 0.10~9.33  4,822 
 $ 409,683  $ 17,300 
 
 2006 
 Balance - 

ending 
Interest rate 

collars 
Interest 

expenditure 
Taichung Commercial Bank Workers’ 

Welfare Commission 
$ 138,073 9.00 $ 11,785 

Taichung Commercial Bank Personal 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

 41,225 0.10  36 

Taichung Commercial Bank Property 
Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. 

$ 19,920 0.10 $ 18 

Deh Hsing Consolidated Securities 
Co., Ltd. 

 5,000 1.81  26 

Others  170,391 0.10~9.00  5,510 
 $ 374,609  $ 17,375 
 

Except the interest rates for bank clerks’ deposits on Dec. 31, 2007 and 2006, 9.33% 
and 9.00%, the other interest rates are not materially different from those offered to the 
general customers. 
 
Significant undertaking or contingent liabilities 
 

In addition to the undertaking for financial products specifed in Note 6 and Note 15, the 
Bank had the following undertqaking or contingent liabilities on December 31, 2007 and 
2006: 
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Undertaking: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Undisbursed credit committee (exclusive of 

credit cards) 
$ 24,693,629 $ 23,422,100 

Credit card committee  7,495,347  8,387,820 
Guarantee payments  1,998,846  1,656,847 
Trust liabilities  32,913,657  16,137,288 
Balance of application for L/C  2,662,861  1,720,331 
 

The Ching Shui Branch clerk misappropriated the depositor’s funds in 1999, and the 
depositor filed the action with monetary claim against the Bank.  The judgment was 
rendered in disfavor of the Bank, holding that the Bank should compensate NT$3,769 
thousand.Nonetheless, the Bank has petitioned for provisional seizure on the employee's 
and his guarantor’s property and also filed the action with monetary claim against him.  
Therefore, the Bank has not yet recognized the loss.Further, the Bank has purchased the 
employee’s loyalty insurance in the amount of NT$50,000 thousand.  However, the 
insurance company still refused to pay the compensation upon receipt of the Bank’s 
claim.  Therefore, the Bank appointed its attorney to initiate the action against 
insurance payment.  Now, the action is pending examination by court. 
The employee, Su Wen-Yu, applied for retirement and payment of the pension, 
NT$6,674 thousand, with the Bank in November 2005.  However, the Bank held that 
he failed to fulfill his functions with care in the duration of employement and the 
application for retirement should not be approved until the liability to be borne by him 
was verified.  Both parties failed to reach agreement upon meditation and the dispute 
was referred to the court.  The judgment was rendered in disfavor of the Bank in 1st 
and 2nd instances.  For disagreement with the judgment, the Bank has filed an appeal 
against 2nd-instance judgment. 
The former employee, Wang Yi-Hsiung, applied for retirement in February 2001.  
However, since he was one of the defendants in Kuang San Group Case and has been 
convicted of the offense, the Bank did not grant him the pension.  He initiated an 
action for payment of pension, NT$5,997 thousand, against the Bank in March 2006.  
The case is now pending examination in Taichung District Court. 
The balance sheet and trust property catalogue of the trust account is disclosed pursuant 
to Article 17 of Enforcement Rules of Trust Enterprise Act as following: 
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Balance Sheet of Trust Accounts 
December 31, 2007 

 

Trust assets Amount  Trust liabilities Amount 
Bank deposits $ 2,500  Trust capital  
Fund investment  32,412,221  Money trust $ 32,822,766 
Structured product 

investment 
 408,045  Real estate 

trust 
 90,891 

Real estate     
Land  80,115    
Housing and 

buildings 
 10,776    

Total trust assets $ 32,913,657  Total trust liabilities $ 32,913,657 
 

Property Catalogue of Trust Accounts 
 

Investment    Amount 
Bank deposits    $ 2,500 
Fund investment    32,412,221 
Structured product 

investment 
   408,045 

Real estate     
Land    80,115 
Housing and 

buildings 
   10,776 

    $ 32,913,657 
 

Balance Sheet of Trust Accounts 
December 31, 2006 

 

Trust assets   Trust liabilities  
Fund investment $ 16,137,288  Trust capital  
   Money trust $ 16,137,288 
Total trust assets $ 16,137,288  Total trust liabilities $ 16,137,288 

 
Property Catalogue of Trust Accounts 

 

Investment    Amount 
Fund investment    $ 16,137,288 
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Disclosure of information about financial products 
 
Information about fair value 
 

 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

 Book value Fair value Book value Fair value 
Financial assets     
Financial assets at fair 

value equivalent to 
book value 

$ 242,818,913 $ 242,818,913 $ 243,243,331 $ 243,243,331 

Financial instruments at 
fair value through 
income statement 

 816,432  816,432  711,603  711,603 

Financial instruments held 
to maturity 

 11,346,949  11,155,161  7,048,627  6,885,799 

Financial liabilities     
Financial liabilities at fair 

value equivalent to 
book value 

 243,688,429  243,688,429  250,434,242  250,434,242 

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through income 
statement 

 270  270  382  382 

Payable financial bonds  2,400,000  2,399,532  -  - 

 
The Bank applies the following methods and hypothese for the valuation of fair value of 
financial products: 

The book value of short-term financial products stated in the balance sheet shall be the 
fair value of such products.  The reason is that the maturity date of these products is 
close and it would be reasonable to use the book value in the valuation of fair value.This 
method is applied to the valuation of cash and cash equivalents, Nostro Accounts and 
call loans to banks, receivable accounts, Vostro accountsnotes receivable, RP bill and 
bond liabilities, payable accounts, remittances and other financial liabilities. 
The open market price of financial products at fair value through income statement, 
financial assets held to maturity and payable financial bonds, if any, shall be the fair 
value of such assets.  Where there is no such market price available, the fair value shall 
be estimated under evaluation method.The estimation and hypotheses used in the 
evaluation method adopted by the Bank are identical with the information about the 
estimation and hypotheses applied by the market participants in setting the price of the 
financial products, and such information is available to the Bank.  Where there is no 
open market price of derivative financial products available for reference, the fair value 
of individual foreign exchange contract and forward contract shall be estimated at the 
cash flow discounting method according to the foreign exchange rate displayed in 
Rueter’s quotation system with respect to the forward exchange rate on the date of 
maturity. 
The equity investment under equity method which refers to non-listed (OTC) companies 
will have no public market price available and the fair value thereof can be sought only 
at the price exceeding the reasonable cost.  Therefore, there is no fair value which may 
be relied on.Discount and loans, and deposits, are all financial products with interest 
accruing thereon.  Therefore, their book value is similar to the current fair value.The 
book value of receivables on demand refers to the projected collected amount less 
allowance for bad debt.  Therefore, the book value is also the fair value. 
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The financial assets at cost which are non-listed (OTC) stocks without significant 
influence shall be based at cost purusant to the “Rules Govening the Preparation of 
Financial Statements of Public Issued Banks� and will have no public market price 
available, and the fair value thereof can be sought only at the price exceeding the 
reasonable cost.  Therefore, the fair value thereof shall be the book value. 

The Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value determined by the open 
market quotation and evaluated unde evaluation method: 

 
 Determined by open market quotation Evaluated under evaluation method 

 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

Financial assets     
Financial instruments at fair value 

through income statement 
$ 816,432 $ 711,603 $ - $ - 

Financial instruments held to 
maturity 

 11,155,161 6,885,799  -   

Other financial assets  -   211,549 158,934 
     
Financial liabilities     
Financial liabilities at fair value 

through income statement 
270 382    - 

Payable financial bonds 2,399,532       

 
The financial assets recognized in December 31, 2007 and 2006 based on the changes in fair 
value estimated under interest rate changes were NT$78,998,383 thousand NT$87,215,761 
thousand, and the financial liabilities NT$70,611,247 thousand and NT$70,209,730 thousand.  
The financial assets recognized based on changes in cash flow estimated under interest rate 
changes were NT$164,133,249 thousand and NT$148,197,530 thousand, and the financial 
liabilities NT$168,888,306 thousand and NT$168,740,705 thousand. 
The total interest revenues of financial assets or financial liabilities other than those at fair 
value, and those at fair value through income statement, in 2007 and 2006 were 
NT$8,792,105 thousand NT$8,310,786 thousand.  The total interest expenses thereof were 
NT$3,460,373 thousand and NT$3,272,322 thousand. 
 
Information abou financial risk 
 
1. Market Risk 

The fair value of the bonds, notes and loans and similar financial products held by the 
Bank will vary depending on the changes in the market interest rate on the balance sheet 
date.  The analysis about sensitivity of fair value of such financial products per 
increase of 0.01% in the market interest rate is specified as following: 
 

 December 31, 2007 

Currency 
Less than one 

month 

More than one 
month and 

less than three 
months 

More than  
three months 
and less than 
six months 

More than  
six months 

and less than 
one year 

More than one 
year and less 
than seven 

years 
More than 
seven years Total 

NTD ($ 2,512) $ 8,411 ($ 10,087) ($ 615) $ 1,856 $ 2,497 ($ 450) 
USD ( 288)  41  208  7  70  698  736 
Others ( 161)  4  14  24  -  - ( 119) 

 
The Bank adopted the Standard Method to evaluate the market risk of financial products 
to estimate the potential risk for loss in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet due to 
the uncertain chanages in the market price of value of the financial products within 



163 

some period.The Bank’s market risk evaluation covered interest rate risk, equity 
securities risk and foreign exchange risk.  The following indicates the risk value 
subject to the various types of market risk of the Bank’s financial products, including 
the yearly maximum and minimum means adopted from the means of the total risk 
values of the year preceding to December 31, 2007 and 2006 respectively.  
 

 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

Type Yearly mean Maximum Minimum Yearly mean Maximum Minimum 

Interest rate 
risk 

$ 81,423 $ 163,615 $ 21,994 $ 22,607 $ 271,284 $ - 

Equity risk  119,023  209,228  1,674  65,653  113,053  169 
Exchange 

risk 
 8,308  17,840  1,126  6,956  21,612  1,182 

 
Credit Risk 
 

The financial products held or issued by the Bank might suffer loss due to the 
trading counterpart’s or the other party’s failure to perform the contractual 
obligations.The Bank will evaluate the credit carefully to grant loans, loan commitments 
and gurarantees.  The loans secured by collaterals accounted for about 78% of the total 
credit loans on December 31, 2007.The proportion of financing guarantee and 
collaterals held by commercial L/C was 17% approximately, because the collaterals 
required by loans, loaning commitments or gurarantees usually referred to cash, 
inventory, marketable securities or other property.In the event of the trading 
counterpart’s or the other party’s default, the Bank was entitled to perform compulsory 
execution against the collaterals or other guarantees to effectively reduce the credit risk, 
provided that the fair value of collaterals would not be taken into consideration when 
the maximum credit exposure was disclosed.The Bank evaluated the contract bearing 
the positive fair value on the balance sheet date as the counterpart.  The maximum 
credit exposures on December 31, 2007 and 2006 were NT$163,663,230 thousand and 
NT$153,886,167 thousand.  Further, the maximum exposures of undertakings and 
contracts based on credit risk on the off-balance sheet are specified as following: 
 

 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Credit commitment (exclusive of credit 

cards) 
$ 24,693,629 $ 23,422,100 

Credit card commitments  7,495,347  8,387,820 
 

Where the financial products transactions are apparently concentrated on one 
person, or most of the multiple trading counterparts of financial products are engaged in 
the similar business activities and possess the similar economic characteristics and 
thereby the effects of economic or other conditions to their ability to perform the 
contracts are similar, the concentration of credit risk arises accordingly.The 
characteristics of credit risk concentration include the nature of business activities 
conducted by debtors.The Bank did not concentrate any transactions on one single 
customer or trading counterpart, other than similar counterparts, industrial type and 
regions.The amount of contract based on concentrated credit risk: 



164 

 

Counterpart 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Natural person $ 113,956,489 $ 121,982,250 
Private enterprise  80,112,939  64,802,228 
Governmental authority  711,302  1,201,737 
Others  2,380,700  2,123,260 
 $ 197,161,430 $ 190,109,475 
 

Industrial type 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Private party $ 113,956,489 $ 121,982,250 
Manufacturer  30,385,711  26,075,650 
Commerce  21,287,103  14,245,796 
Commercial and industrial 
service business 

 9,621,359  7,833,279 

Others  21,910,768  19,972,500 
 $ 197,161,430 $ 190,109,475 
 

Region 
December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Domestic $ 195,623,251 $ 189,059,137 
Territory of America  659,327  450,219 
Other territories  878,852  600,119 
 $ 197,161,430 $ 190,109,475 
 
Liquidity Risk: 
 

The Bank's liquidity reserve rates on December 31, 2007 and 2006 were 15% and 
16%.   The Bank’s capital and working fund are sufficient to perform all contractual 
obligations.  Therefore, there is no liquidity risk arising from the failure to raise funds 
to perform contractual obligations.It is very unlikely that the derivative financial 
products held by the Bank cannot be sold at the reasonable price on the market.  
Therefore, there is low liquidity risk for realization. 

The Bank’s basic management policy is to coordinate the maturity date of assets 
and liabilities and interest rates and to control the gaps.  Due to the uncertainty in 
trading terms and different types, usually it is impossible to coordinate the maturity date 
of assets and liabilities and interest rates perfectly.  The gaps might generate potential 
gain or loss.The Bank applied the appropriate approach to conduct the maturity analysis 
to evaluate the liquidity by nature of assets and liabilities.  The maturity analysis is 
specified as following: 
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Currency: NTD 1,000 

 December 31, 2007 

 
Less than one 

month 

More than one 
month and less 

than three 
months 

More than  
three months and 

less than six 
months 

More than  six 
months and less 

than one year 

More than one 
year and less 

than seven years 
More than seven 

years Total 

Assets        
Cash and cash equivalent $ 4,197,402 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,197,402 
Decrease in nostro accounts 

and call loans to banks 
 24,983,502  7,300,000  11,400,000  32,443  -  -  43,715,945 

Financial instruments at fair 
value through income 
statement 

 -  61,419  755,013  -  -  -  816,432 

Account receivables  1,519,127  171,353  153,748  157,109  144,294  -  2,145,631 
Discount and loans  11,189,227  12,516,848  23,287,701  39,939,726  43,753,977  64,195,464  194,882,943 
Financial instruments held 

to maturity 
 74,777  69,428  103,558  600,473  10,500,543  98,170  11,446,949 

Equity investment under 
equity method 

 -  -  -  -  104,354  -  104,354 

Other financial assets  -  -  -  -  211,549  -  211,549 
Total assets  41,964,035  20,119,048  35,700,020  40,729,751  54,714,717  64,293,634  257,521,205 
        
Liabilities        
Vostro accounts  304,684  383,781  767,940  1,712,244  -  -  3,168,649 
Financial liabilities at fair 

value through income 
statement 

 -  267  3  -  -  -  270 

Payables  1,944,000  121,273  418,019  78,159  126,646  -  2,688,097 
Deposits and remittances  32,061,962  29,646,810  37,336,634  58,915,105  79,871,127  -  237,831,638 
Payable financial bonds  -  -  -  -  2,400,000  -  2,400,000 
Other financial liabilities  45  -  -  -  -  -  45 
Total liabilities  34,310,691  30,152,131  38,522,596  60,705,508  82,397,773  -  246,088,699 
Net liquidity gap $ 7,653,344 ($ 10,033,083) ($ 2,822,576) ($ 19,975,757) ($ 27,683,056) $ 64,293,634 $ 11,432,506 
 

Currency: NTD 1,000 

 December 31, 2006 

 
Less than one 

month 

More than one 
month and less 

than three 
months 

More than  
three months and 

less than six 
months 

More than  six 
months and less 

than one year 

More than one 
year and less 

than seven years 
More than seven 

years Total 

Assets        
Cash and cash equivalent $ 8,189,088 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 8,189,088 
Decrease in nostro accounts 

and call loans to banks 
 23,200,862  10,100,000  13,000,000  -  -  -  46,300,862 

Financial instruments at fair 
value through income 
statement 

 -  19,546  -  692,057  -  -  711,603 

Account receivables  700,327  976,831  128,897  117,499  277,521  17,074  2,218,149 
Discount and loans  11,479,558  11,414,929  20,453,321  38,740,910  43,277,478  62,758,760  188,124,956 
Financial instruments held 

to maturity 
 450,211  133,511  81,816  742,735  5,364,388  275,966  7,048,627 

Equity investment under 
equity method 

 -  -  -  -  48,412  -  48,412 

Other financial assets  8,756  -  -  -  158,849  -  167,605 
Total assets  44,028,802  22,644,817  33,664,034  40,293,201  49,126,648  63,051,800  252,809,302 
        
Liabilities        
Vostro accounts  250,544  388,221  934,919  1,741,884  -  -  3,315,568 
Financial liabilities at fair 

value through income 
statement 

 -  382  -  -  -  -  382 

RO bond liabilities  808,000  40,061  -  -  -  -  848,061 
Payables  5,484,836  109,704  479,096  282,667  114,160  -  6,470,463 
Deposits and remittances  33,705,843  29,144,586  37,975,483  61,345,522  77,628,623  -  239,800,057 
Other financial liabilities  93  -  -  -  -  -  93 
Total liabilities  40,249,316  29,682,954  39,389,498  63,370,073  77,742,783  -  250,434,624 
Net liquidity gap $ 3,779,486 ($ 7,038,137) ($ 5,725,464) ($ 23,076,872) ($ 28,616,135) $ 63,051,800 $ 2,374,678 
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4. Cash flow risk estimated under interest rate changes 
 
The future cash flow of assets or liabilities estimated based on mobile interest rate held 
or borne by the Bank might fluctuate and even generate risk due to the market interest 
rate changes.  However, upon evaluation, the Bank, in practice, tends to control the net 
liquidity gap to reduce the cash flow risk resulting from the interest rate changes.  

 
Risk control and hedging strategies 
 

The Bank has defined the risk management policy in writing, covering the entire 
operating strategies and risk management philosophy.The overall risk management plan is to 
minimize the potential effect harmful to the Bank’s business performance.  The Board has 
approved the written overall risk management policy and the written policies towards specific 
risk (e.g. credit risk, market risk, operation risk, liquidity risk and country risk, et al.)The 
Board is the supreme risk management entity, and will review the written policies and actual 
status to ensure that the risk management policies are executed precisely. 

The Bank has established Risk Management Committee and Risk Management 
Department responsible for granting the risk authority and the relevant authorities to the 
relevant departments to ensure the successful operation of risk management.A Vice President 
shall be appointed as the Secretary General of the Risk Management Committee by the 
President under the authorization of the Board.  The Committee’s functions are specified as 
following: 

Review of risk management projects 
Measure the various risk management scopes 
Review of motions for institutionalization of risk management 
Perodical report to the Board 
The commissioners of Risk Management Committee shall set the various risk 

management indicators by nature of business and functions of departments and report them to 
Risk Management Committee for high-ranking supervisors’ reference to make any decision. 
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Capital Adequacy 
 

Currency: NTD 1,000 
  December 31, 

2007 
December 31, 

2006 
Tier I Capital 15,424,075 8,221,328 
Tier II Capital 2,749,457 94,966 
Tier III Capital  - - 

Capital 
Stock 

Capital Stock 18,173,532 8,316,294 
Standard Method 163,663,230 
Internal Rating Method - 

Credit 
Risk 

Asset Securitization - 

 
153,886,167 

Basic Index Method 10,339,825  
Standard method/optional 
standard method 

- - 
Operation 
risk 

Advanced Assessment -  
Standard Method 2,480,213 Market 

Risk Internal Model - 
1,468,487 

Weighed 
average 
risk-based 
assets 

Total weighed average risk-based 
assets 

176,483,268 155,354,654 

Capital adequacy rate 10.30 5.35 
Proportion of Tier I capital to risk assets 8.74 5.29 
Proportion of Tier II capital to risk assets 1.56 0.06 
Proportion of Tier III capital to risk assets - - 
Proportion of Tier III capital to risk assets 4.97 5.93 

 
Note 1: The capital stock and the amount of weighed average risk assets shall be filled in as 

required in “Regulation for Banks in the Management of Capital Adequacy”, and 
“Explanation and Forms for the Calculation of Capital Stocks and Risk Assets by 
Banks”. 

Note 2: The annual financial statement shall specify the capital adequacy rates for the current 
period and previous period.  The semiannual financial statement shall also disclose 
the capital adequacy rate at the end of the previous year, in addition to those for the 
current period and previous period. 

Note 3: Equations for financial analysis: 
Capital Stock = Tier I Capital + Tier II Capital + Tier III Capital 
Total amount of weighed average risk assets = credit risk weighed average risk-based 
assets + allowance of (operation risk + market risk) x 12.5. 
Capital Adequacy rate = capital stock/ total amount of weighed average risk-based 
assets. 
Proportion of Tier I Capital to Risk Assets = Tier I Capital / Total amount of weighed 
average risk-based assets 
Proportion of Tier II Capital to Risk Assets = Tier II Capital / Total amount of 
weighed average risk-based assets 
Proportion of Tier III Capital to Risk Assets = Tier III Capital / Total amount of 
weighed average risk-based assets 
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Proportion of capital stock in common shares to total assets = capital stock in 
common shares/ total assets 

 
Mean and average interest rate of assets and liabilities with interest 
 

The mean shall be estimated based on the daily average value of the assets and 
liabilities with interest. 

 

 
2007 

December 31, 2007 

 Mean Average interest rate 
Assets   
Vostro accounts $ 476,264 2.40% 
Nostro accounts  37,743,806 1.66% 
Call loans to banks  2,775,971 2.74% 
Accounts receivable  486,445 11.67% 
Discount and loans  191,342,700 3.78% 
Financial instruments held to maturity  10,778,352 5.95% 
   
Liabilities   
Vostro accounts  3,183,097 2.28% 
Call loans to banks  512,434 2.12% 
RP and bonds liabilities  868,474 1.81% 
Current deposits  98,540,782 0.41% 
Time deposits and saving deposits  134,173,543 2.20% 
Payable financial bonds  72,329 3.50% 

 

 2006 

 Mean Average interest rate 
Assets   
Vostro accounts $ 515,061 1.89% 
Nostro accounts  39,108,414 1.50% 
Call loans to banks  3,963,448 2.84% 
RS bills and bonds investment  27,848 1.40% 
Receivable credit card loans  626,245 13.29% 
Discount and loans  186,409,502 3.77% 
Financial instruments held to maturity  8,840,891 4.04% 
   
Liabilities   
Vostro accounts $ 3,615,768 2.26% 
Call loans to banks  605,616 1.68% 
RP bills and bonds liabilities  2,811,367 1.45% 
Current deposits  92,216,332 0.46% 
Time deposits and saving deposits  138,078,623 1.97% 
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Information to be disclosed in a bank’s financial statement pursuant to the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 28 
 
Asset quality 
 

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 
Item 

 
Type  

NPL amount 
(note 1) Total loans NPL rate 

(note 2) 
Allowance 
for bad debt 

Allowance 
for bad date 

coverage 
rate (note 3) 

NPL amount 
(note 1) Total loans NPL rate 

(note 2) 
Allowance 
for bad debt 

Allowance 
for bad date 

coverage 
rate (note 3) 

Secured 634,562 53,115,434 1.19% 370,743 58.43% 788,846 43,018,480 1.83% 354,459 44.93% Corporate 
banking Non-secured 781,601 25,146,253 3.11% 732,025 93.66% 312,545 20,911,388 1.49% 189,999 60.79% 

Residential mortgage 
loans (note 4) 576,665 47,752,972 1.21% 226,229 39.23% 669,154 51,991,238 1.29% 179,452 26.82% 

Cash card - 210,401 - 31,418 - 1,722 510,886 0.34% 125,590 7,293.26% 
Small credit loans (note 

5) 526,856 3,641,106 14.47% 569,908 108.17% 351,928 5,334,673 6.60% 428,464 121.75% 

Secured 616,753 53,772,538 1.15% 280,050 45.41% 945,725 54,965,048 1.72% 349,405 36.95% 

Consumer 
banking 

Others 
(note 6) Non-secured 216,751 11,244,239 1.93% 203,621 93.94% 165,490 11,393,243 1.45% 147,694 89.25% 

Total loans 3,353,188 194,882,943 1.72% 2,413,994 71.99% 3,235,410 188,124,956 1.72% 1,775,063 54.86% 

 
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

Item 
 
Type  NPL amount 

Balance of 
receivable 
accounts 

NPL rate Allowance 
for bad debt 

Allowance 
for bad date 

coverage 
rate 

NPL amount 
Balance of 
receivable 
accounts 

NPL rate Allowance 
for bad debt 

Allowance 
for bad date 

coverage 
rate 

Credit card 4,605 448,689 1.03% 4,699 102.04% 8,671 538,315 1.61% 11,119 128.23% 
Factoring without recourse (note 7) - - - - - - - - - - 
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Note 1: The NPL amount is recognized according to “Regulations Governing the Procedures 
for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-performing 
Non-accrual Loans”.  The credit card NPL is recognized based on that provided 
under the Letter Ching-Kuan-Ying- -Tze No. 0944000378 dated July 6, 2005. 

Note 2: NPL rate=NPL/total loans; Credit card NPL rate=NPL/balance of receivable 
accounts 

Note 3: Allowance for bad debt coverage rate=allowance for bad debt provided for 
loans/NPL amount; allowance for bad debt coverage rate for receivable accounts of 
credit cards=allowance for bad debt provided for receivable accounts of credit 
cards/NPL amount 

Note 4: Borrowers apply for residential mortgage loans for the purpose of purchasing or 
buiding residence or decorating house.  The loans shall be secured by the residence 
purchased (owned) by the borrower himself/herself, or his/her spouse or minor 
children in full, and the mortgage shall be pledged to the financial institution. 

Note 5: Small credit loans mean those provided in the Letter under Ching-Kuan-Ying-  -Tze 
NO. 09440010950 dated December 19, 2005 and those other than small loans by 
credit cards/cash cards. 

Note 6: “Others” for consumer banking refer to the secured or non-secured consumer loans 
other than “residential mortgage loans”, “cash card loans” and “small credit loans”, 
exclusive of credit cards loans. 

Note 7: According to the Letter under Ching-Kuan-Ying-  -Tze No. 094000494 dated July 
19, 2005, the factoring without recourse shall be recognized as NPL within three 
months after the factoring underwriter or insurance company confirms that no 
compensation should be granted. 
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Status of credit risk concentration 
 

December 31, 2007 
Currency: NTD 1,000 

Rank  
(note 1) Name of Enterprise (note 2) 

Balance of total 
credit extension 

(note 3) 

Proportion to net 
worth in the current 

period (%) 

1 Vedan Group 1,178,742 7.44 

2 Powerchip Semiconductor Group 773,420 4.88 

3 EVA Air Group 750,000 4.73 

4 Yuyuan Group 717,805 4.53 

5 Ruentex Group 640,611 4.04 

6 Kang Cheng Assets Management 
Group 609,800 3.85 

7 Nai Long Industrial Group 561,032 3.54 

8 ELAN Steel Group 549,603 3.47 

9 Shangrila Group 505,818 3.19 

10 Ching Feng Home Group 438,761 2.77 

 
December 31, 2006 

Currency: NTD 1,000 

Rank 
(note 1) Name of Enterprise (note 2) 

Balance of total 
credit extension 

(note 3) 

Proportion to net 
worth in the current 

period (%) 

1 Ruentex Group 1,371,054 16.47 

2 EVA Air Group 900,000 10.81 

3 Durban Construction Group 812,755 9.76 

4 Vedan Group 797,896 9.58 

5 ELAN Steel Group 792,131 9.52 

6 Yuyuan Group 729,768 8.77 

7 President Group 537,622 6.46 

8 Shangrila Group 531,713 6.39 

9 Nai Long Industrial Group 496,419 5.96 

10 Ching Feng Home Group 425,889 5.12 

 
Note 1: The top ten enterprises other than public or state enterprises according to the rank of 

the balance in credit extension to enterprises. 
Note 2: The enterprises mean those defined in Article 6 of “Supplementary Rules of TSEC’s 

Criteria for Reviewing Listing of Marketable Securities”. 
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Note 3: The balance of total credit extension means the total balance of the various loans 
(including import negotiation, export negotiation, discount, overdraft, short-term 
loans, short-term guarantee, receivable securities financing, mid-term loans, 
mid-term guarantee, long-term loans, long-term guarantee, receivables on demand), 
inward remittances, factoring without recourse, receivable acceptances and 
gurarantee payments. 

 
(3) Information about interest rate sensitivity 
 

Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities analysis data (NTD) 
December 31, 2007 

Currency: NTD 1,000 

Item 1 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 181 days to 1 
year Over 1year Total 

Interest rate sensitivity 
assets 132,909,089 20,291,782 24,680,676 49,304,812 227,186,359 

Interest rate sensitivity 
liabilities 80,825,326 114,255,171 30,833,769 5,775,759 231,690,025 

Interest rate sensitivity 
gap 52,083,763 (93,963,389) (6,153,093) 43,529,053 (4,503,666) 

Net worth 15,851,604 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities rate 98.06 
Interest rate sensitivity gap and net worth rate (28.41) 

 
December 31, 2006 

Currency: NTD 1,000 

Item 1 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 181 days to 1 
year Over 1year Total 

Interest rate sensitivity 
assets 159,832,350 15,058,851 3,068,083 42,431,981 220,391,265 

Interest rate sensitivity 
liabilities 85,311,431 113,228,591 30,233,760 3,859,880 232,633,662 

Interest rate sensitivity 
gap 74,520,919 (98,169,740) (27,165,677) 38,572,101 (12,242,397) 

Net worth 8,324,959 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities rate 94.74 
Interest rate sensitivity gap and net worth rate (147.06) 

 
Note: The table specifies the amount in NTD (exclusive of foreign currencies) of Head 

Office and offshore/local branches. 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities mean the assets and liabilities with 
interest of which the income or cost varies depending on the interest rate. 
Interest rate sensitivity gap=Interest rate sensitivity assets - Interest rate sensitivity 
liabilities 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities rate=interest rate sensitivity 
assets÷interest rate sensitivity liabilities (i.e. interest rate sensitivity assets and 
interest rate sensitivity liabilities in NTD) 



173 

Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities analysis data (USD) 
December 31, 2007 

Currency: in USD 1,000 

Item 1 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 181 days to 1 
year Over 1year Total 

Interest rate sensitivity 
assets 79,182 85,467 15,224 250,187 430,060 

Interest rate sensitivity 
liabilities 89,173 76,195 10,066 - 175,434 

Interest rate sensitivity 
gap (9,991) 9,272 5,158 250,187 254,626 

Net worth 488,599 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities rate 245.14 
Interest rate sensitivity gap and net worth rate 52.11 

 
December 31, 2006 

Currency: in USD 1,000 

Item 1 to 90 days 91 to 180 days 181 days to 1 
year Over 1year Total 

Interest rate sensitivity 
assets 90,152 66,661 10,672 92,082 259,567 

Interest rate sensitivity 
liabilities 165,025 14,960 12,921 - 192,906 

Interest rate sensitivity 
gap (74,873) 51,701 (2,249) 92,082 66,661 

Net worth 255,398 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities rate 134.56 
Interest rate sensitivity gap and net worth rate 26.10 

 
Note: The table specifies the total amount in USD of Head Office and local branches, 

International Banking Branch and offshore branches, exclusive of contingent assets 
or liabilities. 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities mean the assets and liabilities with 
interest of which the income or cost varies depending on the interest rate. 
Interest rate sensitivity gap=Interest rate sensitivity assets - Interest rate sensitivity 
liabilities 
Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities rate=interest rate sensitivity 
assets÷interest rate sensitivity liabilities (i.e. interest rate sensitivity assets and 
interest rate sensitivity liabilities in USD) 



174 

(4) Profitability 
Unit: % 

Item December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 
Before taxation 0.81 (2.21) 

ROA 
After taxation 0.68 (1.81) 

Before taxation 17.40 (53.84) Return of net 
worth After taxation 14.70 (44.05) 

Net profit (loss) rate (%) 29.11 (5,229.82) 

 
Note: ROA=income before (after) taxation�average assets 

Return of net worth=income before (after) taxation�average net worth 

Net profit (loss) rate = income after taxation�net income 

Income before (after) taxation means the income accumulated from January of 
the current year until the current quarter. 
Analysis on maturity of assets and liabilities  
 

Analysis of maturity structure of NTD 
December 31, 2007 

Currency: NTD 1,000 
Remaining balance to maturity 

Total 
1 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 1 

year 
More than 1 

year 
Primary capital 
inflow upon maturity 321,521,675 38,084,535 18,859,126 38,552,881 42,553,547 183,471,586 

Primary capital 
outflow upon 
maturity  

346,290,178 32,189,443 28,715,412 34,666,570 82,940,343 167,778,410 

Interval gap (24,768,503) 5,895,092 (9,856,286) 3,886,311 (40,386,796) 15,693,176 

 
December 31, 2006 

Currency: NTD 1,000 
Remaining balance to maturity 

Total 
1 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 1 

year 
More than 1 

year 
Primary capital 
inflow upon maturity 326,268,000 40,334,000 21,467,000 31,722,000 39,451,000 193,294,000 

Primary capital 
outflow upon 
maturity  

346,386,000 30,324,000 28,900,000 38,446,000 85,207,000 163,509,000 

Interval gap (20,118,000) 10,010,000 (7,433,000) (6,724,000) (45,756,000) 29,785,000 

 
Note: The table only specifies the amount in NTD (exclusive of foreign currencies) of 

Head Office and local branches. 
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Analysis of the maturity structure of USD 
December 31, 2007 

Currency: in USD 1,000 
Remaining balance to maturity 

Total 
1 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 1 

year 
More than 1 

year 
Primary capital 
inflow upon maturity 490,795 82,994 50,830 91,419 15,365 250,187 

Primary capital 
outflow upon 
maturity  

456,259 108,552 39,668 256,762 51,277 - 

Interval gap 34,536 (25,558) 11,162 (165,343) (35,912) 250,187 

 
December 31, 2006 

Currency: in USD 1,000 
Remaining balance to maturity 

Total 
1 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 

days 
181 days to 1 

year 
More than 1 

year 
Primary capital 
inflow upon maturity 276,962 71,262 34,940 68,006 10,672 92,082 

Primary capital 
outflow upon 
maturity  

202,018 152,413 20,109 16,493 13,003 - 

Interval gap 74,944 (81,151) 14,831 51,513 (2,331) 92,082 

 
Note: The table specifies the total amount in USD of Head Office, local branches and 

International Banking Branch.  Unless otherwise provided, it shall be stated at the 
book value, and it is not necessary to include any accounts that are not stated into the 
table (e.g. negotiable certificates of deposit, bonds or stocks scheduled to be issued) 
Where assets account for more than 10% of the Bank’s total assets, it is necessary to 
provide supplementary disclosure. 

 
Notes of disclosure 
 
Information about important transactions: 
 
Information to be disclosed pursuant to Article 16 of the “Rules Govening the Preparation of 
Financial Statements of Public Issued Banks”: 
 

No. Item Remark 

1 Cumulative amount of the stock of the same investee purchased or sold 
reaching 300 million NTD or more than 10% of the paid-in capital None 

2 Acquisition amount of real estate reaching 300 million NTD or more than 
10% of the paid-in capital None 

3 Amount on disposal of real estate reaching 300 million NTD or more than 
10% of the paid-in capital None 

 
(Continued on next page) 
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(Continued from previous page) 
 

No. Item Remark 

4 Discount of service charges in transaction with related party reaching 
more than 5 million NTD None 

5 Accounts receivable-related party reaching 300 million NTD or more than 
10% of the paid-in capital None 

6 Information about sale of NPL Attached 
table 1 

7 Securitization of financial assets or real estate None 

8 Other important transactions sufficient to affect the policy to use financial 
statements None 

 
Information about investees: 
 

No. Item Remark 

1 Information about investees and total shareholdings Attached 
table 2 

2 Loans to others None 

3 Endorsements/gurarantees to others None 

4 Marketable securities - end None 

5 Cumulative amount of the same marketable securities purchased or sold 
reaching 300 million NTD or more than 10% of the paid-in capital None 

6 Acquisition amount of real estate reaching 300 million NTD or more than 
10% of the paid-in capital None 

7 Amount on disposal of real estate reaching 300 million NTD or more than 
10% of the paid-in capital None 

8 Discount of service charges in transaction with related party reaching 
more than 5 million NTD None 

9 Accounts receivable-related party reaching 300 million NTD or more than 
10% of the paid-in capital None 

10 Information about sale of NPL None 

11 Securitization of financial assets or real estate None 

12 Information about transactions of derivative products� None 

13 Other important transactions sufficient to affect the policy to use financial 
statements None 

 
Note: No disclosure of such information is required, if the investee is the financial business, 

insurance business and securities business. 
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Financial information by department 
 

The Bank is a financial business, primarily engaged in the business permitted to a 
commercial bank under Banking Act, turst business, offshore banking business and other 
business authorized by the competent authority.  Therefore, it is a single industrial entity.  
Besides, the financial business does not have any specific counterparts; therefore, there are 
not any important customers from whom the revenue accounts for more than 10% of the total 
revenue.  Further, since the Bank has not yet established branches offshore, there is no 
information by geographic region. 
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Attached table 1 Information about sale of NPL: 
 
Summarization of sale of NPL 
 

December 31, 2007 
Currency: NTD 1,000 

Date of 
trading 

Trading 
counterpart 

Contents 
of credit 
(note 1) 

Book value 
(note 2) 

Selling 
price 

Income on 
disposal 
(note 3) 

Contingent 
conditions 

(note 4) 

Affiliation between 
trading counteprat 
and the Bank (note 

5) 

96.01.04 

Ming Yao Asia 
International 

Assets 
Management 

Co., Ltd. (BVI) 

Secured 
corporate 

loans (note 
6) 

- 89,054 - None None 

 
Note: With respect to the contents of credit, please specify the type of credit, e.g. credit 

cards, cash cards, residential mortgage loans and receivable accounts, et al. 
Note: The book value is the balance after the loans less allowance for bad debt. 
Note: The proceeds from sale of NPL are stated as the reversal of allowance for bad debt. 
Note: Please disclose the contingent conditions, if any, e.g. profit sharing conditions, RP or 

RS. 
Note: Please specify the affiliation according to the types of related party provided in the 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 6.  In the case of substantial 
related party, please specify the judgment basis for the affiliation. 

Note: The project was related to syndicated loans offered for tender by the sponsor of the 
syndicated loans, China Development Industrial Bank.  The loans to be allocated 
from the Bank accounted for 36.27% of the Bank’s credit, i.e. 3.92% of the total 
proceeds from the sale.  

The information about any single transaction for sale of NPL amounting to more than NT$1 
billion (exclusive of the sale to related parties), if any: None  
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Attached table 2 Information about investees: 
 

Currency: NTD 1,000; thousand shares; % 

Consolidated shareholding of the Bank and affiliated 
enterprises (note 1) 

Total Investor  Investee (note 1) Location Principal business 
Proportion of 

shareholding % - 
end  

Book valuye of 
investment 

Investment income 
recognized in the 

current period Quantity - 
current 

Scheduled 
quantity  
(note 2) Quantity Proportion 

Remarks 

Taichung 
Commercial 
Bank Co., Ltd. 

Taichung Commercial 
Bank Personal 
Insurance Agent 
Co., Ltd. 

Taichung City Agent of personal 
insurance 

99.00 $79,315 $66,721 594 - 594 99.00  

� Taichung Commercial 
Bank Property 
Insurance Agent 
Co., Ltd. 

Taichung City Agent of property 
insurance 

99.00 19,743 14,006 297 - 297 99.00  

� Taichung Commercial 
Bank Insurance 
Agent Co., Ltd. 

Taichung City Agent of personal and 
property insurance 

100.00 5,296 (704) 600 - 600 100.00  

 
Note 1: any current shares or scheduled shares held by the Bank, directors, supervisors, President, Vice President and investees that are defined as affiliated enterprises under the 

Company Law shall be included. 
Note 2: Scheduled shares mean the swapped shares under the assumption that the equity securities purchased or derivative product contract as concluded (not yet converted into 

equity) are converted according to the agreed trading conditions and the bank’s intent to linke with the equity of investee for the purpose of the reinvestment referred to in 
Article 74 of the Banking Act. 
Said “equity securities” mean the marketable securities, convertible corporate bonds and stock warrants provided in Paragraph 1 of Article 11 of the Enforcement Rules of 
Securities and Exchange Act. 
Said “derivative product contract” means those defined in the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, e.g. stock options. 

Note 3: This table may not disclosed in the financial statements for Q1 and the previous three quarters. 
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Appendix 2 
 

Stock Code: 2812 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

December 31, 2007 and 2006 
(Independent Accountants’ Audit Report included) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No. 87, Min Chuan Road, West District, Taichung 
Telephone: (04)222-36021 
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Statement of Declaration 
 

The companies to be included by the Bank into the consolidated financial statements of 
affiliates in accordance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, 
Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises�in 
2007 (from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 2007) are identical those to be included into the consolidated financial 
statements of parent company and subsidiaries prepared under Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 7 on “Consolidated Financial Statements”.  Besides, the information to be disclosed 
in the consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises has been disclosed in said 
consolidated financial statements of parent company and subsidaries.  Therefore, the Bank does 
not prepare the consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises separately.   
 
In witness thereof, the Declaration is hereby presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Company Name: Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
Responsible person: Hsui-Nan Huang 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: February 18, 2008 
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Independent Accountants’ Audit Report 
 
To: Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 
 

We have audited the accompanying conslidiated balance sheet of Taichung Commercial Bank 
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for 
the years then ended. Said financial statement is the responsibility of the Bank’s management.  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statement based on our 
audits. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidelines for Certified Public Accountants’ 
Examination and Reports on Financial Statements”, and generally accepted auditing standards in 
the Republic of China.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statement is free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes exanining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
consolidated financial statement presentation.We believe that our audit may provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as of December 
31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for years then ednded in 
conformity with the “Rules Govening the Preparation of Financial Statements fo Public Issued 
Banks”, Business Accounting Act, the relevant financial accounting requirements referred to in 
Business Accouting Guidelines and generally aceepted accounting principles in the Republic of 
China. 

As specified in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, as per the Executive Yuan 
Financial Supervisory Commission Letter Chin-Kuan-Cheng (VI) 0950146434 dated October 11, 
2006, the Bank has changed the accounting principles in the bookkeeping of disposal of 
non-performing credit from the previous amortization along a period of 60 months pursuant to 
Article 15 of the Mergers and Acquisitions of Financial Institutions Act to the writing off of the 
deferred balance of capital loss from disposal of non-performing credit in lump sum as of 
September 1, 2006. 

As stated in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Bank and its subsidiaries have 
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 34 on “Accounting principles for 
financial products” and No. 36 on “Expression and disclosure of financial products” as of Jan. 1, 
2006.  
 

Deloitte & Touche 
Wang Chi-Chun, CPA, Deloitte & Touche Lin Hsiun-Lien, CPA 

 
 
 
Securities and Futures Commission Approval No. 
Tai-Tsai-Cheng (VI) No. 0920123784 

Securities and Futures Commission Approval No. 
Tai-Tsai-Cheng (VI) No. 0920123784 

 
Date: February 18, 2008 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2007 and 2006 

Currency: NTD 1,000 

  December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

Change 
in 

percentag
e    December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

Change in 
percentag

e 
Code Assets Amount Amount (%)  Code Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity Amount Amount (%) 

11000 Cash and cash equivalents (note 4) $ 4,197,405 $ 8,189,094 ( 49)  21000 Vostro Accounts (note 13) $ 3,168,649 $ 3,315,568 ( 4) 
11500 Nostro Accounts and call loans to banks (note5)  43,715,945  46,300,862 ( 6)  22000 Financial liabilities at fair value through income 

statement (notes 2&6) 
 270  382 ( 29) 

12000 Financial assets at fair value through income 
statement (notes 2&6) 

 816,432  711,603  15  22500 R/P and bond liabilities (notes 2&14)  -  848,061 ( 100) 

13000 Receivables , net (notes 2, 7, 23)  2,133,025  2,197,675 ( 3)  23000 Payables (note 15)  2,723,665  6,484,440 ( 58) 
13500 Discount and loans , net (notes 2, 8 & 25)  192,468,949  186,349,893  3  23500 Deposits and remittances (notes 17&25)  237,703,593  239,738,912 ( 1) 
14500 Financial assets held to maturity , net (notes 

2&9) 
 11,346,949  7,048,627  61  24000 Payable financial bonds (note 17)  2,400,000  -  - 

15500 Other financial assets , net (notes 2&10)  211,549  158,934  33  25000 Accrued pension fund liabilities (notes 2&19)  292,480  232,979  26 
 Fixed assets , net (notes 2&11)     25500 Other financial liabilities (note 2)  45  93 ( 52) 
 Cost     29500 Other liabilities ( note 2&18)  421,947  467,680 ( 10) 
18501 Land  1,885,983  1,924,744 ( 2)  20000 Total liabilities  246,710,649  251,088,115 ( 2) 
18521 Housing and buildings  2,005,682  2,044,245 ( 2)   Shareholders’ equity of parent (note 20)    
18541 Transportation equipment  44,359  45,042 ( 2)  31000 Capital stocks  13,040,880  15,380,144 ( 15) 
18551 Miscellaneous equipment  1,108,166  1,255,714 ( 12)  31500 Capital surplus  750,000  -  - 
18581 Lease assets  212  212  -  32000 Unallocated earnings (loss to be covered)  1,776,645 ( 7,055,185)  125 
 Total cost  5,044,402  5,269,957 ( 4)  32501 Unrealized appreciations  284,079  -  - 
 Appreciations  619,176  652,602 ( 5)  39000 Total shareholders’ equity of parent  15,851,604  8,324,959  90 
 Less: accumulated depreciation ( 1,773,533) ( 1,874,104) ( 5)  38101 Minority equity  1,001  490  104 
 Less: accumulated impairment ( 122,000) ( 150,000) ( 19)  30000 Total shareholders’ equity  15,852,605  8,325,449  90 
18571 Works in process  283  -  -       
18575 Prepayments for purchase of equipment  4,148  1,049  295       
18500 Net  3,772,476  3,899,504 ( 3)       
19500 Other assets (notes 2, 12, 19&23)  3,900,524  4,557,372 ( 14)       
10000 Total assets $ 262,563,254 $ 259,413,564  1   Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 262,563,254 $ 259,413,564  1 

 

The notes attached shall constitute an integral part of this financial statement 

(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 28, 2008) 

 

Chairman:Hsui-Nan Huang Manager: Yuh-Eing Chung Chief Accountant: Shu-Chen Chen 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Income Statement 

January 1 to December 31, 2007 and 2006  
 

Currency: in NTD 1,000, provided that loss per share is in NTD 
 

  2007 2006 
Code  Amount Amount 

Change in 
percentage 

41000 Interest income (notes 2&25) $ 8,792,105 $ 8,310,786  6 
51000 Interest expenses (notes 2&25) ( 3,460,280) ( 3,272,268)  6 
 Net interest income  5,331,825  5,038,518  6 
 Net income (loss) other than interest    
49100 Net income from service charges (note 21)  892,892  411,349  117 
49200 Net income (loss) from financial assets at fair 

value through income statement (note 2) 
 150,985 ( 23,518)  742 

49600 Exchange income (loss)-net (note 2) ( 48,758)  66,152 ( 174) 
49700 Reverse gain from asset impairment (loss) 

(notes 2, 9, 11&12) 
( 149,213)  233,455 ( 164) 

58021 Amortization of deferred loss from disposal 
of non-performing credit (note 3) 

 - ( 5,666,266)  100 

58023 Net loss from disposal of pledged collaterals ( 47,711) ( 138,649) ( 66) 
48000 Non-interest net gain (note 2)  19,443  8,457  130 
 Net gain (loss)  6,149,463 ( 70,502)  8,822 
51500 Bad debt expenses (note 2) ( 985,969) ( 2,903,319) ( 66) 
 Operating expenses (note 22)    
58500 HR expenses ( 1,985,472) ( 1,773,958)  12 
59000 Depreciation and amortization expenses ( 177,326) ( 189,675) ( 7) 
59500 Other business and administrative expenses ( 868,239) ( 800,055)  9 
 Total operating expenses ( 3,031,037) ( 2,763,688)  10 
     

 
(Continued on next page) 
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  2007 2006 
Code  Amount Amount 

Change in 
percentage 

61001 Earnings (loss) before taxation $ 2,132,457 ($ 5,737,509)  137 
61003 Income tax gain (expense) (notes 2&23) ( 354,996)  1,035,277 ( 134) 
69000 Income-current period $ 1,777,461 ($ 4,702,232)  138 
 Attributable to:    
69901 Shareholders of parent  1,776,645 ($ 4,702,547)  138 
69903 Minority equity  816  315  159 
69900  $ 1,777,461 ($ 4,702,232)  138 

 

Code  
Before 

taxation After taxation 
Before 

taxation After taxation 

69500 EPS (loss per share)(note 24) $ 1.77 $ 1.50 ($ 7.15) ($ 5.85) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes attached shall constitute an integral part of this financial statement 
(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 

28, 2008) 
 

Chairman:  
Hsui-Nan Huang 

Manager:  
Yuh-Eing Chung 

Chief Accountant:  
Shu-Chen Chen 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 

January 1 to December 31, 2007 and 2006  
Currency: NTD 1,000 

 

 Shareholders equity of parent   

  Capital surplus 
Retained 
earnings     

 Capital stocks Share premium 

Unallocated 
earnings (loss 
to be covered) 

Unrealized 
appreciations 

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity of parent Minority equity 

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 
Balance as of January 1, 2006 $ 15,380,144 $ - ($ 2,513,090) $ 160,452 $ 13,027,506 $ 581 $ 13,028,087 
Unrealized asset appreciation to cover loss  -  -  160,452 ( 160,452)  -  -  - 
Effect of changes in minority shareholders’ 

equity of subsidiaries 
 -  -  -  -  - ( 406) ( 406) 

Consolidated loss in 2006  -  - ( 4,702,547)  - ( 4,702,547)  315 ( 4,702,232) 
Balance as of December 31, 2006  15,380,144  - ( 7,055,185)  -  8,324,959  490  8,325,449 
Capital reduction to cover loss ( 7,339,264)  -  7,339,264  -  -  -  - 
Capital from new shares  5,000,000  750,000  -  -  5,750,000  -  5,750,000 
Recovery of unrealized asset appreciation  -  - ( 284,079)  284,079  -  -  - 
Effect of changes in minority shareholders’ 

equity of subsidiaries 
 -  -  -  -  - ( 305) ( 305) 

Consolidated loss in 2007  -  -  1,776,645  -  1,776,645  816  1,777,461 
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ 13,040,880 $ 750,000 $ 1,776,645 $ 284,079 $ 15,851,604 $ 1,001 $ 15,852,605 
 

The notes attached shall constitute an integral part of this financial statement 
(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 28, 2008) 

 

Chairman:Hsui-Nan Huang Manager: Yuh-Eing Chung Chief Accountant: Shu-Chen Chen 
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Taichung Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 

January 1 to December 31, 2007 and 2006  
Currency: NTD 1,000 

 

 2007 2006 
Cash flow from operating activities   

Consolidated profit (loss) $ 1,777,461 ($ 4,702,232) 
Deposit of bad debts  985,969  2,903,319 
Recovery of bad debts  503,222  381,940 
Write off non-performing loans ( 827,556) ( 3,022,802) 
Allowances  1,206  792 
Amortization of loss from disposal of NPL  -  5,666,266 
Amortization of financial instruments held to 

maturity at premium  
 124,489  158,013 

Impairment loss of financial instruments held to 
maturity  

 100,000  - 

Loss from delinquent accounts stated as financial 
assets estimated on the basis of cost 

 -  1,501 

Depreciation and amortization (including the 
deprecation of assets not available for business 
operation) 

 177,502  190,058 

Net loss from disposal of fixed assets and 
pledged collateral 

 49,071  138,520 

Impairment loss (reversed gain) from fixed assets 
and pledged collateral 

 49,213 ( 233,455) 

Deferred income tax  296,960 ( 1,045,732) 
Defined benefit pension fund allocation more 

than the cost provided 
 - ( 151,506) 

Decrease (increase) in business assets   
Financial instruments at fair value through 

income statement 
( 104,829) ( 707,634) 

Account receivables  61,737  115,978 
Other assets ( 9,258) ( 15,847) 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities   
Financial liabilities at fair value through 

income statement 
( 112)  382 

Payables ( 3,760,784)  1,113,311 
Other liabilities ( 74,668) ( 76,321) 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating 

activities 
( 650,377)  714,551 

 
(Continued on next page) 
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 2007 2006 
Cash flow from investing activities   

Decrease in nostro accounts and call loans to 
banks 

$ 2,584,917 $ 2,238,707 

Increase in discounts and loans ( 6,757,987) ( 6,041,437) 
Proceeds from disposal of non-performing credit  -  1,000,853 
Redemption at maturity of financial instruments 

hold to maturity 
 2,914,509  2,653,683 

Proceeds for the acquisitions of financial 
instruments held to maturity 

( 7,437,320) ( 2,443,199) 

Decrease (increase) in other financial assets ( 43,944)  7,613 
Acquisitions of fixed assets and deferred 

expenses 
( 125,957) ( 62,100) 

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and 
pledged collateral 

 329,120  1,130,844 

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits  76,251 ( 42,788) 
Net cash outflow from investing activities ( 8,460,411) ( 1,557,824) 

   
Cash flow from financing activities   

Capital from new shares  5,750,000  - 
Decrease in vostro accounts ( 146,919) ( 349,730) 
Decrease in RP and bonds liabilities ( 848,061) ( 2,147,978) 
Increase (decrease) in deposits and remittances ( 2,035,319)  4,320,630 
Issuance of financial bonds  2,400,000  - 
Decrease in other financial liabilities ( 48) ( 43) 
Decrease in deposits received ( 249) ( 210,983) 
Cash dividend from minority equity of 

subsidiaries 
( 305) ( 406) 

Net cash inflow from financing activities  5,119,099  1,611,490 
   

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent ( 3,991,689)  768,217 
   
Balance of cash and cash equivalent at beginning  8,189,094  7,420,877 
   
Balance of cash and cash equivalent at ending $ 4,197,405 $ 8,189,094 
Supplementary disclosure on cash flow   

Interest payment $ 3,460,129 $ 3,210,925 
Income tax payment $ 99,886 $ 81,765 
   

Investing and financing activities not affecting cash 
flow 

  

Prepayment stated as pledged collateral $ 1,013 $ 8,736 
Delinquent accounts stated as financial assets 

estimated on the basis of cost 
$ - $ 1,740 

Capital reduction to cover loss $ 7,339,264 $ - 
 
(Continued on next page) 
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 2007 2006 
Collected cash payment and accounts stated as other 

receivables 
  

Disposal of NPL   
Proceeds from disposal of non-performing 

credit 
$ - $ - 

Decrease in other receivables  -  1,000,853 
Cash $ - $ 1,000,853 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes attached shall constitute an integral part of this financial statement 
(Refer to Independent Accountants’ Audit Report presented by Deloitte & Touche dated February 

28, 2008) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman:  
Hsui-Nan Hwang 
 

Manager:  
Yuh-Eing Chung 

Chief Accountant:  
Shu-Chen Chen 
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